Office of the Provost
Washington, DC 20064
202-319-5244
FAx202-319-5199

March 18" 2015

Postsecondary Registration Coordinator
Towa College Student Aid Commission
430 E. Grand Ave.,, FL. 3
Des Moines, lowa 50309

Carolyn.small@iowa.gov
Dear Ms. Small:

Enclosed please find the application of The Catholic University of America to offer distance
education to lowa residents, along with required supporting documentation.

A check made payable to the State of lowa for $1,000 is enclosed. If you need further
information, please do not hesitate to contact me at sullivac@cua.edu. Enclosed also is an
application for exemption from the bond requirement. The Catholic University of Americais a
Congressionally chartered institution, and thus meets one of the listed exemptions.

Sincerely,

Gothen__Sule_

Catherine Sullivan :
University Distance Education Coordinator
Enclosures:

Fully completed application with attachments, both in hard copy and on flash drive
- Application fee ($1,000.00)



lowa College Student Aid Commission

Application for Registration (Authorization) of Postsecondary Schools
lowa Code Chapter 261B

This is the application form for all schools that are required to register under lowa Code Chapter 261B.

All items must be completed before the registration application or the exemption will be considered received for
processing. If there is insufficient space on the form to provide all requested information, use additional pages as required,
numbering to correspond to the item. Other documents or materials may be attached to the form in lieu of providing the
information on the form. In such cases, the material or document should be referenced on the form and clearly marked for
ease of identification.

Submit one paper copy and one electronic pdf copy of the application on thumb drive or CD to:
Postsecondary Registration Coordinator
lowa College Student Aid Commission

430 E. Grand Ave., FL 3
Des Moines, lowa 50309

A school must submit a $1000 application fee with the application. Please make the check payable to State of lowa.

The information you provide will be open to public inspection under lowa Code Chapter 22.11, and posted to the lowa
College Student Aid Commission website under lowa Code Section 261.2., subsection 7(b).

Exception: A private non-profit or for-profit corporation may submit financial statements associated with its most
recent independent auditor’s report to the Commission and request that they be treated as confidential. For more
information, see item #30:

For assistance or questions regarding the application, contact the Postsecondary Registration Coordinator at:

Carolyn.small@iowa.gov
(515) 725-3413


mailto:Carolyn.small@iowa.gov

Q) Provide the name of school and address of the principal office as defined in lowa Code Section 490.140
or 510.141: [(261B.4(2))] and [(261B.4(1))]

Name of School: The Catholic University of America Street: 620 Michigan Ave., N.E.

City: Washington State: DC Zip: 20064 Country: U.S.

Telephone Number for the schools’ primary state authorization contact (including country or area code):

202-319-5244

E-mail address for the schools’ primary authorization contact: sullivac@cua.edu

(2) Type of school: For-profit E Non-profit Public

3) If applicable, provide the address of all locations in lowa where instruction will occur. For a school that is
applying for registration to offer distance education programs and who has established, or plans to establish a
permanent lowa site(s) at which students will participate in a structured field experience, the school may record
below the location of that lowa field experience site(s).

Suite: Street:
City: State: Zip:
Telephone:

(4) Provide the total estimated tuition charges, fees and other costs payable to the school by a student over the course of
each entire program. [(261B.4(3))] If the school is applying to offer both residential programs that require some face-to-
face interaction between student and faculty at an lowa location, in addition to programs that are offered fully “at a
distance,” please separately list distance education programs, as illustrated below.

Estimated
Total
Residential Program to be Offered in Program
lowa Tuition | Fees | Books and Supplies | Other Charges




Estimated Total
Program Charges
Distance Education Program to be Offered in lowa
Tuition | Fees Books and Supplies | Other
Master of Science in Management 528,620 (5220 PT [To be determined by 528,840+
each instructor.
M.A. in Human Resource Management 528,620 (5220 PT [To be determined by $28,840+
each instructor.
Master of Social Work S$47,700 [S570 PT [To be determined by 548,270+
each instructor.
Master of Science in Nursing 523,055 [S570 PT [To be determined by $23,625+
each instructor.
Doctor of Nursing Practice 532,000 [S570 PT [To be determined by 532,570+
each instructor.
Ph.D. in Nursing 570,000 [S570 PT [To be determined by 570,570+
each instructor.

Please note: Total cost of books and supplies for program cannot be provided as different teachers use different text books.

(5) Please list all distance education programs that include a structured field experience that the school will
permit an lowa resident to participate in at an lowa location. For each program that includes a field experience,
please attach documentation that describes the expectations of the student, school faculty, and a site supervisor.

List of distance education programs with structured field experience:

Online Master of Science in Nursing/Family Nurse Practitioner (MSN/FNP)

http://online.cua.edu/msn/master-of-science-in-nursing-degree

Online Doctor of Nursing Practice (DNP)

http://online.cua.edu/dnp/doctor-of-nursing-practice-overview

Online Clinical Master of Social Work (MSW)

http://online.cua.edu/msw/online-master-of-social-work

Documentation that describes the expectations of the student, school faculty and site supervisors:

Nursing

http://nursing.cua.edu/graduate/msn/preceptor-manual/index.cfm

http://nursing.cua.edu/graduate/msn/preceptor-manual/faculty-guidelines.cfm

http://nursing.cua.edu/graduate/msn/preceptor-manual/preceptor-guidelines.cfm

Social Work

http://ncsss.cua.edu/res/docs/Field-Manual.pdf



http://online.cua.edu/msn/master-of-science-in-nursing-degree
http://online.cua.edu/dnp/doctor-of-nursing-practice-overview
http://online.cua.edu/msw/online-master-of-social-work
http://nursing.cua.edu/graduate/msn/preceptor-manual/index.cfm
http://nursing.cua.edu/graduate/msn/preceptor-manual/faculty-guidelines.cfm
http://nursing.cua.edu/graduate/msn/preceptor-manual/preceptor-guidelines.cfm
http://ncsss.cua.edu/res/docs/Field-Manual.pdf

http://ncsss.cua.edu/field-new/index-f.cfm

(6) Provide the name of every other State of lowa agency required to approve the applicant school in
lowa and the school’s contact person at the agency. Attach documentation of the school’s approval.

Approval is not required by either lowa Board of Nursing or the lowa Board of Social Work for the degree programs
being offered by the university.

(7) Does the school plan to offer in lowa a program that prepares a student for first-time, licensed professional
employment?

No E Yes

List the program and the lowa professional licensure board that licenses persons to practice the profession for which the
school’s program prepares a student. For each program, attach documentation demonstrating that the school’s program
either meets the requirements of a programmatic accrediting agency approved by the lowa professional licensure board,
or that the school’s program meets the lowa professional licensure board’s curriculum requirements such that a student
who completes the school’s program is not required to complete additional coursework or practicum hours that the school
did not offer in its program.

The Masters of Social Work would prepare students for licensure in lowa. The lowa Board of Social Work relies upon
the CSWE certificate. See attached.

Participants in the Nursing Degree program are already RNs and thus are not being prepared for a first time licensure
appointment.

(8) Provide a copy, a link to the school’s Internet site, or a description of the school’s refund policy for the return
of refundable portions of tuition, fees, or other charges [(261B.4(4))] For a for-profit school with at least one
program of more than four months in length that leads to a recognized educational credential, the school’s tuition
refund for lowa students must comply with lowa Code Section 714.23. For more information about lowa Code
Section 714.23, contact the Postsecondary Registration Administrator or see the Postsecondary Registration tab
on the Commission’s main web page atwww.iowacollegeaid.gov.

http://policies.cua.edu/enrollment/refund/RefundStudentCharges.cfm and http://enrolimentservices.cua.edu/Student-
Financial-Information/Refunds.cfm



http://ncsss.cua.edu/field-new/index-f.cfm
http://www.iowacollegeaid.gov/
http://policies.cua.edu/enrollment/refund/RefundStudentCharges.cfm
http://enrollmentservices.cua.edu/Student-Financial-Information/Refunds.cfm
http://enrollmentservices.cua.edu/Student-Financial-Information/Refunds.cfm

(9) Provide the name, business address and telephone number of the chief executive officer of the school: [(261B.4(7))]

Name: John H. Garvey Suite: Street: Nugent Hall 620 Michigan Ave., N.E.

City: Washington State: DC Zip: 20064 Country: U.S. Telephone Number: 202-319-5100

(10) Provide a copy, a link to the school’s Internet site, or describe below the means by which the school intends to
comply with 261B.9 [(261B.4(8)]:

261B.9 DISCLOSURE TO STUDENTS.

Prior to the commencement of a course of instruction and prior to the receipt of a tuition charge or fee for a course of
instruction, a school shall provide written disclosure to students of the following information accompanied by a statement
that the information is being provided in compliance with this section:

1. The name or title of the course.

2. A brief description of the subject matter of the course.

3. The tuition charge or other fees charged for the course. If a student is enrolled in more than
one course at the school, the tuition charge or fee for all courses may be stated in one sum.

4. The refund policy of the school for the return of their fundable portion of tuition, fees, or other
charges. If refunds are not to be paid, the information shall state that fact.

5. Whether the credential or certificate issued, awarded, or credited to a student upon completion
of the course or the fact of completion of the course is applicable toward a degree granted by
the school and, if so, under what circumstances the application will be made.

6. The name of the accrediting agency recognized by the United States department of education
or its successor agency which has accredited the school.

1. The names and titles of courses are linked from their respective program pages at http://online.cua.edu.

2. The course descriptions are linked from their respective program pages at http://online.cua.edu.

3. http://enrollmentservices.cua.edu/Student-Financial-Information/Tuition2014-2015.cfm#Mandatory

4. http://policies.cua.edu/enroliment/refund/RefundStudentCharges.cfm and http://enrollmentservices.cua.edu/Student-
Financial-Information/Refunds.cfm (note: Scroll toward bottom of both for online)

5. http://online.cua.edu.

6. The Middle States Commission on Higher Education

(11) Provide the name, address, and telephone number of a contact person in lowa. [(261B.4(10))]. If the school is
applying for distance education and has registered with the lowa Secretary of State as a for-profit or non-profit corporation
transacting business in lowa, please list the corporation's lowa registered resident agent.

Name: CT Corporation System Suite: 110
Street: 400 East Court Ave City: Des Moines State: lowa Zip: 50309
County: Polk Telephone Number (including country or area code): 515-421-4209

(12) Provide the name, address, and title of the other officers and members of the legal governing body of the school:
[(261B.4(6))]

For officers 2 or more, add pages as needed.

Officer Number 1
Name: John H. Garvey Suite: Nugent Hall
Street: 620 Michigan Avenue, N.E. City: Washington State: DC Zip: 20064

Officer Number 2


http://online.cua.edu/
http://online.cua.edu/
http://enrollmentservices.cua.edu/Student-Financial-Information/Tuition2014-2015.cfm%23Mandatory
http://policies.cua.edu/enrollment/refund/RefundStudentCharges.cfm
http://enrollmentservices.cua.edu/Student-Financial-Information/Refunds.cfm
http://enrollmentservices.cua.edu/Student-Financial-Information/Refunds.cfm
http://online.cua.edu/

Name: Frank G. Persico

Street: 620 Michigan Avenue, N.E. City: Washington

Officer Number 3
Name: Cathy R. Wood

Street: 620 Michigan Avenue, N.E. City: Washington

Officer Number 4
Name: Very Reverend Mark Morozowich

Street: 620 Michigan Avenue, N.E. City: Washington

Trustee Number 1
Name: Carl A. Anderson

Street: City: New Haven

Trustee Number 2
Name: Lee Ann Joiner Brady

Street: City: Skillman

Trustee Number 3
Name: Bishop Michael F. Burbidge

Street: City: Raleigh

Trustee Number 4
Name: Timothy R. Busch, Esq.

Street: City: Irvine

Trustee Number 5
Name: Joseph L. Carlini

Street: City: Malvern

Trustee Number 6
Name: Archbishop Robert J. Carlson

Street: City: St. Louis

Suite: Nugent Hall

State: DC Zip: 20064

Suite: 260 Leahy Hall

State: DC Zip: 20064

Suite: 105 McMahon Hall

State: DC Zip: 20064
Suite:

State: CT Zip:
Suite:

State: NJ Zip:
Suite:

State: NC Zip:
Suite:

State: CA Zip:
Suite:

State: PA Zip:
Suite:

State: MO Zip:



Trustee Number 7
Name: Robert F. Comstock, Esq.

Street: City: Washington

Trustee Number 8
Name: Archbishop Salvatore J. Cordileone

Street: City: San Francisco

Trustee Number 9
Name: Leo A. Daly llI

Street: City: Washington

Trustee Number 10
Name: Bishop Nicholas A. DiMarzio

Street: City: Brooklyn

Trustee Number 11
Name: Cardinal Daniel N. DiNardo

Street: City: Houston

Trustee Number 12
Name: Cardinal Timothy M. Dolan

Street: City: New York

Trustee Number 13
Name: Sister Janet Eisner, S.N.D.

Street: City: Boston

Trustee Number 14
Name: Bishop Kevin J. Farrell

Street: City: Dallas

Trustee Number 15
Name: Cardinal Francis E. George, O.M.1.

Street: City: Chicago

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

DC

CA

DC

NY

X

NY

MA

X

IL

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:



Trustee Number 16
Name: Archbishop Wilton D. Gregory

Street:

Trustee Number 17
Name: Stephen J. Kaneb

Street:

Trustee Number 18
Name: Archbishop Joseph E. Kurtz

Street:

Trustee Number 19
Name: Archbishop Jerome E. Listecki

Street:

Trustee Number 20
Name: Bishop Paul S. Loverde

Street:

Trustee Number 21
Name: Bishop Gregory J. Mansour

Street:

Trustee Number 22
Name: Bishop Robert J. McManus

Street:

Trustee Number 23
Name: James Moye

Street:

Trustee Number 24
Name: Mark A. Murray

Street:

City: Atlanta

City: South Hampton

City: Louisville

City: Milwaukee

City: Arlington

City: Brooklyn

City: Worcester

City: Fairfield

City: Grand Rapids

Suite:

State: GA

Suite:

State: NH

Suite:

State: KY

Suite:

State: WI

Suite:

State: VA

Suite:

State: NY

Suite:

State: MA

Suite:

State: CT

Suite:

State: Ml

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:



Trustee Number 25
Name: Archbishop John C. Nienstedt

Street: City: St. Paul

Trustee Number 26
Name: Anne E. O’'Donnell, M.D.

Street: City: Arlington

Trustee Number 27
Name: Bishop Thomas J. Olmstead

Street: City: Phoenix

Trustee Number 28
Name: Cardinal Sean P. O'Malley, O.F.M. Cap.

Street: City: Braintree

Trustee Number 29
Name: Bishop Joseph A. Pepe

Street: City: Las Vegas

Trustee Number 30
Name: Monsignor Walter R. Rossi

Street: City: Washington

Trustee Number 31
Name: Catharine Murray Ryan

Street: City: Pittsburgh

Trustee Number 32
Name: Timothy C. Scheve

Street: City: Philadelphia

Trustee Number 33
Name: Victor P. Smith, Esq.

Street: City: Indianapolis

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

MN

VA

AZ

MA

NV

DC

PA

PA

IN

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Suite:



Trustee Number 34
Name: Anthony R. Tersigni

Street:

Trustee Number 35
Name: Bishop Thomas J. Tobin

Street:

Trustee Number 36
Name: Mark H. Tuohey Il, Esq.

Street:

Trustee Number 37
Name: Monsignor Peter J. Vaghi

Street:

Trustee Number 38
Name: Archbishop Allen H. Vigneron

Street:

Trustee Number 39
Name: Archbishop Thomas G. Wenski

Street:

Trustee Number 40
Name: Anthony A. Williams, Esq.

Street:

Trustee Number 41
Name: Cardinal Donald W. Wuerl

Street:

City: St. Louis

City: Providence

City: Washington

City: Bethesda

City: Detroit

City: Miami

City: Washington

City: Washington

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

Suite:

State:

MO

RI

DC

MD

MI

FL

DC

DC

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:

Zip:



(13) For a for-profit institution, provide the names and business addresses of persons owning more than 10% of the
school: [(261B.4(6))]

Name: Suite:
Street: City: State: Zip:
Country: Telephone Number (including country or area code):

For owners 2 or more, add pages as needed.

(14) Name all agencies accrediting the institution or programs offered in lowa that are recognized by the U.S.
Department of Education. [(261B.4(9))] Attach a copy of the school’s accreditation status for each agency. Provide all
documentation in the school’s records about any pending or final accrediting agency sanction.

If the school is applying to initiate in-person instruction at an lowa location and the school’s accrediting agency has not
approved the lowa location, provide documentation from the accrediting agency that its approval is not required or the
school’s request for approval of an the lowa location will be considered by the accrediting agency upon approval by the
Commission.

Accrediting Agency 1

Name: Middle States Commission on Higher Education Suite: 2" Floor West

Street: 3624 Market Street City: Philadelphia State: PA Zip: 19104
Country: U.S. Telephone Number (including country or area code): 267-284-5000

Contact Person:

Accrediting Agency 2

Name: Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education Suite: 530

Street: One Dupont Circle, NW City: Washington State: DC Zip: 20036
Country: U.S. Telephone Number (including country or area code): (202) 463-6930

Contact Person:

Accrediting Agency 3

Name: Suite:
Street: City: State: Zip:
Country: Telephone Number (including country or area code):

Contact Person:



For additional accrediting agencies, add additional pages.

(15) Describe the procedures followed by the school for safeguarding (e.g., storage, security and back-up processes) and
preservation of student records. [(261B.4(12))]

http://enrollmentservices.cua.edu/Registration-and-Records/StudentRecordsPrivacy.cfm
Records are also stored off site at First Federal in Maryland.

In the event of institutional closure, the university is required by Title 5-A, Sec. 8016.4(e) of the Municipal Regulations of the
District of Columbia to make provisions for transferring all official student records to the Educational Licensure Commission
of the District of Columbia.

(16) Provide the contact information to be used by students and graduates who seek to obtain transcript information.
Name: Registrar (Julie Isha) Suite: 300 O’Connell Hall
Street: 620 Michigan Ave., N.E. City: Washington State: DC Zip: 20064

Country: U.S. Telephone Number (including country or area code): 202-319-5300

E-mail address and/or web site: cua-transcripts@cua.edu
http://enrollmentservices.cua.edu/Registration-and-Records/Transcripts.cfm

(17) List the states and licensure/authorization agencies for all states that require the school to obtain authorization to
operate, maintain a presence, or offer distance education in that state. Attach documentation of the school’s
licensure/authorization status in each state. Do not list states in which the school’s status is “exempt.”

Please see attached chart.
State: Agency Name:

(18) Has a state ever revoked the school’s approval to operate in that state?

E No Yes. If yes, attach documentation from the state of its revocation action.

(19) Has a state sanctioned the school within the year prior to the date of this application?

E No Yes. If yes, attach documentation from the state of its sanction action.

(20) Is the school presently under investigation by or bound to the terms of a judgment issued by a state’s attorney
general or other enforcement authority?

E No Yes. If yes, attach documentation of the investigation or judgment from the enforcement authority.

(21) Will the school certify that it will immediately notify the Commission of any pending or final sanction issued by the
school’s accrediting agency, another state agency that registers or licenses the school during its lowa registration term, or
a state attorney general’s office or other enforcement authority?

E Yes No



http://enrollmentservices.cua.edu/Registration-and-Records/StudentRecordsPrivacy.cfm

(22) Describe the academic and instructional methodologies and delivery systems to be used by the school and the extent
to which the school anticipates each methodology and delivery system will be used, including, but not limited to,
classroom instruction, correspondence, internet, electronic telecommunications, independent study, and portfolio
experience evaluation. [(261B.4(13))]

With the exception of required clinical course/field placements, all of the courses in the university’s online degree
program curricula have been translated into a distance format and will be delivered to students through the
Deltak Engage Platform that provides best current practices in online learning. Students have access 24/7 to these
resources through internet access. All of the courses contain a library block on the main page that links directly to
the library. The online distance courses are embedded with lectures, discussions, PowerPoints, video
presentations and web links in addition to library resources that are available to students at all times.

Additional information regarding delivery of the university’s distance education courses is available at this link:

http://online.cua.edu/admissions/online-learning-details

(23) Is the school subject to a limitation, suspension or termination (LST) order issued by the U.S. Department of
Education?

Yes E No

Please attach a copy of the school’s current federal student aid Program Participation Agreement with the U.S.
Department of Education.

(24) Do you currently:

Enroll students in lowa? No E Yes. How many? 1

?
Employ lowa faculty? E No Yes. How many full-time? How many part-time?

Provide the name(s) of and business contact information for any lowa resident that the school compensates to provide
instruction or academic supervision in the programs its offers in lowa.

(25) Do you compensate lowa residents to perform other operational activities for the school besides teaching (e.g.,

program or lowa site coordinator, call-taker, admissions representative)? E No I:IYes

Provide the names, titles, and business contact information for all lowa residents that the school compensates to provide
operational support other than teaching. Attach a resume, other documentation, or provide a link to the school’s Internet
site that provides a curriculum vitae summary for each lowa resident employee who is a full-time program or lowa site
coordinator.

(26) Of the total number of faculty (including those that may not be lowa residents) who will provide instruction in
programs offered to lowa residents, how many are full-time? How many are part-time?

Attach resumes, other documentation, or links to your Internet site that describe 1) the educational and experiential
qualifications of all faculty or instructors who teach the courses offered to lowans, and 2) the general subject matter in
which they teach.

Faculty credentials are linked under their respective programs at http://online.cua.edu.

More specifically, see

Online MSN Nursing Faculty


http://online.cua.edu/admissions/online-learning-details
http://online.cua.edu/

http://online.cua.edu/msn/online-masters-of-nursing-faculty

Online DNP Nursing Faculty
http://online.cua.edu/dnp/online-doctor-of-nursing-practice-faculty
Online MSW Faculty
http://online.cua.edu/msw/masters-in-social-work-faculty

Online MSM Faculty
http://online.cua.edu/msm/master-science-management-faculty
Online MAHRM Faculty
http://online.cua.edu/mahr/human-resource-masters-online-faculty

(27) How will your school comply with lowa Code section 261B.7, which requires the school to disclose that it is
registered by the Commission, including and provide the Commission’s contact information for student questions or
complaints? http://counsel.cua.edu/Consumer/accreditation-licensure.cfm

(28) Will your school comply with the requirements of lowa Code Section 261.9(1)"e” to “h"?

E Yes No

Note: Schools that apply for registration to offer distance education programs and who have no compensated parties
working remotely for the school from an lowa location are not required to comply with lowa Code Section 261.9(1)"h”. For
more information about lowa Code Section 261.9(1), please contact the Postsecondary Registration Coordinator or see
the Postsecondary Registration/Authorization tab on the Commission’s main web page at www.iowacollegeaid.gov.

Refund
Please see attached.

Drugs and Alcohol

Drug and Alcohol, including sanctions. http://policies.cua.edu/studentlife/studentconduct/alcoholdrugs.cfm and
http://policies.cua.edu/studentlife/studentconduct/conduct-full.cfm

Sexual Misconduct http://policies.cua.edu/StudentLife/studentconduct/assault.cfm

Special Vets policy: (includes spouse and dependent child-full refund if ordered to duty), process for incompletes,
etc.
(see note above on refunds and attached refund policy. Process will be individual by state.

Mandatory Child sex abuse reporting http://policies.cua.edu/StudentLife/studentconduct/assault.cfm at end of
Sexual Offenses Policy

(29) Does the school agree to file annual reports that the Commission requires from all lowa colleges and universities?
(Note: at this time the Commission does not require annual reports for out-of-state distance education program
providers.)

E Yes No

(30) Attach a copy of the applicant school's most recent independent audit report prepared by a certified public
accounting firm no more than 12 months prior to the application and state below where, in the audit report, there is
evidence that the auditor is providing an unqualified opinion. Sept. 10, 2014 report of PWC online at
http://treasurer.cua.edu/res/docs/CUA-2014-Financial-Statements.pdf See page 4.

Note: A school may submit to the Postsecondary Registration Coordinator financial statements associated with an
independent audit in a separate electronic file that is marked confidential. The Commission will not treat as public records
financial statements that a school identifies as confidential.

(31) Describe how your school provides students with learning resources, including appropriate library and other support
services requisite for the school’s programs.


http://online.cua.edu/msn/online-masters-of-nursing-faculty
http://online.cua.edu/dnp/online-doctor-of-nursing-practice-faculty
http://online.cua.edu/msw/masters-in-social-work-faculty
http://online.cua.edu/msm/master-science-management-faculty
http://online.cua.edu/mahr/human-resource-masters-online-faculty
http://counsel.cua.edu/Consumer/accreditation-licensure.cfm
http://www.iowacollegeaid.gov/
http://policies.cua.edu/studentlife/studentconduct/alcoholdrugs.cfm
http://policies.cua.edu/studentlife/studentconduct/conduct-full.cfm
http://policies.cua.edu/StudentLife/studentconduct/assault.cfm
http://policies.cua.edu/StudentLife/studentconduct/assault.cfm
http://treasurer.cua.edu/res/docs/CUA-2014-Financial-Statements.pdf

Distance education students have complete access to CUA Library subscriptions, resources (Up to Date, PubMed, Cochran
Library, Web of Science, CINAHL Support, Journals@Ovid, lyndaCampus, etc.) and electronic holdings. Some examples of
library resources accessible by distance students with open access through CUA can be found at the links below. There is
technology support for students 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

http://guides.lib.cua.edu/searchbox

http://libraries.cua.edu/instruct/toolindex.cfm

http://guides.lib.cua.edu/social work

http://guides.lib.cua.edu/Nursing

(32) Provide evidence that faculty within an appropriate discipline are involved in developing and evaluating curriculum
for the program(s) to be registered in lowa.

Each academic program at the Catholic University of America is approved by the faculty and administration, and is subject
to annual review to determine both academic effectiveness and financial viability. The university’s policy on review of
new academic programs is available at this link:
http://policies.cua.edu/faculty/handbook-lll/newprogram.cfm
Further, as stated in Articles VIl and IX of the Constitution of the university’s Academic Senate, it is the responsibility of
the Academic Senate to authorize and review programs of study, to evaluate the academic standards of existing
programs, and to determine minimum academic standards. The Constitution of the Academic Senate is available at this
link:
http://policies.cua.edu/faculty/faculty-I/governing-docs/senate.cfm
With respect to graduate programs, The Academic Senate has delegated to the Graduate Board general supervision over
specific matters relating to graduate study, for example, standards of admission, programs of study, and requirements for
degrees. The Graduate Board reports to the Academic Senate its recommendations on these matters. (See description of
Graduate Board at this link:
http://graduatestudies.cua.edu/graduateboard.cfm)

Assessment of graduate programs includes student outcomes, including student learning outcomes; number of degrees
awarded; completion rate; and time to completion.

(33) If applicable, please provide evidence that the school has adequate physical facilities appropriate for the

program(s) and students services to be offered and are located in the state. For a school that applies for registration to
open a fixed instructional site, include a copy of a signed agreement for a facility purchase or lease or option to purchase
or lease.

N/A.

(34) For a for-profit institution, provide an organizational plan that shows the physical address and contact information for
all internet-based and site-based educational locations, administrative, and service centers operated by the applicant and
any parent organization.

N/A.

(35)Provide documentation showing the school’s policy for the resolution of student and graduate comments
and complaints. Provide complete contact information to which complainants may be referred.

http://policies.cua.edu/EEQO/discrimcomplpolicyfull.cfm and here:
http://counsel.cua.edu/Consumer/accreditation-licensure.cfm



http://guides.lib.cua.edu/searchbox
http://libraries.cua.edu/instruct/toolindex.cfm
http://guides.lib.cua.edu/social_work
http://guides.lib.cua.edu/Nursing
http://policies.cua.edu/faculty/handbook-III/newprogram.cfm
http://policies.cua.edu/faculty/faculty-I/governing-docs/senate.cfm
http://graduatestudies.cua.edu/graduateboard.cfm
http://policies.cua.edu/EEO/discrimcomplpolicyfull.cfm
http://counsel.cua.edu/Consumer/accreditation-licensure.cfm

(36)Provide the U.S. Department of Education cohort default rate for each associated organizational entity for
which the U.S. Department of Education reports a cohort default rate.

2.6

37) Provide the average debt upon graduation of individuals completing programs at each branch location
and the entire organization,

For all graduate students of the university who graduated in 2014, the average per borrower was $52,901 (data
specific to these programs is not available).

(38) Provide the U. S. Department of Education cohort graduation rate for each branch location and the total
organization, showing rates for graduates of diploma, two-year, and four-year, programs if those rates are
reported to the U. S. Department of Education National Center for Education Statistics.

http://nces.ed.gov/collegenavigator/?s=DC&zc=20064&zd=0&0f=3&id=131283#fedloans




SIGNATURE
Applicant School Chief Executive Cfficer

John H. Garvey President
Name Title
///}/_7 Mardly lﬁ; Fory

Signature / ’ Date

By my signature above, | commit to the delivery of programs this school offers in lowa, and agree to
provide alternatives for students to complete programs at other institutions if the applicant school closes the
program hefore students have completed their courses of study.

Additional Instructions:

« If any information in this application changes between the time the Commission of application Commission action,
the school must inform the Commission in writing.

* A registration fee of $1000 is due and payable to the State of Ibwa upaon registration approval.

* Registrations must be renewed every two years. During a registration term, a school must submit a written
request for amendment and remit an additional $1000 amendment fee upon any substantive change in program
offerings, location, or accreditation.

« During a registration term, changes that occur to the information provided in this application must be submitted in
writing {e-mail is acceptable) to the Postsecondary Registration Coordinator within 80 days of the change (e.g., a
new program that does not required the approval of an agency of the state of lowa).

* During a registration term, a schogl that offers distance education programs that include a mandatory structured
field experience must notify the Commission of the lowa field experience location within 20 days of establishing
the lowa field experience site.

Revised 2/01/14



Documentation that describes the expectations of the students, school faculty, and a site
supervisor for each distance education program that includes a structured field experience that
the school will permit an Iowa resident to participate in at an Iowa location.
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are the single most important facet of
our Advance Practice Nursing
Programs. Quality educational
experiences for our graduate students
would not be possible without
preceptors/imentors in the clinical
arena. Preceptors/mentors play an
important role in the preparation,
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School of Nursing
Faculty Guidelines

Clinical site approval & verification of current contracts

Clinical sites are constantly being added for the benefit of our MSN students. Decisions regarding site approval rests with
each individual faculty member serving as a site coordinator in order to ensure the hest possible experiences for all of our
MSN students.

The Facully Clinical Coordinator works with the contact at each specific site to ensure that a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) is valid and accurate. The MOU is a legal document establishing a relationship between the SON
and each specific site. Once the MOU document is generated and signed by all parties (Dean of the School of Nursing,
Provost, and Site Representatives), a Memorandum of Insurance is generated to cover both general and professional
liability. Both documents are sent to the site, with copies kept at the SON and available as needed. Once an MOU is
established, it is valid year to year unless terminated in writing or otherwise slipulated in the MOU.

Assigning students to preceptor

Students are assigned to individual preceptors by the coordinating faculty member., Occasionally students wilt request a
spegcific site or preceptor. In that instance, the faculty member will discuss with the student his/her educational needs and
confer with the site representative to assess if the match is appropriate and an MOU can be established.

Final grades are always assigned by the faculty member, with input from the clinical preceptor.

Documenting student placements

Communication of student placements occurs in the last few weeks of the semester prior fo'the cfinical rotation. Both the
preceptors/educators and the students are given contact information for one another by the faculily coordinator.

Validating student credentials

Students are required to keep all immunizations, CPR, PPD, health status documentation, and RN licenses (in DC and
MD/VA) up to date at all times during their clinical rotations. Specifically, this information must be updated by December 18t
(for spring semesters) and May 1% (for summer & fall semesters}.

Orientation of preceptors & communication

Preceptors are oriented individually via conversations with clinical faculty, ongoing e-mail, face-to-face meetings, and the
preceptor manual. Communications occurs throughout each semester as needed. Students are asked to review the CUA
Graduate Announcements, SON website, and supporting materials regularly for policy changes.

Performing site visits

Site visits provide valuable opportunities for faculty to observe the student's interactions with patients or with program
colleagues for Advanced Public Health students. Faculty discuss the student's progress individually with the clinical
preceptor. This site visil takes place at a mutually agreeable time for the preceptor, student and assigned facully member. if
needed, the faculty member will visit the site multiple times in one semester.

Supervising students’ clinical schedules

After establishing a clinical scheduie with a preceptor, students are responsible for communicating their schedules to their
assigned faculty member at the beginning of each semester. If a change In the schedule is required, it is the student's

hitp://nursing.cua.edu/graduate/msn/preceptor-manual/faculty-guidelines.cfm 2/19/2015
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responsibility to communicate the changes to both the preceptor and the assigned faculty member. Generally, it is expected
that the clinical/practicum experience will span the length of the semester.

Evaluating student clinical logs

Faculty will provide students with instructions for completing and submitting weekly clinical logs. Faculty will evaluate logs
biweekly to assess progress toward atlainment of clinical objectives for the course.

l.ast reviewed: December 16, 2014
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The Catholic University of America * 620 Michigan Ave., N.E. * Washington, DC 20064
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School of Nursing
Preceptor Guidelines

Preceptor Guidelines Conlents

Role of precepior
Preceptorselection criteria
Individual preceptar qualifications
Clinical setting
Individual student prograssion

Benefits of precépiing
Faculty appointments
Tuition reimbursement

Teaching skills & meihods for NPs
Teaching skills and methods for APHN student nurses
Preceptor Resources

Role of preceptor

Preceptors, as clinical educators, are integral to the professional development of advanced practice nursing students. The
responsibility of advanced practice nurses to *mentor other ...nurses and colieagues” is highlighted by the American
Nurses Associalion’s document Nursing: Scope and Standards of Practice (2004). The preceptor is one who “engages the
student in the guided experience of applying knowledge to practice.” The preceptor serves as & role model and promotes
clinical and professional competency, student autonomy, and socialization into the particular rote the student has chosen
(NONPF Preceptor Manual and ACHNE,Graduate Education for Advanced Practice Public Health Nursing, 2007)). At The
Cathotic University of America, the preceptorworks in partnership with faculty fo provide the student with opportunities to
develop and refine necessary skills and critical reasoning in the clinical management of patients, or populations. Preceptor
are provided with a copy of the course and clinical objectives for each student's rotation as well as information about the
student's mastery of past clinical objectives. Preceptors will be expecled lo provide students’ with formative and summative
evaluations, usually at midterm and at the completion of the course. However, final course grades remain the responsibility
of the course director. :

Preceptor selection criteria

Preceptors are selected based upon a number of important criteria, CUA believes that the quality of our clinical programs is
related directly to the outstanding team of preceptors who partner with us in providing graduate students with clinical
training. If a student requests consideration of a new preceptor not previously known to the faculty, faculty will evaluate the
preceptor and setting using their established criteria. Facuity consider three main areas when considering a

preceptor: individual preceptor qualifications, strengths of the clinical selting, and needs of the individual student/course.

Individual preceptor qualifications.

All preceptors are considered to be experls in the area of practice in which they will work with students. Preceptor
curriculum vitae, including professional practice experience, are maintained and updated regularly. For NP students,
preceptors must be currently licensed (and cerlified) to practice with the population of interest. While preceptors for nurse
practitioner students are expected to have at least two years of clinical experience, they usually have much more.
Advanced practice nursing students will be placed with preceptors who possess the legal authority, clinical expertise, and
practice experience to assure their competency as expert practitioners. The majority of preceptors for graduate students
are advanced practice registered nurses whose role and population of interest match the student's career path. Physician
and physician assistant and public health preceptors are used if their qualifications and practice setlings best suit the
student's clinical learning needs. The important role of interprofessional teams in care management has created
opportunities for student learning with other health professionals such as those in the fields of social work,

http:/mursing.cua.edu/graduate/msn/preceptor-manual/preceptor-guidelines.cfm 2/19/2015
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psychology/psychiatry, nutrition and public health. For NPs, the number of hours spent with other team members is limited
and is planned in accordance and in compliance with national certification standards. Other key variables related to
effectiveness of an individual preceptor include personal characteristics, such as interest and enthusiasm in student
teaching, flexibility, and communication skills.

Clinical setting

The clinical setting in which the preceptor works is a key factor to consider in choosing a preceptor . For NPs, questions
that must be answered satisfactorily and meet the particular course objectives include: What are the demographics of
patients seen in this setting? What types of health services are provided? How much time is allowed for a student to spend
with each patient? Does the setting have adequate space to allow the student to spend sufficient time with patients, without
holding up the pace of others? How will students use documentation? How many patients are typically seen in a day? Will
students have opportunities to observe preceptors , if necessary? Will preceptors be willing to observe students? Will the
selting and preceptor allow students to progress when they are ready to more independently assess patlents, present
patients to the preceptor and suggest management? Will there be opporiunities to follow patients? Will preceptors provide
students with additional opportunities for learning, such as reviewing lab findings and radiology, making referrals, making
home visits, participating in rounds and meetings with other health care professionals. Finally, will the preceptor maintain
adequate supervision over all care provided by students?

Individual student progression

Graduate students progress through clinical courses in a program plan that is designed by faculty to assure that they
develop clinical competencies in a systematic way that is integrated with didactic course work. Before beginning any clinical
course, all students first complete a comprehensive three credit advanced health assessment course. All students are
expected to be able to perform complete and accurate health histories and physical examinations before beginning
clinical. Subsequent clinical objectives for students are arranged sequentially. Therefore, clinical course objectives are
important determinants in selecting a preceptor for a student. in a first clinical for NPs, where refinement of history taking,
physical examination and differential diagnosis are primary objectives, a preceptor who has more time available to spend
with a student and a setting where more comprehensive care is provided may be ideal. Later in a student’s program, a
preceptor who expects students to move at a faster pace and is comfortable with a more independent student may be a
better fit. Similarly the setting itself helps shape the choice of a preceptor to assure that the patients seen (level of acuity,
gender, diagnoses, cultural heterogeneity, language, and procedures) match the learning needs of the students for that
course. APHN students also follow a progression in their clinical training that is guided by faculty advisement and based on
.development and mastery of core public health competencies.

Benefits of precepting

Preceptors report many individual and varied reasons and benefits associated with precepting students. Preceptors often
note the satisfaction they receive in knowing the value of what they are contributing to the “next generation” of APRNs and
APHNSs. Some feel the need to “pay back” the debt they incurred during their own professional education and believe that it
is a professional responsibility. A great number report that they themselves benefit from the stimulation and challenge of
working in collaboration with a student. The student’s questions may stimulate the preceptor to investigate the latest
evidence for a problem or dig deeper for an explanation. As one NP preceptor said, * it is sometimes too easy to get lazy in
primary care and do what you have been doing for years. You know that what you are doing is safe, but does it really
reflect the latest thinking about a problem? Having a student with me nudges me to check out the literature again and see if
there is a better way. Or | can ask the student to look up a problem and verify our management. Often students are doing
this all the time in class so they are very comfortable wilh these requests. They may even have easier access to the latest .
resources...”. An important benefit to community and public health professionals is the gratification of advancing the
practice of public health nursing. It offers additional networking opportunilies with other community and public health
practitioners and the satisfaction of sharing knowledge and experience. Finally, it develops professional ability to coach
others towards the goal of health for all.

Preceptors also report that serving in this role brings status and recognition within their organizations. Some preceptors
report that their organization’s willingness to allow them to precept is an important indicator of how the organization values
teaching, growth, and professionat autonomy. “Even in a busy practice setling, an employer who would not allow me to
precept would tell me a lot about what they value and their overemphasis on the bottom line.”

Faculty appointments

CUA offers appointments to preceptors in accordance with their level of involvement with graduate programs and based on
the individual's qualifications. Most preceptors are clinical educators and receive yearly certificates of recognition. Others

http://nursing.cua.edu/gradﬁate/msn/preceptor—manua1/p1'eceptor-guidelines.cfm 2/19/2015
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who precept consistently and contribute in other ways, such as serving as guest lecturers, may apply lo the Dean for
adjunct faculty status. ‘

The SON is deeply grateful to its preceptors and is committed to supporting them. Preceptors are provided a list of classes

an

d lectures at the beginning of the semesler and are invited to attend any of interest. For example, a nurse practitioner

who has begun to see more adolescents in hisfher practice may elect to attend targeted lectures offered in the adolescent
course. Others may choose to attend classes on motivational interviewing, ADHD, and mental health screening in primary
care. The CUA SON presents monthly presentations about topical issues in Global Health on the first Wednesday of each
month to which all preceptors and clinical colleagues are invited. Faculty are ready to provide preceptor with letters of
recognition and acknowledgement of hours spent precepting, which may be used for recertification. The SON has offered
{uition benefits to preceptors , allowing them to enroll in one SON course a year at a reduced tuition rate, This benefit is

de

pendent upon yearly University funding. Preceplors may also benefit by partnering with facully on research projects,

manuscripts, and other outreach activities in the community, such as sports PE dlinics, immunization clinics, and health

fai

rs.

Teaching skills & methods for NPs

Preceptors will want to begin by reviewing course objectives as well as the student's past clinical experiences while in the
graduate program. Overall, preceptors are responsible for assisting students in refining the skills they need lo provide

qu

ality patient care within the context of a particular clinical setting. The following generai guidelines should assist the

preceptor :

1.
2.

&

10.

11.
i2.

Ask the student what specific clinical competencies they hope to achieve in this clinical rotation.

On the first encounter, allow the student to observe your patient interactions. Explain to student the that as an
experienced practitioner, you are able to move more quickly through your assessments, but that you will expect the
student to be more thorough as a novice and require more information from the history and PE to arrive at accurale
differential diagnoses.

Directly observe the student’s interpersonal, psychomotor, and communication skills in history-taking and physnca|
examinations at the beginning of the rotation. It is expected that while you will continue to assess the student's skills
throughout the rotation, through less direct methods such as verification of physical findings, having the student
present patients to you , and review of student's documentation, directly observing them in history taking and
physical examination is critical. Direct observation may aliow you to quickly recognize any deficits that need
remediation as well as provide you with the assurance necessary to allow the student more independence in his/her
practice.

When introducing patients to the student and asking their permission to see a student, explam to lhe patients that
you will come back in at the end of the student’s exam to talk to them.

Continue to listen to feedback that may be offered by palients, families, and office staff.

Assist the student in identifying short term goals and ways to meet them. Fee! free to identify one particular skill that
you ask the student to focus on each day.

Freely ask a student questions that will help you to understand his/her clinical reasoning skills and knowledge of a
particular clinical problem.

Engage with a student by gently challenging his/her assumptions or diagnoses.

There are many teaching strategies that can be employed to assist a student to learn the many facets of patient
care: have the student follow-up patients with phone calls and referrals: review patient lab work with the student;
assign the student a particular clinical question or problem to research.

Recognize that clinical work is varied and unpredictable. Feel free to use allernative teaching strategies when patient
load is too busy to allow adequate time for processing each patieni with the student. Some preceptors have the
student see patients individually in the morning and then have the student observe the preceplor in the afternoons
when they get "behind.”

Foous on quality rather than quantity with the student.

Communicate early and freely with the student and faculty member about any concerns you may have.

Let the student and faculty member know if the student does not arrive with the skills you expected or if they fail to make
expected progress:

Let faculty know if you become concerned that you do not have enough time to continue lo precept. Precepior often put
unrealistic demands upon themselves when they precept. Faculty may be able to offer suggestions about ways to
structure your day with the student so thal you can continue to serve as a valuable preceptor without undue burden.

http://nursing.cua.edu/ graduate/msn/preceptor-manual/preceptor-guidelineé.cf m 2/19/2015
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Preceptor resources

The following links and resources provide preceptor with-valuable strategies for working with students in today's busy
clinical and community setlings:

Patient Presentation & Precepling Resources
Practlical Guide to Clinical Medicine
Oral Case Presentation Guidelines

Resource for Public Health Nursing

Last reviewed: Decornber 16, 2014
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National Catholic School of Social Service

2ut your valuas into action with social work field internships

eld internships are a key part of our students' social work education, providing
valuable support for what our students are learning in the classroom. Direct
igagement in service activities in a wide range of agencies and organizations
ves students the opportunity to personally experience how social workers can

ake a real difference in people's lives.

oals of field education

the National Catholic Schoo! of Social Service, we are committed to helping

ir students:

learn to provide social services across fields of practice;

Page 1 of 2

acquire the knowledge, values and skills for intervention with individuals, groups, families, communities and other

systems;

develop a professional identity consistent with social work values;

develop the skills necessary to evaluate their social work practice;

gain experience with various client populations including diverse racial and ethnic groups, and at-risk populations;

develop a professional commitment to social work practice;

evolve a practice style consistent with the student's personal strengths;

devélop the abllity to work within a social welfare agency or organization.

sad more

Field Student

Field education is the signature
pedagogy of the social work
profession. Ta learn more about the
field education program, click on the
links below:

Field Forms

BSW

MSW

Field Program Overview

Field Calendar

Field Manual

Field Search Engine

Field Instructor

The role of the field instructor is
essential fo the student's training
program. Providing supervision and
field experience guides the integration
of theory and practice. Click on links
below for rescurces:

Field forms

Field Manual

Field Calendar

Benefits being NCSSS- FI

New agency application

Instructor Profile

http://nesss.cua.edu/field-new/index-f.cfm

Field Liaison

The field llaison guides the student in
connecting theory to practice. The
ligison facifitates seminar and
supports student and field instructor
in the learning process and with the
supervisory relationship. Please click
finks below o access field liaison
resources:

Field forms

Field Manual

Field Calendar
Contact field Liaisons

Field Liaison Site Visit Evaluation

2/19/2015



NCSSS Field Education | Page 2 of 2

FAQ's CUA Trave! Reimbursement Form
HIPAA

Last reviewad: November 18, 2014
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THE CATHOLIC UNIVERSITY OF AMERICA
National Catholic School of Social Service
Office of Field Education
Washington, DC 20064
202-319-5457

Welcome to Field Education at NCSSS,

Field education plays a central role in the training of social work students. Referred
to by the Council on Social Work Education as the “signature pedagogy"” of social work, field
education is the foundation of our profession. The purpose of this Field manuai is to serve
as a resource and guide for students, field instructors and faculty.

At the National Catholic School of Social Service, we are committed to helping our
students learn to provide social services across fields of practice. Field placements allow
our social work students to expand their learning beyond the classroom, Engaging in direct
practice social work, in a wide range of agencies and organizations gives students the
opportunity to personally experience how social workers can make a real difference in
people's lives.

The NCSSS field education program helps students to acquire the knowledge, values
and skills for intervention with individuals, groups, families, communities and other
systems. Through the social work field placement, students develop a professional identity
consistent with social work values. Internships allow student social workers to develop a
professional commitment to social work practice and develop the skills necessary to
evaluate their social work practice. The requirements of field place value on developing
the ability to work within a social welfare agency or organization and gain experience with
various client populations including diverse racial and ethnic groups, and at-risk
populations.

Page 2



Thank you for your commitment to field, whether you are a student, field instructor,
faculty member, or agency colleague. We encourage your feedback about your experience
with our field education program. We are continually striving to improve and strengthen
our program.

Our best,
Ellen Thursby, PhD Allyson Shaffer, MSW
Director of Field Education Associate Director of Field Education
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Mission of CUA and NCSSS

As the national university of the Catholic Church in the United States, founded and
sponsored by the bishops of the country with the approval of the Holy See, The Catholic
University of America is committed to being a comprehensive Catholic and American
institution of higher learning, faithful to the teachings of Jesus Christ as handed on by the
Church. Dedicated to advancing the dialogue between faith and reason, The Catholic
University of America seeks to discover and impart the truth through excellence in teaching
and research, all in service to the Church, the nation and the world. (approved by the
Board of Trustees, December 12, 2006)

The Catholic University of America is a community of scholars, both faculty and students,
set apart to discover, preserve, and impart the truth in all its forms, with particular
reference to the needs and opportunities of the nation. As a university, it is essentially a
free and autonomous center of study and an agency serving the needs of human society. It
welcomes the collaboration of all scholars of good will who, through the process of study
and reflection, contribute to these aims in an atmosphere of academic competence where
freedom is fostered and where the only constraint upon truth is truth itself.

Further elaboration of the university’s mission is found at http://www.cua.edu/about-
cua/mission-statement.cfm '

NCSSS Mission

Derived from the mission of The Catholic Uhiversity of America and that of the social work
profession, the mission of the National Catholic School of Social Service is to educate
students from diverse faiths and cultures who in their professional endeavors will embody
the values of social justice, service, and scholarship. This mission is grounded in the justice
and charity foundation of Catholic social teachings and the tradition of a modern university
that welcomes all forms of human inquiry.

NCSSS Goals

1. To advance knowledge, values, and competencies through the development,
application, and dissemination of theory and research relevant to the social work
profession.

2, To serve and empower vulnerable, oppressed, and impoverished people and
communities. '
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3. To promote social and economic justice and individual and societal well-being in the
context of The Catholic University of America, social work profession, and the needs of the
local, national, and global community.
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FALL SEMESTER 2014
Monday, August 18
8:30 AM - 3:30 PM
Monday, August 25

Tuesday, August 26

Wednesday, August 27
8:30 AM - 3:30pm

Thursday, August 28
Students (1st year)
Monday, September 1

. Monday, September 8
8:30 AM-12:00 PM

Week of September 15
Week of October 6
Monday, October 13

Tuesday, October 14

Week of Qctober 20

FIELD EPUCATION CALENDAR
2014-2015

Field Instructors’ Training
Room: Caldwell Hall Auditorium

Fall semester classes begin

First day of field internships for Advanced Year
students (2nd year) and Senior Undergraduate
students '
Foundation Year (1st Year)

Toolkit meeting

Room: Caldwell Hall Auditorium

First day of field Internships for Foundation Year

Labor Day (Holiday)

Field Instructors’ Make-up Training
Room: Caldwell Hall Auditorium

Updated Field Information Form due: to Liaison

. Learning Plans due: to Liaison

Columbus Day Holiday (CUA Closed)

Administrative Monday: Monday classes meet
instead of Tuesday classes this day only. Be sure
to discuss with field instructor if this affects field
schedule, '

First Semester Early Assessment due: to Liaison
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Wednesday - Friday, November 26- 28

Week of December 1

Wednesday, December 17

Friday, Dec. 19 - Monday, Jan. 5 2014

SPRING SEMESTER 2015
Monday, January 12
Monday, January 19

Tuesday, February 24

Week of February 23
Monday, March 9~ Friday, March 13
Thursday, April 2 - Monday, April 6

Week of April 27

| Thanksgiving Holiday (No Field)

Final 1st semester field evaluation & log of hours
due to Liaison. Students whose evaluations are
not submitted on time will receive a grade of
Incomplete. Evaluation must be signed by both
field instructor & student in order to receive a
grade.

Final grades due

Students may take 2 weeks off from field during
this break, Coordinate with the field instructor.

Classes begin
Rev. Martin Luther King, Jr,, Day (CUA Closed)

*Administrative Monday: Monday classes meet

~ instead of Tuesday classes/field this day only. Be

sure to discuss with field instructor if this affects
field schedule.

Early Assessment due (if required)

Spring Bréak - No Field

Easter Break - No Field

DUE: All Final Evaluations and log of hours.
Must be signed by both Field Instructor and

Student. Submit original and copy to liaison.
Faxed copies cannot be accepted.
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Friday, May 1 Fnd of Field (unless additional hours required)

Monday, May 11 Grades for graduating students due by noon
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NATIONAL CATHOLIC SCHOOL OF SOCIAL SERVICE ADMINISTRATION

Dean, NCSSS: Will Rainford, PhD
Email rainford@cua.edu .
Phone: 202-319-5454

Assistant to the Dean: Candice Dailey
Email daileyc@cua.edu
Phone: 202-319-5454

Associate Dean & Chair, MSW Program: Marie Raber, PhD
Email raber@cua.edu
Phone: 202-319-5472

Chair, BSW Program: Dr. Eileen Dombo, PhD
Email: Dombo@cua.edu
Phone: 202-319-4946

Chair, PhD Program: Lynn Milgram Mayer, PhD
Email: mayer@cua.edu
Phone: 202-319-5583

Office of BSW & PhD Programs Administrative Assistant: Patricia King-Adams
Email: kingadams@cua.edu
Phone: 202-319-5632

Director of Field Education and Professional Development: Ellen Thursby, PhD
Email: thursby@cua.edu '
Phone: 202-319-5457 '

Associate Director of Field Education & Prof. Development: Allyson Shaffer, MSW
Email: shaffera@cua.edu
Phone: 202-319-4388

Office of Field Education Administrative Assistant: Nenita Sola
Email sola@cua.edu
Phone: 202-319-5457
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Director of Admissions and Financial Aid: Aileen Worrell, MSW, MBA
Email: worrell@cua.edu .
Phone: 202-319-5496 ‘ ¢

Office of Admissions Administrative Assistant: Nichole Petty
Email petty@cua.edu
Phone: 202-319-5496

Administrative Assistant to MSW Program: Terri Miller
Email: millert@cua.edu ‘
Phone: 202-319-5454

Page 13



Overview of Field Educatioﬁ

Field education is an essential part of social work education, identified as the
signature pedagogy of the profession. A Signature Pedagogy represents the central form of
instruction and learning in which a profession socializes its students to perform the role of
practitioner. The intent of field education is to connect the theoretical and
conceptual contribution of the classroom with the practical world of the practice setting. It
is a basic precept of social work education that the two interrelated components of
curriculum —classroom and field— are of equal importance within the curriculum, and each
contributes to the development of the requisite competencies of professional practice.
(http:/ /www.cswe.org/File.aspx?id=31580).

BSW Junior Field

The Junior Field Placement is our undergraduate social work student’s first
exposure to agency practice and the generalist social work model. This placement takes
place in the spring semester of the junior year and students are required to attend field 8
hours per weels, completing 96 hours in the placement. Students may complete the 8 hours
per week spread over 1 or 2 days depending on agency need and student schedule.

The aim of the junior field placement is to develop strong professional behaviors and time
management skills, while focusing on four core competencies: Identify as a professional
social worker and conduct oneself accordingly; Apply social work ethical principles to
guide professional practice; Apply critical thinking to inform and communicate
professional judgments; and Engage, assess, intervene, and evaluate with individuals,
families, groups, organizations, and communities.

BSW Senior Field & MSW Foundation Field

This field placement is 16 hours per week and provides students with an overview
of the social work profession and the generalist model of practice. Students gain
experience working with multiple client systems, including individuals, families, groups,
communities, and organizations, while learning and utilizing social work processes.
Working with diverse populations, students are expected to work toward addressing
problems of racism, sexism, homophobia and any other forms of oppression affecting the
wellbeing of their clients. Students learn to practice professional social work in a manner
consistent with the NASW Code of Ethics, including the ability to identity and analyze the
difference between professional and personal values, and how these may impact practice
effectiveness. '
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MSW Advanced Year Field

The advanced curriculum field experience builds on the generalist skills gained in
the foundation year. Students are placed in field agencies that provide them with
supervised practice experience consistent with their chosen concentration. Students select
one of the following concentrations or specializations: clinical, clinical health, clinical
military, combined, or social change.

Clinical students focus their advanced year learning on direct practice with individuals or
group, couples, and families, and take advanced theory and practice courses with different
populations. Students continue to develop skills in assessment, intervention, goal setting
and treatment planning, termination, and evaluation. Students interested in health care
systems are encouraged to consider the health care specialization for specific knowledge
related to social work in a health setting. Those interested in working with active duty
military, veterans and their families should consider the military specialization. Clinical
field placements are open to all students regardless of specialization. For example, a field
placement at a hospital is open to both clinical students and health care specializers. -

Combined concentrators take courses in both the clinical and social change sequences.
Their field placements offer both micro and macro learning opportunities so that students
gain advanced knowledge and skills to work at the micro, mezzo, and macro levels. While
there is variation between agencies, the focus between micro and macro activities should
be split fairly evenly over the course of the year.

Social Change (macro) students take courses related to theories of community
organization, social policy, planning, administration and management to gain an
understanding of problems and needs at a macro level, and to guide interventions for social
change. Students are placed in field agencies that focus on, among other skills,
management, social planning, policy analysis, research and advocacy to effect change ata
system level.
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The Field Internship Site
New Agency Application & Site Visit

Field education is an essential part of the social work curriculum at NCSSS. Agencies
begin the process of affiliating with NCSSS by completing the online Agency Information
Form available on our website form page, http://ncsss.cua.edu/field-new/field-forms.cfm.
Once the information is received by our office, we will schedule at site visit to learn more
about your agency’s function and miission, internship requirements, and field instructor
credentials.

Agencies are evaluated based on the following criteria:

» The agency is supportive of social work education.

« Agency practice adheres to the ethical standards of the social work
profession. '

» The agency can provide a variety of learning experiences for the student

» Field instructors meet academic and licensing criteria. Field instructors
should have a Masters of Social Work degree earned from a CSWE-accredited
college or university. Field instructors should be licensed as required in their
jurisdiction. To supervise an advanced clinical student, the field instructor
should be licensed at the independent clinical level.

» Field instructors must have a minimum of 2 years post MSW work
experience. Additionally, field instructors must work in the agency for a
minimum of one year prior to supervising students at that agency.

« The field instructor provides one hour per week of supervision,

s The field instructor must be in good standing with the appropriate
jurisdiction’s social work licensing board.

Affiliation Agreements

The university requires that a Statement of Agreement between The Catholic
University of America and the Agency be signed by both parties and maintained on file in
the Office of Field Education. This statement formally recognizes mutual expectations and
responsibilities of all parties involved in field education. Any proposed amendments to the
agreement must be reviewed and approved by the University General Counsel prior to
obtaining signatures. The agreement renews automatically, unless the Agency requires
annual renewal, or either party chooses to terminate the agreement.
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Orientation

Orientation is important for both the field instructor and the student. New field
instructors are expected to attend the Orientation to Field Conference prior to the start of
field in the fall. NCSSS encourages all field instructors to attend the orientation and thank
you conferences yearly. The Office of Professional Education offers a variety of workshops
and discounts for field instructors,

Orientation to the agency and internship for the student helps to set the tone for
learning for the year. A well-planned orientation acclimates the student to the agency, and
defines roles, responsibilities, and boundaries for the student. Orientation for the student
to the agency should include:

« A tour of the facility, office space, review of dress code, schedule and holiday

schedule, use of phones, texting, etiquette at meetings, required forms,

personnel/internship manuals, and reference materials.

* Review the history, mlssmn, funding sources, services and organlzatlonal chart of

the agency.

* Review policies and procedures, and social work code of ethics.

« Present procedures for documentation and record keeping.

» Discuss personal safety issues, training, and policies to protect the well-being of

the student.

Professional Liability Insurance

NCSSS has mandatory professional liability (malpractice insurance) coverage for
students. The policy provides $1,000,000 per claim and $3,000,000 in the aggregate.
Students are billed for this coverage when registered for Field /Field Seminar. Field
instructors and agencies may request proof of coverage through the field office.

Automobiie Insurance

The University does not provide automobile liability coverage to students. Some
agencies require students to use their own automobiles for field related activities. Students
are strongly discouraged from using their own automobiles to transport clients and assume
all liability if they elect to do so.

HIPAA

Neither NCSSS, nor its faculty, staff, or students are, as such, entities covered under
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). However, because NCSSS
faculty, staff, and students may require and have access to “individually identifiable health
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information” (I[HI) in order to meet field education objectives, NCSSS will advise its faculty,
staff, and students to treat all [IHI accessed during field education in accordance with the
HIPAA “Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information.” Faculty, staff
and students will also be expected to adhere to any individual mental health or health care
facility policy/procedure not addressed in this document but governing the facility to
which they or their students are assigned for field education. The final HIPAA privacy
regulations can be found at 45 CFR Part 164. '

Some NCSSS students will have HIPAA training in an employment setting or will
receive HIPAA training in their placement setting. In these cases, students may submit
documentation showing successful completion of the training to the Office of Field
Education by the end of their first semester in the field internship. When students have not
had HIPAA training, they are required to complete basic training by reading HIPAA
information available on our website (http://ncsss.cua.edu/field/HIPAA.cfm}) and then
satisfactorily complete an on-line quiz by earning a score of 80 or above. A student must
satisfy this requirement by the end of the fall semester in order to continue in field in the
spring semester; no exceptions will be made.

Background Checks, Drug Screenings, Health Status

Some agencies require health screenings, verification of immunizations, criminal
background checks, and/or drug screening prior to beginning the field placement. NCSSS
_does not require or facilitate such requirements of students. Rather, the field instructor
and/or the Human Resource Department of the agency should work directly with the
student to ensure that students meet agency requirements. Students are responsible for
obtaining any required background check and assume associated costs or fees.

Organizational Policies

Students must comply with the regulations and policies of the agency, particularly
as related to the internship. The field instructor is responsible for training students on the
policies of the agency, with particular attention given to conflict between social work ethics
and agency policy.
Safety and Security of Students

The safety of students is a shared concern between the field office, agency, and

students. The partnership between the field office, agency and student seeks to reduce
risks related to the internship and social work practice. The field office and agency provide
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information and training on safety in the field. The student is responsible for abiding by
agency policies and implementing strategies to reduce their own risk.

The following suggestions are shared to assist students in reducing risks to safety:

« Valuables should not be brought to placement settings or left in cars.
» Students should discuss with their field instructor how to safely store their
personal belongs, e.g. purse or backpack.
s Field visits should be planned with the field instructor or other agency personnel.
Students should not complete field visits without the knowledge and approval of the
field instructor or designee. The field instructor should be aware of who will be
visited, the address, and the expected length of the visit.
» Students should bring a cell phone, if available, on field visits.
» Students should discuss a plan for safety with their supervisor when they have
concerns about meeting with a specific client, Be sure to discuss how to situate
yourself to maximize safety, the location of the meeting, and identify appropriate
staff who is readily available.
» Students should discuss in supervision their experiences with emergency

. situations, their typical response to.emergency situations, and other feelings that
may impede their ability to perform maximally in field.

Critical Incidents

A Critical Incident is any unusual occurrence that involves student safety in the
course of conducting his/her duties and responsibilities as a field practicum student. The
Critical Incident Form documents the details of the incident.

1. The student shall advise the field instructor immediately after a critical

incident has occurred. : '

2. The field instructor and/or student shall notify the Field Office that an
incident has occurred, and submit the Critical Incident Form.

3. The Director of Field Education shall notify the Dean, the Program Chair, the
field liaison, or other faculty as appropriate for action and/or follow-up as
needed. '

4., When appropriate, CUA personnel, e.g. the Office of General Counsel, should
be notified and forwarded a copy of the Critical Incident Form and a written
report of any additional action that has been talcen.
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Drug Testing at Placement Sites

Some students can expect to be drug tested during the interview process at their
placement site. Some agencies also conduct random drug screenings. Students are
strongly encouraged not to engage in any recreational/illegal drug use during their
enrollment. Students are referred to the Student Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Policy,
found at http://policies.cua.edu/studentlife /studentconduct/alcoholdrugs.cfm. Should a
student test positive for drugs during their field placement, they will be terminated from
the placement and referred for a review,
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Professional Ethics and Conduct

A profession has an obligation to articulate its basic values, ethical principles, and
ethical standards, and the NASW Code of Ethics sets forth these values, principles, and
standards to guide the conduct of social workers. The Code is relevant to all social workers
and social work students, regardless of their professional functions, the settings in which
they work, or the populations they serve. Students are expected to be familiar with and
adhere to the NASW Code of Ethics. The complete Social Work Code of Ethics can be found
at: http: //www.socialworkers.org/pubs/Code/code.asp

Students should be particularly aware of the following legal and ethical obligations:

. Disclosure of Student Status - Students must identify themselves as social
work interns to clients and in written documentation.
. Mandatory Reporting/Duty to Warn- students are expected to follow the

Code of Ethics and state law and report incidents of suspected neglect and
abuse, and fulfill obligations related to suicide and homicide. Students should
be aware of agency policy related to mandated reporting/duty to warn and
discuss with their field instructor their ethical and legal obligation, while
adhering to agency policy. ‘Additional information on duty to warn by state is
available at http://www.ncsl.org/research/health/mental-health-
professionals-duty-to-warn.aspx
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Practicum Levels
Junior Field Placement

The Junior field placement takes place in the spring semester. Students complete 96
hours in an agency, working 8 hours per week. Students are placed, for example, in
schools, community social service agencies, early childhood programs, and nursing homes.
The focus of the internship is aiding student in developing professional behavior, time
management skills, and organization skills. Professional behavior includes dressing
appropriately for the agency, communicating with the field instructor, and following
through on assigned tasks. Initially, students shadow their field instructor to learn about
the agency’s function and the role of social work in the agency. Overtime, the student may
be assigned independent tasks or clients, '

Application Process

Students apply for field in the fall prior to the spring semester during which they
will complete field. Following a brief overview of junior field, students submit their junior
application and resume to the field office. Students are referred to an agency, and the
agency received the student’s resume. The student contacts the field instructor to set up an
interview. When the student is informed about whether she is accepted, she submits the
confirmation of field form to the field office. Students should finalize their placements prior
to leaving for winter break as field begins the first week of classes in the spring semester.

Students who are studying abroad in the fall of junior year and intend to complete
junior field in the spring semester should contact the field office prior to the end of
sophomore year and contact the field office in early October. The application form and
resume should be submitted to the field office by the deadline. Students will contact the
agency but finalize their placement acceptance during the first weel of classes in the spring
semester.

Supervision
Students should be supervised closely. Allow 15 to 30 minutes weekly to process
their experiences in the field.

Seminar

Students are SSS 352: Social Work Practice 1. This four credit course serves as the
first practice course and the field seminar for the junior year. '
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Competencies :

The junior field placement emphasizes four CSWE Competencies. Students will
continue to build on these competencies and practice behaviors throughout the senior year
field placement. The four competencies are:

1. Identify as a professional social worker and conduct oneself accordingly.

2. Apply social work ethical principles to guide professional practice.

3. Apply critical thinking to inform and communicate professional judgments.

4, Engage, assess, intervene, and evaluate individuals, families, groups,

organizations, and communities,

Learning plan and Evaluations

The learning plan is developed between the field instructor and the student. The
learning plan should address the competencies and practice behaviors, and identify
learning opportunities and activities in the agency. Closely linked to the learning plan, the
field instructor evaluates the student’s progress using the evaluation. Both forms are found
on the field webpage at http://ncsss.cua.edu/field-new/field-forms.cfm.

Senior Field Placement

The senior field placement, equivalent to the foundation year field placement, is a
yearlong, 16 hour per week generalist practice field placement. Students work with
individuals, families or groups, and complete macro tasks. Students will learn to apply the
theory and practice techniques learned in the class to their field settings. Skills learned in
the generalist practice model are transferrable across agency setting and populations.
These foundation skills are built upon in the advanced year.

Students are generally in field on Tuesdays and Thursdays. Field should be
completed in two days per week, but may be spread over 3 days per week, working a
minimum of four hours on a given day. Students must establish a set schedule in
conjunction with their field instructors.

Application Process

Students begin applying for senior year field in February. Students access the field
search engine and identify several agencies or practice settings in which they are
interested in working. Students are referred to one agency, and the agency receives the
student's application and resume. The student contacts the field instructor to set up an
interview. When the student is informed whether she is accepted, she submits the
confirmation of field form to the field office. If the student feels that their learning goals
cannot be met at the agency, the student may decline the placement. A student will only be
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referred to three agencies. Should a student not secure a field placement by the third
referral, the student may need to postpone completion of field until the following year.

Supervision

Students should be supervised closely, particularly as they begin field education.
One hour of social work supervision is required weekly.

Seminar

Students are enrolled in SSS 465 and 466: Undergraduate Concurrent Field
[nstruction.

Competencies

The senior field placement emphas'izes all CSWE Competencies, The competencies
are: ‘

Identify as a professional social worker and conduct oneself accordingly.

Apply social work ethical principles to guide professional practice.

Apply critical thinking to inform and communicate professional judgments.
Engage diversity and difference in practice.

Advance human rights and social and economic justice..

Engage in research informed practice and practice informed research.

Apply knowledge of human behavior and the social environment.

Engage policy practice to advance social and economic well-being and to deliver
effective social work services.

9. Respond to contexts that shape practice.

10. Engage, assess, intervene, and evaluate individuals, families, gr oups, organizations,
and communities.

i b ol o

Learning plan and Evaluations

- The learning plan is developed between the field instructor and the student. The
learning plan should address the competencies and practice behaviors, and identify
learning opportunities and activities in the agency. Closely linked to the learning plan, the
field instructor evaluates the student’s progress using the evaluation. Both forms are found
on the field webpage at http://nesss.cua.edu/field-new/field-forms.cfm.

MSW Foundation Year Placement

The foundation yéar MSW field placement is a yeariong, 16 hour per week generalist
practice field placement. Students work with individuals, families or groups, and complete
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macro tasks. Students will learn to apply the theory and practice techniques learned in the
class to their field settings. Skills learned in the generalist practice model are transferrable
across agency setting and populations. These foundation skills are built upon in the
advanced year.

Students are generally in field on Wednesdays and Thursdays. Field should be
completed in two days per week, but may be spread over 3 days per week. Students must
establish a set schedule in conjunction with their field instructors.

Application Process ‘

Students begin applying for foundation year field in February. Students access the
field search engine and identify several agencies or-practice settings in which they are
interested in working. Students are referred to one agency, and the agency receives the
student’s application and resume. The student contacts the field instructor to set up an
interview. When the student is informed whether she is accepted, she submits the
confirmation of field form to the field office. If the student feels that their learning goals
cannot be met at the agency, the student may decline the placement. A student will only be
referred to three agencies. Should a student not secure a field placement by the third
referral, the student may need to postpone completion of field until the following year.
Students who are admitted to the program in the:'summer should be aware that there are
limited placement options. o

Supervision
Students should be supervised closely, particularly as they begin field education.
One hour of social work supervision is required weekly.

Seminar
Students are enrolled in §SS 673/674: Foundation Year Field and Integrative
Seminar '

Competencies
The foundation year field placement emphasizes all CSWE Competencies. The
competencies are:

Identify as a professional social worker and conduct oneself accordingly.
Apply social work ethical principles to guide professional practice.

Apply critical thinking to inform and communicate professional judgments.
Engage diversity and difference in practice. ‘
Advance human rights and social and economic justice..

Engage in research informed practice and practice informed research.
Apply knowledge of human behavior and the social environment.

Nl wn e
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8. Engage policy practice to advance social and economic well-being and to deliver
effective social work services.

9. Respond to contexts that shape practice,

10. Engage, assess, intervene, and evaluate individuals, families, groups, organizations,
and communities.

Learning plan and Evaluations

The learningplan is developed between the field instructor and the student. The
learning plan should address the competencies and practice behaviors, and identify
learning opportunities and activities in the agency. Closely linked to the learning plan, the
field instructor evaluates the student’s progress using the evatuation. Both forms are found

on the field webpage at http://ncsss.cua.edu/field-new/field-forms.cfm.

MSW Advanced Year Clinical/Clinical Health /Clinical Military

With a long history of preparing highly qualified clinical social work practitioners,
our Clinical Concentration and specializations focus on strengths-based practice in a
variety of clinical settings and prepares students for licensed independent practice. The
advanced year MSW field placement is a yearlong, 20 hour per week internship. Students
must complete 600 hours of field placement.

Application Process

Students attend an orientation to advanced year field and the concentrations in
early December, The field application is due mid-January. At that time, students select
their concentration and specialization, as applicable. Students should carefully consider
their professional goals as once the concentration is selected, the concentration cannot be
changed.

- Students again access the field search engine and identify several agencies or
practice settings in which they are interested in working. Students are referred to one
agency, and the agency receives the student’s application and resume. In the advanced
year, several field placements are competitive, meaning that there are more social work
students than internship spaces. Students are encouraged to prepare for their interviews.
The referral process is the same as in the foundation year. The student contacts the field
instructor to set up an interview. When the student is informed whether she is accepted,
she submits the confirmation of field form to the field office. If the student feels that their
learning goals cannot be met at the agency, the student may decline the placement. A
student will only be referred to three agencies. Should a student not secure a field
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placement by the third referral, the student may need to postpone completion of field until
the following year.

Supervision
Students should be supervised closely, particularly as they begin field education.
One hour of social work supervision is required weekly.

Seminar
Students are enrolled in either:
SSS 871/872: Advanced Field Education & Integrative Seminar [ & II: Clinical
SSS 877/878: Advanced Field Education & Integrative Seminar I & [I:
Health/Military

Competencies

The advanced year field placement emphasizes all CSWE Competencies. In the
advanced year, students are expected to master advanced clinical practice behaviors. The
competencies are:

Identify as a professional social worker and conduct oneself accordingly.

Apply social work ethical principles to guide professional practice.

Apply critical thinking to inform and communicate professional judgments.
Engage diversity and difference in practice.

Advance human rights and social and economic justice..

Engage in research informed practice and practice informed research.

Apply knowledge of human behavior and the social environment.

Engage policy practice to advance social and economic well-being and to deliver
effective social work services.

Respond to contexts that shape practice. :
0. Engage, assess, intervene, and evaluate individuals, families, groups, organizations,
and communities.

XN W
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Learning plan and Evaluations

The learning plan is developed between the field instructor and the student. The
learning plan should address the competencies and practice behaviors, and identify
learning opportunities and activities in the agency. Closely linked to the learning plan, the
field instructor evaluates the student’s progress using the evaluation. Both forms are found

on the field webpage at http://ncsss.cua.edu/field-new/field-forms.cfm.

Page 27



MSW Advanced Year Combined

Combined concentration students integrate clinical and macro components of social
work practice into their course requirements and their field placement. In the field
placement, students engage in both advanced clinical practice and macro practice, building
on the skills learned in the foundation year. The advanced year MSW field placementisa
yearlong, 20 hour per week internship. Students must complete 600 hours of field
placement,

Application Process

Students attend an orientation to advanced year field and the concentrations in
early December. The field application is due mid-January. At that time, students select
their concentration and specialization, as applicable. Students should carefully consider
their professional goals as once the concentration is selected, the concentration cannot he
changed.

The referral process is the same as in the foundation year. Students again access the
field search engine and identify several agencies or practice settings in which they are
interested in working. Students are referred to one-agency, and the agency receives the
student’s application and resume. In the advanced year, several field placements are
competitive, meaning that there are more social work students than internship spaces.
Students are encouraged to prepare for their interviews. The student contacts the field
instructor to set up an interview. When the student is informed whether she is accepted,
she submits the confirmation of field form to the field office. If the student feels that their
learning goals cannot be met at the agency, the student may decline the placement. A
student will only be referred to three agencies. Should a student not secure a field
placement by the third referral, the student may need to postpone completion of field unti}
the following year.

Supervision

Students should be supervised closely, particularly as they begin field education.
One hour of social work supervision in required weekly.

Seminar

Students are enrolled SSS 873/874: Advanced Field Education & Integrative Seminar 1 &
II: Combined
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Competencies

The advanced year field placement emphasizes all CSWE Competencies. In the
advanced year, students are expected to master advanced clinical practice behaviors. The
competencies are:

Identify as a professional social worker and conduct oneself accordingly.

Apply social work ethical principles to guide professional practice.

Apply critical thinking to inform and communicate professional judgments.
Engage diversity and difference in practice.

Advance human rights and social and economic justice..

Engage in research informed practice and practice informed research.

Apply knowledge of human behavior and the social environment.

. Engage policy practice to advance social and economic well-being and to deliver
effective social work services.

9, Respond to contexts that shape practice.

10.  Engage, assess, intervene, and evaluate individuals, families, groups, organizations,
and communities.

© NG W N

Learning plan and Evaluations

The learning plan is developed between the field instructor and the student. The -

* learning plan should address the competencies and practice behaviors, and identify
learning opportunities and activities in the agency. Closely linked to the learning plan, the
field instructor evaluates the student’s progress using the evaluation. Both forms are found
on the field webpage at http://ncsss.cua.edu/field-new/field-forms.cfm.

MSW Advanced Year Social Change

The social change concentration prepares social work students to contribute to
domestic and international initiatives designed to bring about a more equitable and just
world through structural change at organizational, community, and societal levels. The
advanced year MSW field placement is a yearlong, 20 hour per week internship. Students
must complete 600 hours of field placement.

Application Process

Students attend an orientation to advanced year field and the concentrations in
early December. The field application is due mid-January. At that time, students select
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their concentration and specialization, as applicable. Students should carefully consider
their professional goals as once the concentration is selected, the concentration cannot be
changed. '

The referral process is the same as in the foundation year. Students again access the
field search engine and identify several agencies or practice settings in which they are
interested in working. Students are referred to one agency, and the agency receives the
student’s application and resume. In the advanced year, several field placements are
competitive, meaning that there are more social work students than internship spaces.
Students are encouraged to prepare for their interviews. The student contacts the field
instructor to set up an interview. When the student is informed whether she is accepted,
she submits the confirmation of field form to the field office. If the student feels that their
learning goals cannot be met at the agency, the student may decline the placement. A -
student will only be referred to three agencies. Should a student not secure a field
placement by the third referral, the student may need to postpone completion of field until
the following year,

Supervision

Students should be supervised closely, particularly as they begin field education.
One hour of social work supervisionin required weekly.

Seminar ‘ '
Students are enrolled SSS 875/876: Advanced Field Education & Integrative
Seminar I & Ik Social Change

Competencies

The advanced year field placement emphasizes all CSWE Competencies. In the
advanced year, students are expected to master advanced clinical practice behaviors, The
competencies are: '

Identify as a professional social worker and conduct oneself accordingly.

Apply social work ethical principles to guide professional practice.

Apply critical thinking to inform and communicate professional judgments.
Engage diversity and difference in practice.

Advance human rights and social and economic justice..

Engage in research informed practice and practice informed research.

Apply knowledge of human behavior and the social environment.

. Engage policy practice to advance social and economic well-being and to deliver
effective social work services.

© NP U A WN e
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9. Respond to contexts that shape practice.
10.  Engage, assess, intervene, and evaluate individuals, families, groups, organizations,
and communities.

Learning plan and Evaluations

The learning plan is developed between the field instructor and the student. The
learning plan should address the competencies and practice behaviors, and identify
learning opportunities and activities in the agency. Closely linked to the learning plan, the
field instructor evaluates the student’s progress using the evaluation. Both forms are found
on the field webpage at http://ncsss.cua.edu/ﬁeld-new/field-forms.cfm.
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Practicum at placement of employment

In order to be considered for an Employment-based Internship (EBI) or Work-
Residency Internship (WRI), students must submit a completed Proposal to the Director of
Field Education, by the Field Application deadline. The student must be an employee in
good standing, is required to have been employed with the agency for at least one year, and
must maintain employment during the internship period. The agency must be approved by
the Field Office, and an Affiliation Agreement is required. Students may only utilize this
option for one year of field placement. '

In order to be considered for an Employment-based Internship (EBI) or Work-
Residency Internship (WRI), students must submit a field application and a completed
Proposal to the Director of Field Education, by the EBI/WRI Application deadline. The
agency must be approved by the Field Office, and an Affiliation Agreement is required.
Students may only utilize this option for one year of field placement. Therefore, it is critical
to plan accordingly, when considering completing one of the two years of field placement
as an EBI or WRI. The student will be required to complete the alternate year at an agency
NOT affiliated with their employment.

The following is a link to the field forms page, which provides the formats for EBI
and WRI proposals - http://ncsss.cua.edu/field-new/field-forms.cfm
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Requirements for Field Instructors
Eligibility

All field instructors are required to hold a Master of Social Work degree froma
CSWE-accredited college or university. Field instructors supervising undergraduate
seniors or foundation level MSW students, must have licensure at the LGSW level. Field
instructors supervising students in the Advanced Clinical or Combined concentrations,
must have advanced clinical licensure (LICSW, LCSW-C). Field instructors supervising
advanced year Social Change students are not required to have licensure, unless required
by the local jurisdiction. Field instructors must have a minimum of 2 years post-MSW
professional experience. They must be employed with the field agency for at least one year
prior to serving as a field instructor. In addition, they must have the approval of their
supervisor to take on this additional responsibility.

Supervision

Students are required to have consistent and reliable supervision from their field
instructor weekly throughout the field placement. Supervision varies somewhat by agency,
however, it is expected to total approximately one hour of face to face individual or group
supervision per week for seniors & MSW students. Agency-based supervision of juniors
will vary by placement.

Students may also have a task supervisor who is a non-MSW. The task supervisor
may make case and task assignments, provide guidance on the day to day operation of the
agency, and serve as the contact for the student in the agency. In situations where the
student has both a task supervisor and social work supervisor, there should be
collaboration between the two supervisors in evaluating the student.
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Liaison/Seminar Instructor
Seminar Instructor/Field Liaison

The field seminar is an essential component of the student’s field experience. The
course is required in conjunction with field. The weekly seminar is conducted by an NCSSS
faculty member. The field liaison/seminar instructor facilitated group discussion in small
group seminars, and is also the faculty liaison to the field instructor and student at the
agency. The campus-based course offers students the opportunity to discuss casework,
challenges and learning opportunities. The seminar instructor will communicate regularly
with student and field instructor regarding progress in the placement, and will make a visit
to assess progress by the end of the Fall semester. The site visit will address learning plan
goals, progress, and any questions/concerns of instructor and student, The grade for field
placement/seminar is calculated in combination with field evaluation and seminar
assignments.

Site visits

Site visits are conducted by the field liaison/seminar instructor. In general, the field
liaison will communicate with field instructors by phone or email, in first few weeks of field
placement. They are also hearing from students weekly in seminar, regarding progress and
learning opportunities in the field placement. Field liaison will schedule an agency site visit
with the student and field instructor in the middle to end of the Fall semester. This site
visit is intended to include the field instructor, student and liaison. The meeting should
include a review of the Learning Plan, current projects or responsibilities of the student,
and plans for continued learning in the placement, This is a time for questions and
discussion of connecting the classroom learning to the field, and for students and field
instructors to identify progress and any needs for support. Itis a helpful time to review
expectations from the school, support field instructors in their role as educators, and assist
students in reinforcing learning goals and identifying training opportunities. Field liaisons
can make a follow- up visit as requested or needed. Field liaisons are always available to
students and filed instructors as concerns or questions arise.

Grades

The student receives a grade each semester for the 3-credit Field
Instruction/Integrative Seminar. The final grade is based on Field Instruction {60%) and
Seminar work (40%). Grade assignment is in accordance with the University grading
system found in the CUA Student Handbook. Students must receive a grade of ‘C’ or above
in Seminar and in Field in order to progress to the next semester of Field Instruction.
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MSW CURRICULUM AT A GLANCE

FOUNDATION CURRICULUM

570
571
572
381
382
590
603
606

673/674  Foundation Field Education and Seminar I & I (3 credits ea.)

Diversity in a Multicultural Society (3 credits)
Hiuman Behavior and the Social Fnvironmeitt (3 credifs)
Hinnan Development and Psychopathiology (3 credits)

Social Welfare Policy and Services I (3 credits)
Social Welfare Policy and Services IT (3 credits)

Social Work Research Methods (3 credits)
Generalist Practice with Individuals, Families and Groups (3 credits)
Generalist Practice with Groups, Conmumities and Organizations (3 credits)

Full-Time Program
Fall Semester Spring Semester
605 606
570 572
s 590
581 582
673 674
Part-Time Program Plan 1 *
Fall 1 Spring | Fall 2 Spring 2
570 572 605 606
571 590 673 674
581 582
Part-Time Program Plan 2 *
Spring 1 Summer 1+ Fall | Spring 2
Summer 2*
570 581+ 605 606
571 582% 673 674
572 590
Part-Time Program Plan 3
Fall 1 Spring 1 Summer 1+ Fall 2 Spring 2
Summer 2%
570 572 - 581+ 605 606
571 590 582 * 673 674
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*Please note that for billing purposes all graduate students enrolled in 8 or more
credits hours per semester will be billed at the full-time rate.

ADVANCED YEAR CURRICULUM

Clinical Concentration

801, 802, 803, 804 (elect 2)

Clinical SW with Older Adults; Adults; Adolescents and Young
Adults; Children -

821, 822 (elect 1)

Clinical SW with Families: Traditional Model; Clinical SW
with Families: Strengths-based Model

723,724, 725 (elect 1)

Psychodynamic theory; Cognitive —Behavioral theory;
Transpersonal theory

756, 757 (elect 1)

Bvaluation of SW Practice, Evalmhon of SW Programs

740

Ethics

871, 872

Clinical Field Instruction and Integrative Seminar I & 11

6 semester hours

Elect 6 semester lronrs of free electives

Healtheare Specialization (Instead of 871, 872, and electives above, select courses below)

877,878

Healthcare Field Instruction and Integrative Seminar 1 & 11

665

Theory and Models of Healthcare

Choose 1 of the following: 723, 724, 725, 653, 655,
662, 663, 668

Psychodynamic theory; Cognitive-Behavioral theory;
Transpersonal theory; Attachment theory and Neurobiology;
SW Response to Trauma: Policy & Practice Perspectives;
Death; and Treatment of Chemical Dependency

Military, Veterans, and Their Families Specialization

801, 802, 803, 804 (elect 2)

Clinical 8W with Older Adults; Adults; Adolescents and Young
Adults; Children

822 Clinical SW with Families: Strengths-based Model

724 Cognitive —Behavioral theory

756, 757 (elect 1) Lvaluation of SW Practice, Evaluation of SW Programs

740 Lthics

877,878 Healthcare Field Instruction and Integrative Seminar { & 11
503 SW Practice w/ Military, Veterans, Families

669 Policy to Support Praclice with Troops, Veterans, and Families
539 Military Culture: Implications for Practice

Electives are for students who oversubscribe beyond
61 hours or who wish to audit.

Select among the following: Social Work Response to Trauma,
Altachment Theory and Neurobiology, Death, Treatment of
Chemical Dependency, and Homelessness: Individual and
Social Concerns

Social Change Concentration

831, 832, 835, 886 (elect 3)

Advanced Policy Analysis; Management of Non-Profit
Organizations; Community Organizing; !ssues in Internationat
Social Development

880, 946 (elect 1) Organizational Theory & Change; Theories of Social Justice
757 Evaluation of SW Programs

740 Ethical Issues in SW

875,876 Social Change Field Instruction & Integrative Seminar 1 & 1I

6 semester hours

Elect 6 semester hours of free electives
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Combined Concentration

801, 802, 803, 804 (elect 1) ‘ Clinical SW with Older Adults; Adults; Adolescents and Young
Adults; Children

831, 832, 815, 886 (elect 2} Advanced Policy Analysis; Management of Non-Profit
: , Organizations; Community Organizing; Issues in International
Social Development

723, 724, 725 (elect 1) Psychodynamic theory; Cognitive ~Behavioral theory;
“Transpérsonal theory

880, 946 (elect 1) Organizational Theory & Change; Theories of Social Justice

156, 757 (elect 1) Evaluation of SW Practice; Evaluation of SW Programs

740 Bihical Tssues in SW

873,874 ' Combined Field Instruction & Integrated Seminar | & H

3 semester hours Elect 3 semester hours of free electives
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THE UNDERGRADUATE MAJOR IN SOCIAL WORK: A SUMMARY

Consult the University website and your advisor for additional liberal arts requirements.

$SS 101 Introduction to Social Work

Freshman Year | SSS 326 Diversity in Multicultural Society

BIO 103 General Biology 1

DRA 205 Introduction to Speech Communication or DRA 403 Public
Speaking

558 223 Human Behavior & The Social Environment |
Sophomore Year | ENG 326 Workshop: Writing Improvement
S8S 225 Human Behavior & The Social Environment [}

, SSS 302 Social Welfare Policy |

Junior Year SSS 340 Research Methods

SSS 341 Social Work Research and Statistics Il
SSS 303 Social Welfare Policy 11

SSS 352 Social Work Practice |

SSS 453 Social Work Practice I1

Senior Year SSS 465 Undergraduate Concurrent Field Education [
- | 8§85 490 Coordinating Seminar

$SS 454 Social Work Practice 111

5SS 466 Undergraduate Concurrent Field Education I
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Administrative Policies

Leave

Sicl leave

Students are allowed one day per semester for sick leave. Any time beyond that has
to be made up. For students suffering extended illnesses, make-up arrangements need to be
negotiated with the student, the agency, and the Office of Field Education.

Other absences

All absences from field instruction must be made up. This includes time lost due to
tardiness, as punctuality and attendance are required. In an emergency, students are
expected to notify the agency of their absence.

Winter Break leave

Students may take a two week leave from their agency during the winter break. The
shorter break ensures minimal disruption to clients and the agency. Students taking a
longer break may do so only with their field instructor's approval, and students must make
up the missed time prior to the break.

Fxams _

Itis possible that the University will schedule exams for NCSSS students on field
days. In this case, exams take priority. Otherwise, students are expected to attend field.
Students must make up the time missed for the exam.

Holidays

Students may observe religious holidays that fall on field days. Students should
plan with their field instructors to miss the field day and a plan to make up the hours. Some
agencies close to observe holidays not observed by the university. The student should plan
with the field instructor ways to make up the hours.

Snow Days

When itis safe to do so, students should go to the field agency on snow days when
the agency is open. Students need to plan with their field instructor ways to make up the
missed hours due to snow closures or non-attendance.

Federal Work Study

Since Fall 1999, an addendum for those sites agreeing to supervise students as part
of the Federal Work-Study Program has been attached to the agreement. Any agency
assigned an intern receiving this funding must sign this addendum.
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Problems in Field

in the event a problem should arise with the placement, the initial problem solving
should begin with the Field Instructor and student. If this is unsuccessful, they are to
inform each other of their intention to ask for additional help and contact the assigned field
liaison. The field liaison will mediate the problem by scheduling a joint conference with the
student and the field instructor to explore their concerns. During the joint conference, an
action plan should be developed which includes: a clear identification of problems in
learning and teaching; specification of learning objectives to be achieved and behavior
changes expected; any necessary actions and procedures to be taken; and a time frame to
review the progress made on the action plan,

If after a joint conference with the student, field instructor, and field liaison, it is
believed that termination is the only recourse, then the placement will be ended. The
student will then be required to meet with the director of field education and the program
chair to determine whether the student will be referred to another agency for continued

“field placement. _

The student in concert with the field liaison and field instructor must work together
to professionally terminate the field placement. Any student who prematurely ends a field
placement without the approval of the Field Director risks receiving a failing grade, not
being placed in another setting, and being terminated from the program. It is expected that
most placement concerns can be resolved through a joint conference process. However, as
agencies voluntarily supervise students, they have the right to terminate an internship.
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June 14, 2008

David M. O'Conneall, C.M.’

President

Catholic University of America

Office of the President

620 Michigan Avenug, NE

Washington, District of Columbia 20064

Dear President O'Connell:

Atits June 2008 meeting, the Commission on Accreditation (COA) reviewed the
Self-Study, Accreditation Review Brief, and the program's response to the Brief
as the reaffirmation application for the baccalaursate and master of social work
at programs at Cathollc University of Ametica. The COA voted to reaffirm the
program’s accreditation for eight years, ending February 2016.

Attached Is the Timetable for Reaffirmation-Revised Protocol which includes
all of the steps in the reaffirmation process. Please be in touch with Dr.
RosislLee Camacho Salinas, Accreditation Specialist 11 in the Office of Social
Work Accreditation and Educational Excellence, If there are any questions
about this letter or the procedures and actions of the Commission on
Accreditation.

Wynne Sandra Korr, PhD., Chalr

Commission on Accreditation BN
WSKRRLCS

CC: James R. Zabora, Sc.D.
Pean
Catholic University of America

Lynn Milgram Mayer, Ph.D.
~ Baccalaureate Program Director

/ Marle J. Raber, Ph.D.
Chair, M.S.W. Program

Enclosures:  Procedures for Reaffirmation

r
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GHAIR,

BOARD OF DIREGTORS
Barpara W, Shank, Ph.0.

St Cathedng Unlversity & University of
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February 11, 2014

Will C. Rainford, LMSW, Ph.D, .Dean
The National Catholic School of Social Service
The Catholic University of America

Dear Dean Rainfordr:

| have reviewed the Substantive Change Proposals submitted by
the National Schol of Social Service of The Catholic University of
America. It is proposed that the Master of Social Work program
be offered to full and part-time students fully online.

The proposed change as described in both Substantive Change
Proposals Is in compliance with the 2008 Educational Policy and
Accreditation Standards.

Thank you for your diligencé in addressing the policy and
standards of the Council on Social Work Education in this
expansion of the your Sociai Work program.

Sincerely

L.ynne Taylor, MSW, Ph.D., ACSW
Accreditation Specialist
Council on Social Work Education
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October 7, 2013

Dr. William C. Rainford

Catholic University of America

National Catholic School of Social Service,
620 Michigan Ave NE

Washington, DC 20064

Dear Dr. Rainford:

| am in receipt of your letter requesting a one year postponement of your
reaffirmation date from February 2016 to February 2017 for the BSW and
MSW programs at The Catholic University of America National Catholic
School of Social Service (NCSSS). The postponement is approved due
to ongoing administrative and institutional restructuring as detailed in a
letter from Associate Dean and MSW Program Chair, Marie J. Raber.

The reaffirmation decision date for the program is now scheduled for
February 2017. Please contact Dr. Lynne Taylor regarding the new
timeline for your program.

Sincerely,

Jo Ann R. Coe Regan, PhD, MSW
Director, Office of Social Work Accreditation

Cc: Dr. Marie J. Raber, Associate Dean and MSW Program Chair
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CHIE, MIDDLE STATES COMMISSION ON HIGHER EDUCATION
Sm— )4 Narket Steeet, Philadelphia, PA 19104-2680, Tel: 267-284.5000, Fiixs 215-662-5501
MSA  wennscheorg ‘

STATEMENT OF ACCREDITATION STATUS

THE CATHOLIC UNIVERSITY OF AMERICA
Cardinal Station
Washington, DC 20064
Phone: (202) 319-5000; Fax: (202) 319-5199
“www.cua.edu

Chief Executive Officers  Mr. John Garvey, President
INSTITUTIONAL INFORMATION
Enrollment 3694 Undergraduate; 3144 Graduate

(Headcount):

Control: - Private (Non-Profit)

Affiliation: Religious- Roman Catholic Church
Carnegie Research - High Research Activity
Classification:

Degrees Offered: Postsecondary Certificate (>=1 year, <2 years), Associate's,
Bachelor's, Postbaccalaureate Certificate, Master's, Post-Master's
Certificate, Doctor's - Professional Practice, Doctor's -
Research/Scholarship;

Distance Education Fully Approved

Programs:

Accreditors Recognized by U.S. Secretary of Education: American Bar Association,
Council of the Section of Legal Education and Admissions fo the Bar; American
Psychological Association, Commission on Accreditation; Commission on Accrediting of the
Association of Theological Schools; Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education; National
Association of Schools of Musie, Commission on Accreditation; National Council for
Accreditation of Teacher Education

Other Accreditors: Accreditation Board for Engineering and Technology American
Chemical Society American Library Association Association of American Law Schools
Association of Theological Schools in the United States and Canada Council on Social Work
Education National Architectural Accrediting Board National Association of Schools of
Music National Recognition from the American Association of School Librarians in
partnership with the National Council for Accreditation of Teacher Education Nurses'
Examining Board of the District of Columbia

Instructional Locations
Branch Campuses: None

Additional Locations: Brothers of Charity, Kruibeke, Belgium; Crystal City, Crystal City,
VA, Hall of States, Washington, DC; Mindanao, 21 Rosales Street, Philippines; Naval

https://www.msche.org/documents/sas/B6/Statement%2001%20Acoreditation%20Status.htm ~ 4/11/2014
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Surface Warfare Center, West Bethesda, MD; Night Vision Lab, Fort Belvoi.r, VA; Southern
Maryland Higher Education Center, California, MD

Other Instructional Sites: District of Columbia Department of Transportation (DDOT), 55
M Street SE, fourth floor, DC; Eleanor Roosevelt High School, Greenbelt, MD; Hilton
Rockville, Rockville, MD; Library of Congress, Washington, DC; Marymount University
-Ballston, Arlington, VA; NASA Goddard Space Flight Center, 8800 Greenbelt Rd.,
Greenbelt, MD; National Gallery of Art, 4th & Constitution Ave NW, DC; Northern Virginia
Community College, Arlington, VA; United States Department of Veterans A f{fairs,
Washington, DC; Virginia Commonywealth University, Richmond, VA

ACCREDITATION INFORMATION
Status: Member since 1921
Last Reaffirmed: June 24, 2010

Most Recent Commission Action:

June 28, 2012: To accept the progress report. The Periodic Review Report is due June 1,
2015,

Brief History Since Last Comprehensive Evaluation:

June 24, 2010: To reaffirm accreditation. To commend the institution for the quality of its
self-study process and self-study report. To request a progress report, due by
April 1, 2012, documenting (1) inclusion in the new strategic plan of
measurable objectives, assignment of responsibilities, explicit links to unit
plans, and appropriate assessment measure {Standard 2) and (2) continuing
institutional support for the assessment of institutional effectiveness and of
the achievement of intended student learning outcomes {Standards 7 and
14). The Periodic Review Report is due June 1, 2015,

January 3, 2012: To acknowledge receipt of the substantive change request and to include the
online Master of Arts in Human Resource Management and Master of
Science in Management degrees within the scope of the institution's
accreditation. To remind the institution that the progress report, due by April
I, 2012, should document (1) inclusion in the new strategic plan of
measurable objectives, assignment of responsibilities, explicit links to unit
plans, and appropriate assessment measure (Standard 2) and (2) continuing
institutional support for the assessment of institutional effectiveness and of
the achievement of intended student learning outcomes (Standards 7 and
14). The Periodic Review Report is due June 1, 2015.

Next Self-Study Evaluation: 2019 - 2020
Next Periodic Review Report: 2015

Date Printed: April 11, 2014

DEFINITIONS

Branch Campus - A locafion of an institution that is geographically apart and independent of the main campus of the
institution. The location is independent if the location: offers courses in educational programs leading to a degree,
certificate, or other recognized educational credential; has its own faculty and administrative or supervisory organization;

https://www.msche.org/documents/sas/86/Statement%2001%20Accreditation%20Status.htm  4/11/2014
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and has its own budgetary and hiring authority.

Additional Location - A location, other than a branch campus, that is geographically apart from the main campus and at
which the institution offers at least 50 percent of an educational program, ANYA ("Approved but Not Yet Active")
indicates that the location is included within the scope of accreditation but has not yet begun to offer courses. This
designation is removed after the Commission receives notification that courses have begun at this location,

Other Instructional Sites - A location, other than a branch campus or additional location, at which the institulion offers
one or more courses for credit,

Distance Edueation Programs - Fully Approved, Approved (one program approved) or Not Approved indicates whether
or not the institution has been approved to offer diploma/certificate/degree programs via distance education (programs for
which students could meet 50% or more of the requirements of the program by taking distance education courses). Per the
Commission's Substantive Change policy, Conimission approval of the first two Distance Education programs is required
to be "Fully Approved." If only one program is approved by the Commission, the specific name of the program will be
listed in parentheses afler "Approved.”

EXPLANATION OF COMMISSION ACTIONS

An institution's accreditation continues unless it is explicitly suspended or removed. In addition to reviewing the
institution's accreditation status at least every 5 years, actions are taken for substantive changes (such as a new degree or
geographic site, or a change of ownership) or when other events occur that require review for continued compliance., Any
type of report or visit required by the Commission is reviewed and voted on by the Commission after it is completed.

In increasing order of seriousness, a report by an institution to the Commission may be accepted, acknowledged, or
rejected.

Levels of Actions:

Grant or Re-Affirm Accreditation without follow-up

Defer a decision on initial accreditation; The institution shows promise but the evaluation team has identified issues of
concern and recommends that the institution be given a specified time period to address those concerns.

Postpone a decision on (reaffirmation of) accreditation: The Commission has determined that there is insufficient
information to substantiate instifutional conipliance with one or more standards.

Continue accreditation: A delay of up to one year may be granted to ensure a current and accurate representation of the
institution or in the event of circumstances beyond the institution’s control (natural disaster, U.S. State Department trave!
warnings, etc.)

Recommendations to be addressed in the next Periodic Review Report: Suggestions for improvement are given, but no
follow-up is needed for compliance,

Supplementa! Information Report: This is required when a decision is postponed and are intended only to allow the
institution to provide further information, not to give the institution time to formulate plans or initiate remedial action,

Progress report: The Comunission needs assurance that the institution is carrying out activities that were planned or were
being implemented at the time of a report or on-site visit,

Monitoring report: There is a potential for the institution to become non-compliant with MSCHE standards; issues are
more complex or more numerous; or issues require a substantive, detailed report. A visit may or may not be required.

Waming: The Commission acts to Warn an institution that its accreditation may be in jeopardy when the institution is not
in compliance with one or more Commission standards and a follow-up report, called a monitoring repert, is required to
demonstrate that the institution has made appropriate improvements to bring itself into compliance. Warning indicates that
the Commission believes that, although the institution is out of compliance, the institution has the capacity to make
appropriate improvements within a reasonable period of time and the institution has the capacity to sustain itself in the
long term. .

https:/Awww.msche.org/documents/sas/86/Statement%200f%20Accreditation%20Status.htm  4/11/2014
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Probation; The Commission places an institution on Probation when, in the Commission’s judgment, the institution is not
in compliance with one or more Commission standards and that the non-compliance is sufficiently serious, extensive, or
acute that it raises concern about one or more of the following;:

1, the adequacy of the education provided by the institution;
2. the institution’s capacity to make appropriate improvements in a timely fashion; or
3. the institution’s capacity to sustain itself in the long term..

Probation is often, but need not always be, preceded by an action of Warning or Postponement. If the Commission had
previously postponed a decision or placed the institution on Warning, the Commission may place the institution on
Probation if it determines that the institution has failed to address satisfactorily the Commission’s concerns in the priot
action of postponement or warning regarding compliance with Commission standards. This action is accompanied by a
request for a monitoring report, and a special visit follows. Probation may, but need not always, precede an action of Show
Cause.

Suspend accreditation: Accreditation has been Continued for one year and an appropriate evaluation is not possible. This
is a procedural action that would result in Removal of Accreditation if accreditation cannot be reaffirmed within the period
of suspension,

Show cause why the institution's accreditation should net be removed: The institution is required to present its case for
accreditation by means of a substantive report and/or an on-site evaluation. A "Public Disclosure Statement” is issued by
the Commission.

Remove accreditation. H the institution appeals this action, its accreditation remains in effect until the appeal is completed.

Other actions are described in the Commission policy, "Range of Commission Actions on Accreditation,"

hitps://www.msche.org/documents/sas/86/Statement%200f%20Accreditation%20Status.htm  4/11/2014




ERTIFICATE of ACCREDITATION

in mooo&m:nm with its accreditation standards and procedures, the

X

Commission on

Oo__mm__mmﬁm Nursing Education

has accredited the
Doctor of Nursing Practice Program

at

The Catholic University of America

3 \K %CUN\F! ~November 7, 201

~ .
Director of he Oo:._ixmmao: on Collegiate Nursing Education , Effective Date of Accreditation

The Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education is listed by the -.._.m“ Secretary of Education
~as a nationally recognized accrediting agency.

This certificate is valid for the duration of the period of accreditation.




States Authorization Status




STATE

Illinois
Indiana
Louisiana

Maryland
Montana

Ohio
Pennsylvania

AUTHORIZED or
EXEMPT

Yes

Yes

Partial

Partial

Yes

Yes
Yes

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

No Restrictions

No Restrictions

Unrestricted authorization from Louisiana Board of Regents; however, the
university has elected not to seek authorization for its online Nursing programs
from the Louisiana Board of Nursing.

Applications permitted for M.S. Management, M.A. Human Resources
Management, and Ph.D. in Nursing

No Restrictions

No Restrictions

No Restrictions




" Quina
Governor

Lineksay Anderson
Chiengo
Chintr

Members

Jay D, Bergman
Jotiet

Jocelvn Smith Carter
Chicago

Alexi Giannoulias
Chicago

Jane Hays
Champaign

Kym Hubbard
Chicago

Alan Karnes
Carbond'ale

Paul L. Langer
Lincolmyood

Proshanta K, Nandi
Springfield

Santos Rivera
Chiciige
Rebert J, Ruiz
Oak Lawn

Elmer L. Washington
Park Forest

Christing Wiseman
Palos Heights

Addison I3, Woodward, Jr.
Chicago

Student Members
Justin McDermott
Crystal Lake

_Adrian Miller
Carbondale

Exccutive Direclor
Dr. James L. Applegate

IL.LINOLS BOARD O HIGHER FDUCATION

431 EAST ADAMS STREET, 2ND FLOOR
SPRINGFIELD, ILLINO1S 62701-1404

Aprif 22, 2014

s, Catherine Sullivan

University Distance Education Coordinator
The Catholic University of America

620 Michigan Avenue, N.IE,

Washington. D.C., DC 20064

Dear Ms. Sullivan:

This letter is in response to the 4/4/2014 electronic submission (request 1D: 832)
describing the necessily to obtain approvals in Illinois. It is understood from the
correspondence that the institution meets the description of an Institution with Limited
Physica! Presence in llinois as defined under 23 Illinois Administrative Code Section
1030,10. The institution is reporting that it:

» s authorized to operate in at least one other state;

s is accredited by a body recognized by the U.S. Department of Education and/or
the Council for Higher Education Accreditation;

* will not offer degrees or credit bearing coursework from a physical location
owned, operated or rented by the institution in Ilinois, or will not provide
instruction for students at a physical location owned, operated or rented by the

. institution in Iilinois; and

* does not maintain a physical facitity in llinois or does not physicatly provide

core academic support services in Hlinois.

Based on the information provided, the Illinois Board of Higher Education (IBHE) grants
continuous approval until such time that any one of the aforementioned conditions
change. When any one of the conditions change and is no longer true, the institution
shall notity the [BHE staff, Otherwise, the institution does not need to contact the IBHE
for an annual approval. '

Thank you for keeping out office informed of program development at your institation,

Kl

Daniel P. Cullen, Ph.D.
Deputy Director for Academic Affairs

DPC:sm

Phone: (217) 782-2551 » Fax: (217) 782-8548 « TTY; {88B) 261-2881 » www.ibhe.ory

Printed on Recycled Paper




INDIANA GOMMISSION
el A
HicuveErR“EDUCATION

May 7, 2014

CATHERINE SULLIVAN

UNIVERSITY DISTANCE EDUCATION COORDINATOR
THY, CATHOLIC UNIVERSITY OF AMERICA

620 MICHIGAN AVENUE, NE

WASHINGTON, BC 20064

Dear Ms. Sullivan:

You are hereby notified that The Catholic Unjversity of America at Washington, DC has been granted
status as an out-of-state institution with no physical presence in Indiana authorized to enroll and offer
online instruction or distance education to Indiana residents delivered from a campus in another state in
accordance with Indiana Administrative Code IC 21-18.5-6-12, This status is effective from May 7,2014
to May 6, 2015, '

The statement of authorization should be printed verbatim in either the catalog or on the enrollment
agreement. Please note that the regulation statement should now reflect the following:

“This institution is authorized by:

The Indiana Board for Proprietary Education
101 W. Ohio St., Suite 670

Indianapolis, IN 46204-1984”

We congratulate you on seeking and obtaining authotized status with no pltysical presence in the State of
Indiana.

Sincerely,

7 M

ROSS MILLER
Director of Autherization and Regulatory Comphance

Board for Proprietary Education % 101 W. Obio St., Suite 670 4 Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-1984 & pww.bpe.in gor
Phans: 3174644400 Bxit. 138 ¢ Phone: 317.464,4400 Exct. 141 % Facsimifer 317.233-4219 4 Teresa Lubbers, Commissioner




W. Clinton Rasberry, Jr.
Cliair

Yilliam H, Fenstermaker

Viee Chair

Albert D, Sam Il
Secrelary

Comissioner of
Higher Educafion

Cathering Sullivan

BOARD OF REGENTS .
_ PO Box 3677
Baton Rouge, LA 70821-3677
Phone (225) 342-4253, FAX (225) 342-9318
Wiy Fegents. vlafe i its

September 26, 2014

_Dist_arice Education Coordinator
The Catholic:University of America
620 Michigan Avenue, N.E.

Washington, DC 20064

Dear Ms, Sullivan?

Mark T, Abraham
Chiariotte A, Bollliger
Raymond J, Brandt
Joel E. Dupré’
Pamela B. Egan
Josepl P. Farr

Chris D. Govinan
Robert W, Lavy
Richaid A. Lipsey
Edward D. Markle
Roy O, Martin HI
Josepli C. Wiley
Brookste I.. Bonviflain, Student:

Enclosed is the license certificate for your institution, The institution’s license is awarded for
two years and the $1,500.00 annual license fee will be required by September 2015.

The Board of Regents' regulations require that if an institution desires to use the fact of licensure
in any form of advertisement or publications, only the following language can be used:

(The Catholic University of America) is currently licensed by the Board of Regents of
the State of Louisiana, Licenses are renewed by the State Board of Regents every
two years., Licensed institutions have met minimal operational standards set forth by
the state, but licensure does not constitute accreditation; guarantee the
transferability of credit, nor signify that programs are certifiable by any professional
agency or organization. -

The Staff of the-Board of Regents thanks you for your cooperation throughout the
licensing process. Should you have any questions, feel free'to contact my office.

Sincerely,

Nancy Beall

Assistant Program Manager

Enclosuie

The Bowrd of Régents is an’ Equiil Oppaoriwiity anid ADA Employer
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Martn O'Matley
Governor

Anthony G. Brown
Lt. Governor

Anwer Hasan
: Chalrperson

Creating a state of achfevement

Catherne M, Shuiz
Acling Secrelary

UPDATED January 13, 2015

John Garvey

President
"The Catholic University of America
620 Michigan Avenue, N.E.
Washington, D.C, 20064

Dear President Garvey:

The Maryland Higher Education Commission (Commission) has reviewed the out-of-
state online registration application submitted by The Catholic University of America (the
University). Tam pleased to inform you that the University’s application has been determined to
be in compliance with the requirements of the Education Article, Title 11, Subtitle 2, Annotated
Code of Maryland and COMAR 13B.05.01, The University is now registered with the
Commission through June 30, 2015 to enroll Maryland students in the fully online distance
education progtams listed on the attached page. The Commission’s registration of the
University’s fully online programs is not an authorization of the institution to operate in
Maryland or an apptoval or endorsement of the University's programs.

As a condition of registration, the University must:

¢ Promptly notify the Commission of any changes in institutional operations, as outlined in
COMAR 13B.05.01.11;

« Comply with the principles of good practice for distance education in COMAR
13B.02.03;

s Make refunds to Maryland students as required by COMAR 13B.05.01,10; and

» Make public and post on its website (1) information on its registration with the

Commission and (2) the process for Maryland students to make complaints about the
institution,

An electronic renewal form and the regulations for out-of-state fully online programs are
available on the Commission’s website under “Out-of-State Online Registration” at .
www.anhec.maryland.gov, In order to continue offering the registered fully online programs
after June 30, 2015, or to offer new programs, the renewal application should be completed and
submiited to the Commission by April 15, 2015 for programs to be offered from July 1, 2015

-through June 30, 2016, '

In the event that the University enrolls Maryland students in a fully online program
during a period when its registration has expired, the University will have to file a renewal

MARYLAND HIGHER EDUCATION COMMISSION
6 . Liberty Strael » 10™ Floor » Ballimore, MD 21201
T 410.767.3300 » 800,574.0203 » F 410.332.0270 « TTY for the Deaf 800.735.2258 vavw.nihec,state.mg.us




application and submit a financial guarantee in order for the institution to continue to offer its
programs {o Maryland students while the renewal application is under review by the
Commission,

We look forward to continuing the cooperative relationship developed between the
University and the Maryland Higher Education Commission.

Sincérely,

" Catherine M, Shultz, J.D.
Acting Secretary of Figher Education

CMS:SAB:;jme

ce: Catherine Sullivan, University Distance Education Coordinator, The Catholic University of
America -

Attachment: List of registered programs

MAaRYLANO HIGHER EDUCATION COMMISSION
6 N, Libarly Straat « 10" Floor » Baltimore, MD 21201
T 410,767.3300 « 800.974.0203 « F 410,260,3200 » TTY for the Deaf 800.735.2258 wvw.mhec.slate.md.us




MS in Management M.S.
MA. in Human Resources Management M.A.
Nursing Ph.D.

MARYLAND HiGHER EDUCATION COMMISSION
6 N, Liberty Street » 10 Floor  Baltimore, MD 21201
T A410,767.3300 « 800,974.0203 » F 410.260.3200 « TTY for the Deaf 800.735,2258 www.mhec.sate.md.us




MONTANA UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
OFFICE OFTHE COMMISSIONER OF FIGHER EDUCATION

2500 Broachvay - PO Rox 203201 ~ Helena, Montana 59620-3201
(106 444-6570 - RAX (406) 4441469

January 30, 2015

SENT VIA EAMAIL

Catherine Sullivan

Distance Education Coordinator
The Catholic University of America
620 Michigan Avenue N.E.
Washington, D.C. 20064

Re: Authorization for The Catholic University of America
Dear Ms. Sullivan:

Thank you for resubmitting state authorization documentation to the Board of Regents of the Montana University
System in response to our recent change in regulations. Your submittal establishes that The Catholic University of
Amterica is accredited by the Middle States Commission on Higher Education and maintains a Financial
Responsibility Composite Score of 3.0. This submiltal satisfies the requirements of Montana Code Annotated § 20-
25-107 and Board of Regents Policy §221, which regulate the award of post-secondary degrees by educational
institutions in the State of Montana, This letter shall serve as formal notice that The Catholic University of America
remains authorized to offer post-secondary degree programs in the State of Montana.

Thank you for your interest in Montana, and please do net hesitate to contact my oflice with any questions or
concerns,

Regards,

R. Nell c/‘loiseé{

R. Neil Moisey, PhD
Deputy Commissioner — Academics, Research & Student Affairs
Oftice of the Commissioner of Higher Education

MONTANASTATE UNIVERSITY - Ciunpreses ot Bitfings, Bozeman, Great Falls, and Havee
THE UNIVERSITY OF MONTAMA - Campiises at Duite, Dillon, Helena, aiid Missoula
Dawson Cormnuntty College {Glendive} - Tatheail Valley Camattinlty Cotleps (Halispolty - Miles Commuiiity Calle go (0Miés City).



Board of Regents
Unwersﬁy System of Ohlo p

. John R Kasich, Governor ©
~ -John Garey, Chancellor -

uly 16, 2014

o Ms, Catherme Sultevan : '
. -University Distanhce Education Coordmator
- {The Catholic University of America - -

7. DearMs. Sullivan;

Thank you for your submission requesting approval to offer online programs to Ohio residents that
.contain on-ground components to be completed within the state, Upon review of your request, the
+ Chancellor’s staff has determined that The Catholic University of America meets the Chancellor s
standards for offering such experiences in the state. As a result, the institution may offer

-clinical/practicum experiences in Ohlo to fulfill program naquwements for the mst:tutlon 5 on[ine Doctor.

| . of Nursing Practlce degree pmgram

: "Authorization to offer such experiences in the state will continue through December 31, 2017.The =

. Chancellor's staff will contact The Cathalic University of America prior to that date to inquire about the - -

- Institution’s intent to remain authorized, which will require a review and submission of fees to
- determine contihued authorization. No additional fees will be assessed for this request during the
~ linstitution’s current authorization, However, fees will be assessed for new requests submitted to the .
" agency. Please contact me at (614) 728- 3095 or msmlth@regents state.oh.us 1f Fcan be of further
assistance, S : ol

: Sincere_ly,

Madeline J, Smith
Assistant Director .
. Program Approvai Operat:ons o

~ 25 South Front Street ~phone 614.466.6000
Columbus, Ohlo 43215 . fax  G14.466.5866
T : . sw_eb -www.()hicHIgherEd._org_ E




k. O L o o, | Board of Regents
s E@ “University Systamof Ohlo .
o - zdohnﬁ.Raslch,Governor oo
-JohnCamy,Ch_anca!tor ]

' July 16, 2014

' Ms Catherlne Suilwan
- University Distance Education Coordmator
- - The Catholic University of America .

* Dear Ms, Sullivan: =

Thank you for your submissicn requesting approval to offér an online program to Ohio residents that
* contains on-ground compaonents to be completed within the state. Upon review of your request, the
Chancellor’s staff has determined that The Cathaolic University of America meets the Chancellor’s
- standards for offering such experiences in the state. As a result, the institution may offer

s clintcal/practicum experiences In Ohio to fulfill program requnrements forthe institution 5 onl!ne Masteri_ o

- '_ofScience In Nursing Famtly Nurse Practitioner degree program

: .Authonzatron to offer such exper!ences in the state. wr!l continue through December 31 2017. The
Chancellor’s staff will contact The Catholic University of Amerlca prior to that date to Inquire about the
institution’s intent to remaln authorized, which will require a review and submission of fees to
‘determine continued authorization, No additional fees will be assessed for this request during the
institution’s current authorization. However, fees will be assessed for new requests submitted to the.

_.agency. Please contact me at (614) 728 3095 or msmlth@regents state oh us |ft can be of further '

e asmstance .

: Sincerely,

=

Madellne]. Smith
Assistant Director
Program Approval Operations -

26 South Front Strest : _phone 614.466.6000
. Columbus, Ohio 43215 . fox  614.466.5866
' : web.. - www.OhiotigherEd.org



O

Board of Regents
~ University System of Ohio

John R. Kesich, Governor
John Carey, Chanceller

' September 24, 2014

K"Catherme Sullivan .

-Distance Education Coordinator

Catholic University of America |
620 Michigan Avenue NW .-~
Washrngton, bC 20064

- Dear Ms Suliwan, )

- T_hank you for your submission reqrrésﬂhg approval to offer online programs to Ohio residents that _
- contain on-ground components within the state. Upon review of your request, the Chancellor's staff has -

determined that the Catholic University of America meets the Chancellor’s standards for offering such

experiences in the state. As a result, the institution may offer the fol!owmg experiences in Ohro to fumll i
: program requrrements forthe Indicated degree programs. L

Master sofSocraI Work freld p!acement

Authorrzatron to offer such experiences in the state wrll continue through December 3.1 2017 The e
Chancellor's staff will contact the Catholic University of America prior to that date to inquire about the . .
- Institution’s intent to remain authorized, which will require a review and submission of feesto =~ .
- determine continued authorization, No additional fees will be assessed for this request during the - .

s lnstitution’s current authorization. However, fees will be assessed for new requests submitted to the .
© “agency. Please contact Matt Exline, Assistant Director for Program Development and Approval, at -

: _{614)728 -3095 or mextme@regents state, oh us If the Ohlo Board of Regents can ever be of further )
- assrstance :

Srncerely

Stephanre Mc ann Ph D
Associate Vice Chancellor

"~ Program Development and Approv‘él . :

25 Soulh Front Street phone 614.466.6000
- Columbus, Ohic 43215 - fax 614.466.5866 .
oL . ~web  www.OhloHigherEd.org



PA State Distance Education Certification - Confirmation hitps://collab.pde.pa.gov/PLS/Lists/PA State Distance Education Certifica..,

pts PLS » PA State Distance Education Certification: Confirmation

Out-of-State Distance Education Provider
Confirmation of Registration

Please print this form for your records.

The Catholic University of America

has registered in Pennsylvania as an out-of-state distance education provider to enroll residents
of Pennsylvania in the following distance education program:

Human Resource Management

Note: This confirmation of registration is valid only if the institution maintains accreditation by an
accrediting agency that is authorized by the United States Department of Education or the Council on
Higher Education Accreditation {CHEA). It is valid only if the institution maintains the appropriate degree-
granting authority in the home state, It does not convey degree-granting authorization by Pennsylvania. It
does not authorize the institution to establish or exercise a physical presence in Pennsylvania. The
Pennsylvania Department of Education reserves the right to revoke this registration.

Valid until July 1, 2015

Bureau of Postsacondary and Adult Education
333 Market Street | Hardshurg, PA 17126 | 717.783.8228 | F 717.772.3622 | www.education.state. pa.us

i P“‘"

lof1 7/9/2014 7:57 PM



PA State Distance Education Certification - Confirmation ‘ htps:/fcollab.pde.pa.gov/PLS/Lists/PA State Distance Education Certifica...

ps PLS » PA State Distance Education Certification: Confirmation ! -

Out-of-State Distance Education Provider
Confirmation of Registration

Please print this form for your records,

The Catholic University of America

has registered in Pennsylvania as an out-of-state distance education provider to enrol! residents
of Pennsylvania in the following distance education program:

Master of Science in Management

Note: This confirmation of registration is valid only if the institution maintains accreditation by an
accrediting agency that is authorized by the United States Department of Education or the Council on
Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA). It is valid only If the institution maintains the appropriate degree-
granting authority in the home state. It does not convey degree-granting authorization by Pennsylvania. It
does not authorize the institution to establish or exercise a physical presence in Pennsylvania, The
Pennsylvania Department of Education reserves the right to revoke this registration.

Valid until July 1, 2015

Bureau of Postsacondary and Adult Education
333 Market Street | Harrisburg, PA 17126 | 717.783.8228 | F 717.772.3622 | www.educalion.slate.pa.us
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pLs PLS * PA State Distance Education Certification: Confirmation

Out-of-State Distance Education Provider
Confirmation of Registration

Please print this form for your records.

The Catholic University of America

has registered in Pennsylvania as an out-of-state distance education provider to enroll residents
of Pennsylvania in the following distance education program:

Master of Science in Nursing

Note: This confirmation of registration is valid only if the institution maintains accreditation by an
accrediting agency that is authorized by the United States Department of Education or the Council on
Higher Education Accreditation {CHEA). It is valid only if the institution maintains the appropriate degree-
granting authority in the home state. It does not convey degree-granting authorization by Pennsylvania. it
does not authorize the institution to establish or exercise a physical presence in Pennsylvania. The
Pennsylvania Department of Education reserves the right to revoke this registration.

Valid until July 1, 2015

‘ Bureau of Postsecondary and Adult Educatlon _
333 Market Street | Harrisburg, PA 17126 [ 717.783.8228 | F 717.772.3622 | www.education.stale.pa.us
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pis PLS » PA State Distance Education Certification: Confirmation

Out-of-State Distance Education Provider
Confirmation of Registration

Please print this form for your records.

The Catholic University of_America

has registered in Pennsylvania as an out-of-state distance education provider to enroll residents
of Pennsylvania in the following distance education program:

‘Online Clinical Master of Social Work

Note: This canfirmation of registration is valid only if the institution maintains accredftation by an
accrediting agency that is authorized by the United States Department of Education or the Council on
Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA). it is valid only if the institution maintains the appropriate degree-
granting authority in the home state. It does not convey degree-granting authorization by Pennsylvania. It
does not authorize the institution to establish or exercise a physical presence in Pennsylvania. The
Pennsylvania Department of Education reserves the right to revoke this registration.

Valid until July 1, 2015

Bureau of Postsecondary and Adult Education
333 Market Street | Harisburg, PA 17126 | 717.783.8228 | F 717.772.3622 | www.education.state.pa.us
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Out-of-State Distance Education Provider
Confirmation of Registration

Please print this form for your records.

The Catholic University of America

has registered in Pennsylvania as an out-of-state distance education provider to enroll residents
of Pennsylvania in.the following distance education program:

Online Doctor of Philosophy in Nursing

Note: This confirmation of registration is valid only if the institution maintains accreditation by an
accrediting agency that is authorized by the United States Department of Education or the Council on
Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA). It is valid only if the institution maintains the appropriate degree-
granting authority in the home state. It does not convey degree-granting authorization by Pennsylvania. It
does not authorize the institution to establish or exercise a physical presence in Pennsylvania. The
Pennsylvania Department of Education reserves the right to revoke this registration.

Valid untif July 1, 2015

Bureau of Postsecondary and Adult Education
333 Market Street | Hardsburg, PA 17126 | 717,783.8228 | F 717.772.3622 | www.educalion.stale.pa.us
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Out-of-State Distance Education Provider
Confirmation of Registration

Please print this form for your records.

The Catholic University of America

has registered in Pennsylvania as an out-of-state distance education provider to enroll residents
of Pennsylvania in the following distance education program:

Online Doctor of Nursing Practice

Note: This confirmation of registration is valid only if the institution maintains accreditation by an
accrediting agency that is authorized by the United States Department of Education or the Councif on
Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA). It is valid only if the institution maintains the appropriate degree-
granting authority in the home state. It does not convey degree-granting authorization by Pennsylvania.’ It
does not authorize the institution to establish or exercise a physicaf presence in Pennsylvania. The
Pennsylvania Department of Education reserves the right to revoke this registration.

Valid untifl July 1, 2015

Bureau of Postsecondary and Adult Education
333 Market Street | Harisburg, PA 17126 | 717.783.8228 | F 717.772.3622 | www.education.state.pa.us
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FEDERAL S"IUDENTAI S'IART HERE. GO FURTHER"

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

FEDERAY STUDENT AID
SCHOOL ELIGIBILITY CHANNEL
SCHOOL PARTICIPATION TEAM

PHILADELPHIA TEAM
Reverend Very Rev. David M, O'Connell, C.M., 07/31/2009
President _ .
Catholic University of America (The) OPE ID 00143700

620 Michigan Avenue, Northeast
Washington, DC 20064-0002

Dear Reverend O'Connell, C.M.;

The Philadelphia School Participation Team has completed its review of Catholic University
of America (The)'s (Institution) application to participate in the Title IV, HEA prograrus.

Our analysis of the materials which you submitted, indicates that the Institution meets the
minimum requirements of institutional eligibility, administrative capability, and financial
responsibility as set forth in 34 CFR Parts 600 and 668.

To complete the recertification process, the Institution must print, review, sign and return
two copies of the Program Participation Agreement {PPA) to the following address:

United States Department of Education
Federal Student Aid, Schools Channel -
Aftention: Philadelphia School Pamcipatlou
Team

Union Center Plaza
11830 First Street, NE
‘Washington, DC 20202

After the signed copies of the PPA are received from you, the Philadelphia School
Participation Team will generate an Eligibility and Certification Approval Repott (ECAR).
The ECAR will summarize the critical elements of the Institution's approved application. The
ECAR will also identify the Institution's highest level of offering, any nondegree or short
term training programs and any additional locations which are Title IV, HEA eligible.

Upon execution of the PPA by the Secretaty, the Institution shall be cextified to participate'in
Title IV, HEA programs until June 30, 2015, The Philadelphia School Participation Team

http//eligeert.ed.govieapp/owa/ppa_trans_lelter?ope=001437&id=29881

8/3/2009




A Lransmittal Letter, Catholie University of Amertca {1he) - UU143 70U Fagelord,

will notify the respective Federal Student Aid (FSA) program offices of the Institution's
eligibility to receive Title IV funds. The Institution has thirty days from the date of this letter
to sign and return two copies of the PPA. The Institution's failure to respond within the
allotted time frame will constitute a withdrawal of the Institution's application from
consideration.

Should you have any questions, ple%se contact the Philadelphia School Participation Team at
(215) 656-6442,

Sincerely,

ek /Mw

Mlchael Frola

Team Lead

School Participation Team, NE
Philadelphia Team

cc: Mr. Donald Bosse, Financial Aid Director

http:/feligeert.ed. gov/capp/owa/ppa trans letter?ope=001437&1d=29881 8/3/2009
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FEDERAL STUDENT AlDES n'Z”%S'lARTIiEIU: GO l-URIHFR

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

FEDERAL STUDENT AID
SCHOOL ELIGIBILITY CHANNEL

PROGRAM PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

Effective Date of ‘The date on which this Agreement is sighed on behalf of the
Approval: Secretary of Education

Approval Expiration

Dato: June 30, 2015

Reapplication Date: ~ March 31, 2015

Name of Institution: Catholic University of America (The)
Address of Institution: 620 Michigan Avenue, Northeast
Washington, DC 20064-0002

OPE ID Nuinber: 00143700
DUNS Number: 111243036
Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN): 530196583

The oxecution of this Agreement by the Institution and
the Secrefary is a prerequisite to the Institution's initial
or eontinued participation in any Title IV, HEA Program.

The postsecondary educational institution listed above, referred to hereafier as the “Institution,"
and the United States Secnetaw of Education, referred to hereafter as the "Seeretary," agree that
the Institution may participate in those student financial assistance programs authorized by Title
1V of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (Tltle 1V, HEA Programs) indicated under
this Agleement and further agrees that such participation is subject to the terms and conditions

set forth in this Agreement. As used in thi§ Agreement, the term "Department” refers to the U.S.
Department of Education.

SCOPE OF COVERAGE

This Agreement applies to all locations of the Institution as stated on the most current
BLIGIBILITY AND CERTIFICATION APPROVAL REPORT issued by the Department. This

Agreement covers the [nstitution's eligibility fo participate in cach of the following llsted Title -
1V, HEA programs, and incorporates by refercnce the regulations cited.

hitp://eligeert.ed, gov/eapp/oww/ppa cloc?ope—001437&1d 29881 8/3/2009
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o FEDERAL PELL GRANT 'PROGRAM, 20 US.C. 1070a et seq; 34 CFR Part 690,

o FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LLOAN PliOGRAM, 20 US.C. 1071 et seq; 34 CFR Part 632.
» FEDERAL DIRECT STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM, 20 US.C. 1087 of seq; 34 CFR Part 685.

. FEDERAL I’ERIﬁNS LOAN PROGRAM, 20 U.S.C. 1087aa el seq; 34 CFR Part 674.

+ FEDERAL SUPPLEMENTAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY GRANT PROGRAM, 20
U.S.C. 1070b et seq; 34 CER Part 676,

« FEDERAL WORK-STUDY PROGRAM, 42 US.C. 2751 et seq; 34 CFR Part 675,

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. The Institution understands and agrees that it is subject to and will comply with the program
statutes and implementing regulations for institutional eligibility as set forth in 34 CFR Part
600 and for each Title IV, HEA. program in which it participates, as well as the general
provisions set forth in Part F and Part G of Title IV of the HEA, and the Student Ass1stance
General Provisions regulations set forth in 34 CFR Part 663.

The recitation of any portion of the statute or regulations in this Agreement does not limit
the Institution's obligation to comply with other applicable statutes and regulations.

2. a. The Institution cettifies that on the date it signs this Agreement, it has a drug abuse
prevention program in operation that it has determined is accessible to any officer,
employee, or student at the Instittition.

b, The Institution certifies that on the date it signs this Agreement it is in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of Section 485(f) of the HEA. (Campus Security Policy and
Crime Statistics).
3. The Institufion agrees to comply w1th -

a. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and the implementing regulations,
34 CFR Parts 100 and 101 (barring discrimination on the basis of race, color or national
origin);

b. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 and the lmplementmg legulatlons 34
CFR Part 106 (batring discrimination on the basis of sex);

¢. The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 and the implementing
regulations, 34 CFR Part 99;

d. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the implementing 1egulatlons, 34
CFR Part 104 (batring discrimination on the basis of physical handicap); and

. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and the implementing regulations, 34 CTR Part
110.

f. The Standards for Safeguarding Customer Information, 16 C.F.R. Part 314, issued by
the Federal Trade Commission (IFTC), as required by the Gramm-Leach-Bliley (GLB)
Act, P.L. 106-102. These Standards are intended to ensure the security and
conﬁdentlallty of customer records and information. The Secretary considers any breach
to the security of student records and information as a demonstration of a potential lack
of administrative capability as stated in 34 C.F.R. 668.16(c). Institutions are strongly
encouraged to inform its students and the Department of any such breaches.

4. . . . .
The Institution acknowledges that 3¢ CTR Parts 602 and 667 require accrediting agencies,
State regulatory bodies, and the Secretary to share information about institutions. The

htip:f/eligeert.ed.gov/eapp/owa/ppa docl‘?ope=001437&id=29881 8/3/2009
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Institution agrees that the Secretary, any accrediting agency recognized by the Secretary, and
any State regulatory body may share or report information to one another about the Institution
without limitation.

5, The Institution acknowledges that the HEA prohibits the Secretary from recognizing the
accreditation of any institution of higher education unless that institution agrees to submit any
dispute mvolvmg the final denial, withdrawal, or teunmaﬂon of accledltation to initial
arbitration pnm to any other legal action,

SELECTED PROVISIONS FROM
GENERAL PROVISIONS REGULATIONS, 34 CIR PART 668

By enfering into this Program Participation Agreement, the Institution agrees that:

(1) It will comply with all statutory provisions of or applicable to Title 1V of the HEA, all
applicable regulatory provisions prescribed under that statutory authority, and all applicable
special arrangements, agreements, and limitations entered into under the anthority of statutes
applicable to Title IV of the HEA, including the requirement that the institution will use funds it
receives under any Title IV, ITEA program and any interest or other earnings thereon, solely for
the purposes specified in and in accordance with that program;

(2) As a fiduciary responsible for administering Federal funds, if the institution is permitted to
request funds under a Title IV, HEA program advance paymert method, the institution will time
its requests for funds under the program to meet the institution's 1mmednte Title IV, ITEA
program needs;

(3) It will not request from or charge any student a fee for processing or handling any
application, form, or data required to determine a student's eligibility for, and amount of, Title
IV, HEA program assistance;

(4) Tt will establish and maintain such administrative and fiscal procedures and records as may be
necessaty to ensure proper and efficient administration of funds received from the Secretary or
from students under the Title IV, HEA programs, together with assurances that the institution
will provide, upon request and in a timely manner, information relating to the administrative’
capability and financial responsibility of the institution to--

- (i) The Secretary;
(i) The State [regulatory bodies] for the State or States in which the institution or any of the
institution's branch campuses or other locations are located,

(i) A guaranty agency, as defined in 34 CFR part 682, that puarantees loans made under the
Federal Stafford Loan, and Federal PLUS programs for altendance at the institution or any of the
institution's branch campuses or other locations;

(iv) The nationally recognized acerediting agency that aceredits or preaceredits the institution or
any of the institution's branch campuses, other locations, or educational programs;

(v) The State agency that legally authorizes the institution and any branch campus or other
location of the institution to provide postsecondary education; and

(vi) In the case of a public postsecondary vocational educational institution that is approved by a
State agency recognized for the appmvai of public postsecondary vocational education, that State
agency; .

(5) It will comply with the provisions of §668.15 relating to factors of ﬁnancml responsibility;
(6) 1t will comply w1th the provisions of §668.16 re atmg to standards of administrative
capability;

(7) It will submit reports to the Secretary and, in the case of an institution participatihg in the
Federal Stafford Loan, Federal PLUS, or the Federal Perkins Loan Program, to holders of loans

hitp:/feligeert.ed. gov/eapp/owa/ppa_doclope=001437&id=29881 8/3/2009
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made to the institution's students under these programs at such times and containing such
information as the Secretary may 1easonab1y require to carry out the purpose of the Title IV,
HEA programs;

(8) It will not provide any statement to any student or certification to any lender under the
Federal Stafford Loan or Federal PLUS Program that qualif‘ es the student for a loan or loans in
excess of the amount that the student is eligible to borrow in accordance w1th §§425(n), 428(x)
(2), 428(b)(1)(A) and (B), and 428H of the HEA;

(9) 1t will comply with the requirements of Subpart I of 34 CER part §§668 conccrning
institutional and financial assistance information for students and prospective students;

(10} In the case of an institution that advertises job placement rates as a means of atiracting
students to enroll in the institution, it will make available to prospective students, at or before the
time that those students apply for enrollment-

(i) The most recent available data concerning employment statistics, graduation statistics, and
any other information necessary to substantiate the truthfulness of the advertisements; and

(ii) Relevant State licensing requirements of the State in which the institution is locatéd for any
job for which an educational program offered by the institution is designed to prepare those
prospective students;

(11) In the case of an institution participating in the Federal Stafford Loan, or Federal PLUS
Program, the institution will inform all eligible borrowers, as defined in 34 CFR part 682,
enrolied in the institution about the availability and eligibility of those borrowers for State grant
assistance from the State in which the institution is located, and will inform borrowers from
another State of thc source for further information concerning State grant assistance from that
State;

(12) 1t wilt provide the certifications described in paragraph (¢) of this section;

(13) In the case of an institution whose students receive financial assistance pursuant to section
484(d) of the HEA, the institution will make available to those students a program proven
successful in assisting students in obtaining the recognized equivalent of a high school diploma;

(14) It will not deny any fortn of Federal financial aid to any eligible student solely on the
grounds that the student is participating in a plogmm of stucly abroad approved for credit by the
institution;

(15) In the case of an institution seeking to participate for the first time in the Federal Stafford
Loan and Federal PLUS programs, the institution has included a default management plan as part
of its application under §600.20 for participation in those programs and will use the plan for at
least two yeats from the date of that application. The Secretary considers the requirements of this
paragraph to be satisfied by a default management plan developed in accordance with the default
reduction measures described in the September 2005 Dear Partner Letter, GEN-05-14;

(16) In the case of an institution (hat changes ownership that results in a change of control, or
that changes its status as a main campus, branch campus, or an additional location, the institution
will, to participate in the Federal Stafford Loan and Federal PI,US Programs, devélop a default
management plan for approval by the Secretary and implement the plan for at-least two years
after the change in control or status. The Secretary considers the requirements of this paragraph

- to be satisfied by a default management plan developed in accordance with the default reduction
measines described in the September 2005 Dear Partner Letter, GEN-05-14;

(17) The Sccretary, guaranty agencics and lendlers as defined in 34 CER Part 682, nationally
recognized accrediting agencies, the Secretary of Veterans Affairs, State [regulatory bodies],
State agencies recoghized under 34 CER part 603 for the approval of public postsecondary
vocational education, and State agencies that legally-authorize institutions and branch campuses
or other locations of institutions to provide postsecondary education, have the authority fo-share
with each other any information pertaining to the institution's eligibility for or participation in the
Title IV, HEA programs or any information on fraud and abuse;

~ hitp:/feligeert.ed.gov/eapp/owa/ppa doc?ope=001437&id=29881 ' 8/3/2009
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(i) Braploy in a capacity that involves the administeation of the Title IV, HEA programs ot the
receipt of funds under those program, an individual who has been convicted of, or has pled nolo
contendere or guilty to, a crime involving the acquisition, use, or expenditure of Federal, State,
or local government funds, or has been administratively or judicially determined to have
committed fraud or any other material violation of law involving Federal, State, or local
governiment funds;

(if) Contract with an institution or third-party servicer that has been terminated under section 432
of the HEA for a reason involving the acquisition, use, or expenditure of Federal, State, or local
government funds, or that has been administratively or judicially determined to have committed
fraud or any other ‘material violation of law involving Federal, State, or local government funds;
or

(iii) Contract with or employ any individual, agency, or organization that has been, or whose
officers or employees have been--

(A) Convicted of, or pled nolo contendere or guilty to, a crime involving the acquisition, use, or
expenditure of Federal, State, ov local government funds; or

(B) Administratively or judicially determined to have committed fraud or any other raterial
violation of law involving Federal, State, or local government funds;

(19) It will complete, in a timely manner and to the satisfaction of the Secretary, surveys
conducted as a part of the Integrated Postsecondary Iducation Data System (TPEDS) or any other
Federal collection effoit, as designated by the Secretary, regarding data on postsecondary
institutions;

_ (20) In the case of an institution that offers athletically related student aid, it will comply with the
provisions of patagraph (d) of this section;

(21) It will not impose any penalty, including, but not limited to, the assessment of late fees, the
denial of access to classes, libraries, or other institutional facilitics, ot the requirement that the
student borrow additional funds for which interest or other charges are assessed, on any student
because of the student's inability to meet his or her financial obligations to the institution as a
result of the delayed disbursement of the proceeds of a Title IV, HEA program loan due to
compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements of or applicable to the Title IV, HEA
programs, ot delays attributable to the institution;

(22) It will not provide, nor contract with any entity that provides, any commission, bonus, or
other in¢entive payment based divectly or indirectly on success in securing enrollments or
financial aid to any persons or entities engaged in any student recruiting or admission activities
or in making decisions regarding the awarding of student financial assistance, except that this
requirement shall not apply to the recruitment of foreign students residing in foreign countries
who are not eligible to receive Federal Student Assistance. This provision does not appiy to the
giving of token gifts to students or alumni for referring students for admission to the institution
a8 Iong as: the gift is not in the form of money, check, or money order; no more than one such
gift is given to any student or alumnus; and the gift has a value of not more than $100;

(23) It will meet the requirements established pursuant to Part H of Title IV of the HEA by the
Secretary, State [authorizing bodies], and nationally recognized accrediting agencies;

(24) It will comply with the refund provisions established in 34 CFR Part 668.22;

(25) Tt is liable for all improperly administered funds received or refunded under the Title 1V,
HEA programs, including any funds administered by a third-party servicer;

(26) If the stated objectives of an educational program of the institution are to prepare a student
for gainful employment in a récognized occupation, the institution will--

(i) Demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the length of the program and entry level
requirements for the recognized occupation for which the program prepares the student. The
Secretary considers the relationship to be reasonable if the number of clock hours provided in the

http://eligcert.ed‘gov/eapp/owa/ppa_doc‘?ope=001437&id:29881 o 8/372009
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program does not exceed by more than 50 percent the minimum number of clock hours required
for training in the recognized occupation for which the program prepares the student, as
established by the State in which the program is offered, if the State has established such a
requirement, or as established by any Federal agency,; and

(ii) Establish the need for the training for the student to obtain employment in the recogmzed
occupation for which the program prepares the student.

{¢) In order to participate in any Title IV, HEA program (othel than the SSIG and NEISP -
programs), the institution must certify that it--

(1) Has in operation a drug abuse prevention program that the institution has determined to be
accessible to any officer, employee, or student at the institution; and

(2)(i) Has established a campus security pollcy in‘accordance with section 485(f) of the HEA;
and

(ii) Has complied with the disclosure requirements of §668.47 as required by scotion 485(f) of
the HEA.

. (d) In order to participate in any Title IV, HIEA program (other than the SSIG and NEISP
programs), an institution that offers athleticaily related student aid must--

(1) Cause an annual compilation, independently andited not less often than every 3 years, to be
prepared within 6 months after the end of the institution's fiscal year, of--

(i) The revenues derived by the institution from the institution's intercollegiate athlotics
activities, according to the following categorics:

(A) Total revenues.

{B) Revenues from football.

(C) Revenues from men's basketball.

(D) Revenues from women's basketball.

(E) Revenues from all other men's sports combined.
(F) Revenues from all other women's sports combined;

(ii) Expenses made by the institution for the institution's intercollegiate athletics actmties,
according to the following categories:

(A) Total expenses.
(B) Expenses attributable to football
(C) Expenses attributable to men's basketball.
(D) Expenses attributable to women's basketball.
(E) Expenses attributable to all other men's sports combined.
(") Expenses attributable to all other women's spoxts combined: and
(iit) The total revenues and operating expenses of the institution; and

(2) Make the compilation and, where allowable by State law, the results of the audits required by
paragraph {d)(1) of this section available for mspectmn by the Se(:.letal'}' and the public.

{e) For the purposes of paragraph (d) of this section--

() Revenues from intercollegiate athletics activities allocable to a sport shall include without
limitation gate receipts, broadcast revenues and other conference distributions, appearance
guarantees and.options, concessions, and advertising;

(2) Revenues such as student activities fees, alumni contributions, and investment interest
income that are not allocable to a sport shall be included in the calculation of total revenues only;

(3) Expenses for intercollegiate athletics activities allocable to a sport shall include without
~ limitation prants-in-aid, salaries, travel, equipmont, and supplies; and

(4) Bxpenses-such as general and administrative overhead that are not allocable to a sport shall

http://eligceft.ed.gov/eapp/owa/ppa doc'?0pe=00143_7&idﬂ29881 : _ : 8/312009
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be included in the calculation of total expenses only.

(F)(1) A program patticipation agreement becomes effective on the date that the Secretary signs
the agreement,

(2) A new program participation agreement supersedes any priot program pamcapation
. agreement befween the Secretary and the institution.

(@)()(i) With respect to an institution that has been certified other than under a provisional -
certification--

(A) Except as provided in paragraphs (h) and (i) of this section, the Secretary terminates a
prograim patticipation agreement through the proceedings in subpart G of this part.

(B) An institution may terminate a program participation agreement.

(C) If the Secretary ot the institution terminates a program participation agreement under
paragraph (g) of this section, the Sccretary establishes the termination date.

(2) With respect to an institution that has been provisionally certified, the Secretary revokes a
provisional certification through the proceedings in §668.13(d).

(h) An institution's program patticipation agreement automatically expires on the date that-
(1) The institution changes ownership that results in a change in contro! as determined by the
Secretary under 34 CT'R part 600; or

(2) The institution's participation ends under thc provisions of §668 26(a)(1), (2), (), or (7).
(i) An institution's program participation agreement no longer applies to or covers a location of

the institution as of the date on which that location ceases to be a part of the participating |
institotion.

WILLIAM D. FORD FEDERAL DIRECT LOAN PROGRAM

If an institution participates in the William D, Ford Federal Direet Loan (Direct Loan) Program,
the institution and its ropresentatives shall comply with the statute, guidelines, and regulations
governing the Title 1V, Part D, William D. Ford Federal Direct Loan Program as required by

- Section 454 of Public Law 103-66. A

The institution will;

1. P10v1de for the establishment and maintenance of a Direct Loan Program at the Instltutlon that
will:

Identify eligible students who seek student financial assistance in accordance with Section
484 of the Higher Bducation Act of 1965, as amended (the HEA).

Bstimate the need of students as required under Title IV, Part F of the HEA.

Provide a certification statement of eligibility for students to receive loans that will not
exceed the annual or aggregate limits, except the Institution may: exercise its authority, under
exceptional circumstances identified by the Secretary, to refuse to certify a statement that
permits a student to receive a loan, or certify a loan amount that is less than the student's
determination of need, if the reason for such action is documented and pmvnded in written
form to a student.

Establish a schedule for disbursement of loan proceeds to meet the requirements of Section
428G of the HEA,
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Provide timely and accurate information to the Secretary concerning 1) the status of
borrowers while students are in attendance, any new information pertaining to the status of
student borrowers of which the Institution becomes aware after the student leaves the
Institution, and 2) the utilization of Federal funds under Part D at such times and in such
manner as prescribed by the Secretary.

2. Comply with requirements established by the Secrefary relating to student loan information’
with respect to the Direct Loan Program.

3. Provide that students at the Institution and their parents (with respect to such students) will be
eligible to participate in the programs under Title IV, Part B of the HEA, Federal Family
Education Loan programs, at the diseretion of the Secretary for the period during which such
Institution participates in the Direct Loan Program, except that a student or parent may not
receive Joans underboth Part B and Part D of the EA for the same period of entollment,

4. Provide for the implementation of a quality assurance system, as established by the Secretary
and doveloped in consultation with Institutions of higher education, to ensure that the
Institution is complying with program requirements and mecting program objectives.

5. Provide that the Institution will not charge any fees of any kind, regardless of how they are
described, to student or parent borrowers for loan application, or origination activities (if
applicable), or the provision and processing of any information necessary for a student or
parent to receive a loan under Part D of the HEA.

6. Provide that the Institution will originate loans to eligible students and parents in accordance
with the requirements of Part D of the HEA and use funds advanced to it solely for that
purpose (Option 2 only).

7. Provide that the note or evidence of obligation of the loan shall be the property of the
Secretary (Options 2 and 1 only)

8. Implement such other provisions as the Secretary determines are necessary to protect the -
interest of the United States and to promote the purposes of Part D of the HEA.

9. Accept responsibility and financial liability stemmming from its failure to perform its functions
under this Program Participation Agreement,

The Institution's continued approval to participate in the Direct Loan Progiam will be based on
the Department of Education’s reyiew and approval of the Institution's future applications fox
recertification to continue participating in the federal student aid programs.

CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED FROM lNSTITUTIONS

The Institution should refer to the regulations cited below, Signature on this Agreement provides
for compliance with certification requirements under 34 CFR Part 82, "New Restrictions on
Lobbying,” and 34 CFR Part 85, "Government-wide Debarment and Suspc:mmn
(Nonprocurement) and Government-wide Requirement for Drug-Free Workplace (Grants).”
Breach of any of these certificates constitutes a breach of this Agreement,
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PART 1 CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT,
SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND
DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

1. Lobbying

As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, and implemented at 34 CFR Part 82, for
persons entering into a grant or cooperative agreement over $100,000, as defined at 34 CFR Part
82, Sections 82.105, and 82.110, the Institution certifies that:

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
“undersigned, to any petson for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee
of a Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering
into of any cooperative agrcement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendiment, or
modification of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement; '

(b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employce of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Cotigress, or an employee of a Member of
Congtess in connection with this Federal Grant or cooperative agreement, the Institution shall
complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in
accordance with all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. o

(c) The Institution shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subgrants, contracts under grants and
cooperntive agreements, and subconiracts) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly. -

2. Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters

As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and implemented at 34 CFR
Part 85, for prospective participants in primary covered transactions as defined at 34 CFR Part
85, Scetions §5.105 and 85.110, the Institution certifies that it and its principals:

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible; ot
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or ageney;

(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statates or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property.

(¢) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragtaph (1)(b) of this certification; and

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

3. Drug-Free Worlplace (Grantees Other Than Individudls)

As required by the Drug—chc W brkplace Act of 1988, and implemented at 34 CTR Part 85,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 34 CFR Part 85, Sections 85.605, and 85.610 -
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The Institution certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness progtam to inform employees about-
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The Institution's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be impesed upon employees for drug abuse violations ocewmring
in the workplace;

(c) M’\kmg it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); |

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee wil! - :

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement, and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his ov her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e} Notifying the agency, in writing, within 10 calendar days aflter receiving notice under this
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,
to: Director, Grants and Contracts Service, U.S. Department of Education, 400 Maryland
Avenue, 5.W. (Room 3124, GSA Regional Office Building No. 3), Washington, DC 20202~
5140. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affécted grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted -

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
fermination, consistent with the 1equnements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1972, as
amendcd or

(2) Requiring such cmployee to participate satisfactorily in a dlug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, ot local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace thxough
‘implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (¢), and (f).

4, Drug-Free Workplace (Grantees Who A.re Individuals)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and implemented at 34 CFR Part 85,
Subpact F, for grantees, as defined at 34 CFR Part 85, Sections 85.605, and 85.610 -

1. As a condition of the grant, the Institution certifies that it will not engage in the unlawful
manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance in
conducting any activity with the grant; and

2. If any officer or owner of the Institution is convicted of a ctiminal drug offense resulting
from a violation occurring during the conduct of any grant activity, the Institution will report
the conviction, in writing, within 10 calendar days of the conviction, to: Director, Grants and
Contracts Service, U.S, Department of Education, 400 Maryland Avenue, 8, W, (Room 3124,
GSA Regional Ofﬂce. Building No. 3), Washington, DC 20202-5140. Notice shall include the
identification numbet(s) of each affected grant.
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CERTIFICATION

The undersigned Institution certifics that it has adopte‘d and implemented a drug prevention

program for its students and employees that, at a minimum, includes--
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1. The annual distribution in writing to each employee, and to each student who is taking one or
more classes for any kind of academic credit except for continuing education units, regardless

of the length of the student's program of study, of;

o Standards of conduct that cleatly prohibit, at a minimum, the unlawful possession, use,

or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol by studesits and employees on its property or
as part of any of its activities.

A. description of the applicable legal sanctions under local, State or Federal law for the
unlawful possession or distribution of illicit drugs and-alcohol.

A description of the health risks associated with the use of illicit drugs and the abuse of
alcohol.

A clear statement that the Institution will impose disciplinary sanctions on students and
employees (consistent with local, State and Federal law), and a description of those

. sanctions, up to and including expulsion or termination of employment and referral for
prosecution, for violation of the standards of conduct. A disciplinary sanction may
include the completion of an appropriate rehabilitation program.

A description of any drug or alcohol counseling, treatment, or re-entry programs that are

available to employees or students.
2. A biennial review by the Institution of its program fo:

« Determine its effectiveness and implement changes to the program if they are needed.

«. Ensure that its disciplinary sanctions are consistently enforced.
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PART 3 CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION,
INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION -- LOWER TIER
COVERED TRANSACTIONS

The Institution is to obtain the signatures of Lower Tier Contractors on copies of the
certification reproduced below, and retain the completed cer tlfic'atnon(s) in the Institution's
files, .

CERTIFICATION BY LOWER TIER CONTRACTOR
(Before Completing Certification, Read Instructions for This Part 3, below)

(1) The prospective lower tier participant certifies by submission of this proposal, that neither
it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debatment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal
Department or Agency,

(2) Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in
this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

PR/Award Number or PIOJCCt

Name of Lower Tier Organization

Name
Name of Authorized Representative : Title of Authorized Representative
Signature of Authorized Representative Date

I, By s:gmng and submtttmg this proposal, the prospective lower tier pattmpant is providing-the
certification set out below.

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when this transaction was entered into, If it is later determined that the prospective
lowet tier participant knowingly rendeted an erroneous cettification, in addition to other
remedies available to the Federal Government, the department ot agency with which this
transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspcns:on and/or debarment,

3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to
which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that
its certification was erroncous when subinitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

4. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred,” "suspended,“ "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant,” "person," "primaty covered transaction,” "principal," "proposal,”
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings st out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person
to whom this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.

3. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declated ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the
department or agency with which this transaction originated.

, 6. The prospective lower tier patticipant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
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include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification, in all lower
tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions,

7. A participant in a covered fransaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant
in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A
participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its
principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List,

8. Nothing confained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to rendet: in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
" knowledge and information of a pacticipant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. ,

9. Bxcept for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instractions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who
is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition fo other remedies available to the Federal Goverbment, the depariment
ot agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including
suspension and/or debariment,

NOTE: A completed copy of the "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility
and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier Covered Transactions" form must be retained by
the Institution, The original blank certification must be returned with the PPA.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF
the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives.
Signature of Institution's M ‘ - '
Chief Executive Officer: _'( WL'* . Date:%[ﬁ?
Print Name and Tille: DA 0 M. Q'&a,ﬂ&é& I, 3,-/}3., | é/&é"s; bEWT
THe ctitowe. ottt £ Aneeich

For the Secretary: Date:
U.S, Department of Education
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Responsible Official: Vice President for Enrollment Management tel. (202) 319-6366

l. Introduction

Refunds of student charges will be calculated based on the amount billed to the student’s account
regardless of any payments made to the account. In the event a reduction in charges or fees
results in a credit on the student’s account, the student may be entitled to a refund. Application
fees and registration deposits are non-refundable. Other fees are refunded as per the following
policy. See Enrollment Services - Costs for a list of fees.

. Definitions

A. Academic Calendar: The official University calendar setting forth the specific dates
and deadlines for semesters and terms, enrollment periods, examination periods,
holidays, periods that classes are not in session, and commencement. There are
separate calendars for the Columbus School of Law and all other schools. Add/drop
periods are listed on the academic calendars.

B. Dynamically-Dated Classes: Classes that do not span the entire semester and
which have beginning and ending dates within, but different from, the regular
semester.

C. Week of Classes: Monday through Saturday.

D. Tuition: Charge for instruction listed on the student account.

E. Mandatory Fees: Fees required of all students, including but not limited to student

record, activity, and technology fees.

F. Service/Miscellaneous Fees: Fees charged for specific services, including but not
limited to language placement, health center, locker rental fees.

. General Refund Provisions

The following provisions apply during the fall and spring semesters and not to summer sessions.
Students taking classes in the summer sessions are eligible for a 100% refund if they withdraw by
the deadline specified for their classes. Students withdrawing after the specified deadlines are not



eligible for a refund. Refund provisions for fully online programs are addressed in section 1V,
below.

A. Tuition and Fee Refund Schedule for Complete Withdrawal from the
University

Note: Refunds for dynamically-dated classes are based on the corresponding percentage of
class meetings.

Drop Deadline Amount Tuition Amount Mandatory | Amount Service/ Misc.
P Refunded Fees Refunded Fees Refunded
End of Add Drop 100% 100% 0%
Period
After last day of
add/drop but by the o o o
end of the third week 80% 2 0%
of classes
After the end of the
third week of classes o o o
but by the end of the 50% ] 0%
fourth week of classes
After the end of the 0% 0% 0%
fourth week of classes

B. Tuition and Fee Refund Schedule for change of status from full-time to

part-time or reduction in part-time status

Note: students will be charged the standard part-time rate for all classes in which they remain
registered. Refund amounts below are for dropped courses. Refunds for dynamically-dated
classes are based on the corresponding percentage of class meetings.

Drop Deadline Amount Tuition Amount Mandatory | Amount Service/ Misc.
P Refunded Fees Refunded Fees Refunded
End_ of Add Drop 100% 0% 0%
Period
After last day of
add/drop but by the o o o
end of the third week 80% 0% 0%
of classes
After the end of the 0% 0% 0%
third week of classes
C. Refunding of Room and Board Charges

Room and board refunds for all students shall be as follows:

e Fees are refunded on a per diem basis up to the end of the drop/add period. After the
drop/add period, fees are reduced at the tuition rates shown in Section Il




e Students who have signed a Residence Hall and Dining Services Agreement for the
upcoming academic year, and whose housing cancellation is approved will be charged
the housing cancellation fee.

e If the dining plan is cancelled separate from a housing assignment, the dining
cancellation fee will be assessed.

V. Refund Provisions for Fully Online Programs

For students in the University’s fully online programs, refunds of student account charges are
issued at the rates listed in section Il above if the program of study follows the standard
University Academic Calendar. Students in fully online programs that follow the Online Programs
Academic Calendar are refunded on the following basis:

Drop Deadline Amount Tuition | Amount Mandatory | Amount Service/Misc.
P Refunded Fees Refunded Fees Refunded
End of Add/Drop Period 100% 100% 0%
After the last day of add/drop
but by the end of the 50% 0% 0%
10" day of classes

Please note that the add/drop deadline for courses in the University’s fully online programs can
be found in the Online Programs Academic Calendar. Add/drop deadlines also can be found at
http://online.cua.edu/.

V. Provisions applicable to all programs
A. Adjustment of University Grants and Scholarships

Generally, University undergraduate grants and scholarships will be prorated to be proportional to
the percentage of tuition charges incurred. For example, if a student's tuition charges are reduced
by fifty (50) percent, that student's University grants and scholarships will also be reduced by fifty
(50) percent. Note that specific grant or scholarship terms may supersede this general rule.
Adjustments to University graduate grants and scholarships are at the discretion of the individual
department/school awarding the grant or scholarship and the Office of the Provost.

B. Return of Federal Financial Aid (Title IV) Funds

Federal requirements for returning financial aid are independent of University policy and, when
required by law, supersede University policy. For example, a student may be due a refund
according to University policy, if the student received federal Title IV funds. The money may,
based upon date of withdrawal, be returned to the aid program from which the funds were
disbursed. Additional information is available in the Office of Financial Aid website under
Withdrawals.

C. Deferral to Home State Policy on Refunds

A student who is registered in a fully online program or who is taking a course (or courses) in a
state outside the District of Columbia will receive a refund as required by the law of that state if
there is a conflict with University policy. States with specific refund policies can be found at the
following link: (Include a link here to the info on last page of this policy draft)



VI. Exceptions

Exceptions to the policy regarding tuition refunds may be made based on extraordinary
circumstances. A student seeking an exception to the published tuition refund policy should
immediately submit a written letter of appeal to the Office of Enroliment Services for review by the
Appeals Committee detailing the reason for the request. No request will be considered after
midterm of the succeeding term as published in the Academic Calendar.

Home State Policy on Refunds
(The following to be published on an Enrollment website and linked in the policy above)

California: As of January 1, 2015, Universities do not need to collect the student tuition refund
assessment. Institutions will be required to complete and submit all STRF Assessment Reporting
Forms quarterly. The form is online at http://www.bppe.ca.gov/enforcement/strf_minreq.pdf (note:
At this time the form has not yet been updated, so N/A is fine for responses relating to fees
collected. See also the Q and A at http://www.bppe.ca.gov/schools/strf faq.shtml.

lowa: For a student who is a member of the of the lowa National Guard or Reserve Forces of the
United States, or the spouse of a member if the member has a dependent child, when the
member is ordered to state military service or federal service or duty, the University shall:

1. Withdraw the student’s entire registration and grant a full refund of tuition and mandatory
fees; or

2. Make arrangements with the student’s instructors for course grades, or for incompletes
that shall be completed at a later date. If such arrangements are made, the student’s
registration shall remain intact and tuition and mandatory fees shall be assessed for the
courses in full; or

3. Make arrangements with only some of the student’s instructors for grades, or for
incompletes that shall be completed by the student at a later date. If such arrangements
are made, the registration for those courses shall remain intact and tuition and mandatory
fees shall be assessed for those courses. Any course for which arrangements cannot be
made for grades or incompletes shall be considered dropped and the tuition and
mandatory fees for the course refunded.

Maryland: For fully online programs, if the University’s refund policy is more beneficial to
Maryland students, the University shall follow its own refund policy. If the Maryland refund policy
is more beneficial, the University shall follow the Maryland policy.

Maryland Minimum Refund

The minimum refund that an institution shall pay to a Maryland student who withdraws or is
terminated after completing only a portion of a course, program, or term within the applicable
billing period is contained in the chart below.

A refund due to a Maryland student shall be based on the date of withdrawal or termination and
paid within 60 days from the date of withdrawal or termination. An institution's refund policy for
Maryland students shall be clearly disclosed to and acknowledged by students at enrollment. An



institution shall maintain documentation to verify that a refund has been made. Tuition refunds for
online students residing in Maryland are granted only upon submission of an official withdrawal
request through the Registrar’s office.

Proportion of Total Course,
Program, or Term Completed
as of Date of Withdrawal or

8 Week Term

Refund Deadline: Day of term for
percentage refund based on Tuition Refund
length of term

Termination
0,
Less than 10% 4 90%
refund
0,
10/(_) up to but 80%
not including 8 refund
20%
20% up to but 0
not including 12 ?eoffnd
30%
30% up to but .
not including 16 fe?‘ljond
40%
40% up to and 24 20%
including 60% refund
More than 60% No refund No
refund
Virginia

1. Armed Forces

The Virginia Tuition Relief, Refund and Reinstatement Guidelines specific to those
serving in the Armed Forces or National Guard encourage private institutions of
higher education to adopt a policy providing for tuition relief and refunds when a
service in the uniformed services requires sudden withdrawal or prolonged absence
from enrollment in the University. This is to include a description of the circumstances
under which a student will receive a partial or full refund of the tuition and required
fees, calculation of credits, and reinstatement. *

2. Generally

All tuition refund policies are to be communicated to the students. For schools that
use an add drop period, a student who withdraws during the add/drop period shall be
entitled to 100% refund for the period. This is the same as The Catholic University
policy for non-online students.

3. Refunds for a School that offers its programs completely via telecommunications

or distance education.

For a student canceling after the 5th calendar day following the date of enrollment
but prior to receipt by the school of the first completed lesson assignment, all moneys
paid to the school shall be refunded, except the nonrefundable fee of $100 if the

1 http://www.schev.edu/students/forms/SCHEVMilitaryReadmissionGuidelines092110.pdf
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prerequisites have been met. Please note that Catholic University’s policy is more
generous for the add drop period, and thus University policy will be followed for add
drop refunds.

b. If a student enrolls and withdraws or is discontinued after submission of the
first completed lesson assignment, but prior to the completion of the program,
minimum refunds shall be calculated as follows:

(1) A student who starts the program but withdraws up to and including
completion of the first quartile (25%) of the program is entitled to receive
as a refund a minimum of 75% of the stated cost of the course or
program for the period.

(2) A student who starts the program but withdraws after completing up
to the second quartile (more than 25%, but less than 50%) of the
program is entitled to receive as a refund a minimum of 50% of the
stated cost of the course or program for the period.

(3) A student who starts the program but withdraws after completing up
to the third quartile (more than 50%, but less than 75%) of the program is
entitled to receive as a refund a minimum of 25% of the stated cost of the
course or program for the period.

(4) A student who withdraws after completing the third quartile (75%) or
more of the program is not entitled to a refund.

c. The percentage of the program completed shall be determined by comparing
the number of completed lesson assignments received by the school to the total
number of lesson assignments required in the program.
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I. Introduction

The Catholic University of America strives to maintain an environment that promotes the health and safety of the
community and the responsible choices and behaviors of its members concerning the use of alcohol. The University
recognizes that the consumption of alcohol in moderation by persons of legal drinking age can be a compoenent of the
social environment at the University, Therefore, students of legal drinking age are granted the privilege of responsible
alcoho! use on campus, The following outlines the risks associated with alcohol and other drug abuse and the University
response to student alcohol and other drug abuse. '

Il. Policy

The risks associated with the use of illicit drugs and the abuse of alcoho! are numerous and include physical and mental
impairment, emotional and psychological deterioration and devastating effects on family and friends. There are obvious
risks such as suffering a hangover, being charged with driving under the influence or while intoxicated, and sustaining or
causing personal injury. There are a number of less obvious risks associated with alcohol and other drug abuse that
students might not realize, including:

Poor academic performance

Poor job performance

Poor social interactions

Unwanted and inappropriate sexual activity

Sexually transmitted diseases, including HIV/AIDS

Pregnancy

Jeopardizing future career prospects, (e.g., admission to law school and employment with the federal government)

In addition, alcohol and other drug abuse puts the user at considerable heaith risk, which can include nausea, vomiting,
cancer, liver damage, elevated blood pressure, psychotic episodes, hallucinations and, in some cases, death. In addition to
the risk to the abuser of illicit drugs and alcohol are the risks to fellow classmates, the public and to unborn children.

All students, whether on or off campus, must adhere to local and federal laws concerning alcohol use and are expected to
conduct themselves in a manner consistent with Universily expectations. The Universily will not tolerate the unlawful
manufaciure and/or illegal purchase, consumption, possession, or distribution of alcohol to or by any student.

Local and federal laws prohibit the unlawful use, manufacture, possession, control, sale and dispensation of any illegal
narcotic or dangerous drug. These laws carry penalties for violations, including monetary fines and imprisonment. The
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unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance by a student on University
property or as any part of a University-sponsored program on or off campus is strictly prohibited,

Any student who violates the Code of Student Conduct as it relates to alcohol and drug use is subject to sanctions as
outlined therein. See also the Penalties for violation of federal and local jurisdiction standards related to drugs and alcohol.

The Universily cooperates fully with law enforcement authorities. Violations of the CUA drug and alcohol policy and/or the
Code of Student Conduct that are also violations of federal and local law may be referred to the appropriate agencies. In
such situations, cases may proceed concurrently in the University judicial system and in the criminal justice system.

The Counselihg Center and Student Health Services can provide confidential consultation and referral to students with
problems or concerns related to alcohol andfor drug use. Information about substance abuse and treatment programs is
also available in the Office of the Dean of Students.

This policy implements the Drug Free Schools and Communities Act (20 U.S.C. 1145g).

Last reviewed: September 4, 2013

Ei & ol @ 0 adogon

The Catholic University of America * 620 Michigan Ave., N.E. * Washington, DC 20054
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Community Expectations and Student Responsibility

Any community is born of a shared commitment to core values. The Catholic University of America (“University” or
“CUA"), guided by reason and the light of faith, is a community dedicated to the cultivation of knowledge, skills, wisdom,
and virtue. Membership in the University community brings with it the obligation to conduct oneself in ways that promote
these goals and build up the community, and the obligation to refrain from activity inconsistent with our shared goals and
commitments.

Each student is expected to make choices that preserve a safe and secure environment in which all individuals are able
to pursue their academic endeavors, to practice responsible citizenship and to respect the rights of others, and to be
accountable for herfhis own actions and the conduct of herfhis guests. Failure to uphold University rules and
expectations as well as district, and/or federal laws and regufations may result in student conduct action within the
University under the authority of this Code of Student Conduct (“Code’).

Purpose

The purpose of maintaining student conduct in the University setting is to protect the character of the University
community by discouraging conduct inconsistent with the values of the institution. The purpose of publishing student
conduct regulations is to give students general notice of prohibited behavior and their rights and responsibifities during
the student conduct process. The purpose of campus student conduct proceedings is to provide a forum through which
to determine whether a student is responsible for violating University regutations. This Code provides a means for the
exercise of student rights and responsibilities within the University student conduct system. The Code seeks to preserve
the individual rights of students while ensuring that the interests of the entire University community are also maintained.

. Applicability

A. The Code applies to the on-campus conduct of all students, The Code also applies to off-campus conduct of
students that, in the University's judament, involves or affects the University or other members of the University
community, such as conduct in connection with:

\
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1. Academic work or other University-related educational activities and experiences, such as class
projects, field trips, study abroad, student teaching, or internships;

2. Activities sponsored, conducted, or a'uthorized by the University or its student organizations;

3. Activities that cause or threaten harm to the health, safety, well-being, or property of the University or
members of the University community, including the student him- or herself; or

4, Activities that unreasonably disturb the peace and privacy of the student’s neighbors when living off-
campus,

B. The Code applies to conduct by a student while a student, even if it occurs outside of an academic term or
when the student is not otherwise enrolled at the University and even if the University does not learn of such
conduct until after the student graduates, withdraws, takes leave, or is otherwise absent from the University.

C. Students also continue to be subject to federal, state, and local laws while at the University. While those laws
are separate and independent from the Code and impose different standards, viclations of them may also
constitute viclations of the Code. In such instances, the University may take action under the Code independent
of any other legal proceeding involving the same conduct and may impose consequences for violation of the
Code even if such other proceeding is not yet resolved or is resolved in the student’s favor.

Il.  Authority for Student Conduct

A. Ultimate authority over student conduct is vested in the President of the University (“President’), who may
take immediate action at her/his discretion for any violation of University policies or procedures whatsoever, .
Action taken by the President is final and closes the matter.

As an ordinary matter, the President has delegated authority over student conduct to the Vice President for
Student Affairs (“Vice President”) who may exercise it consistent with these procedures.

B. The Vice President or designee reserves the authority to take immediate, necessary, and appropriate aclion to
protect the health, safety and well-being of an individual and/or the University community. The Vice President
may take an Interim action to evict a student from Universily housing, restrict a student's access to and
movement about the campus, andfor suspend a student from the University whenever the continued presence of
the student at the University is deemed to pose a serious threat to herfhimself or to others or to the stablility and
continuance of normal University functions. The interim action shall become effective immediately upon delivery
of oral or written notification to the student or histher designee. A hearing or conference will be granted as soon
as possible. ’

C. The Office of Student Caonduct and Ethical Development (*SCED”), with direction and guidance from the
Associate Vice President for Student Affairs & Dean of Students (“Associate Vice President™), is responsible for
administering the student conduct system and ensures that alt student conduct proceedings are carried out in
accordance with University policies and procedures,

D. Student conduct action may be pursued for any violation of University policy, or district or federal law, on or off
Universily premises by a student that affects the University’s interests and/or is inconsistent with the University’s
expectations for students, ’

E. Student conduct action may be pursued to address the behavior of a student organization (as an entity) when
members of the student organization have engaged in potential violations of this Code for which they received the
consent or encouragement of the organization or the organization's leaders/officers.

. Prohibited Conduct

The following .are examples of prohibited behaviors and activities which may result in student conduct action under this
Code. Commission of or attempts to commit these acts, condoning, supporting of encouraging others in the commission
of these acts, or failure to prevent cne’s guests from committing these acts may be treated as violations of this Code.

A. Dangerous Conduct: Intentionally or carelessly engaging in conduct that threatens or endangers the health or
safety or causes physical harm to any person, including the violator.

1, Placing a person in fear of imminent physical danger or bodily harm.
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2. Causing bodily harm to a parson, or engaging in aggressive physical contact that would likely have
caused bodily harm despite the lack of any measurable harm.

3. Dating Violence? means violence committed by another person who is or has been in a social
relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim, and where the existence of such a relationship
shall be determined based on a consideration of the following factors: a) the length of the relationship, b}
the type of relationship, or ¢) the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship.

4. Domestic Viclence? means violence committed by a current or former spouse of the victim, by a person
with whom the victim shares a child in commen, by a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated
with the viclim as a spouse, by a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or
family violence laws of D.C. (including past or present marriage, domestic partnership, romantic, dating, or
sexual relationship), by a former spouse or similarly situated person against a victimwho isin a
subsequent relationship with a former spouse or similarly situated person, or by any other person against a
victim who is protected from that person’s acts under the domestic or family violence laws of D.C.

[Dating Violence and Domaestic Violence are also covered in section R. below]
B. Harassment

1. Any actions, threats, gestures, andfor words directed toward another person which have the purpose or
which tend to incite a breach of the peace, create a hostile environment, or cause emotional distress to
that person because of the humiliating, degrading, intimidating, insulting, coercive, ridiculing, or alarming
nature of the conduct. It frequently, but not always, involves a pattern of conduct.

C. Dangerous Hems: The use, possession or storage of any firearms, explosives, other weapons, firaworks or
dangerous chemicals.

1. Firearms and ammunition - Firearms are defined as any gun, rifle, pistol, or handgun designed to fire
bullets, BBs, pellets, or shots (including paint halls), regardless of the propellant used.

2. Explosives and fireworks including, but not limited to, firecrackers, cherry bombs, smoke bombs, and
similar devices. :

3. Knives that are longer than 3 inches, other weapons, objects that could be construed as weapons or
items that pose a potential hazard to the safety or health of others. Other weapons are defined as any
instrument of combat or any object not designed as an instrument of combat but carried or used for the
purpose of inflicting or threatening bodily injury or damaging/destroying University property or the property
of others.

4. Unauthorized hazardous materials or chemicals,
D. Interfering with Fire Safety

1. Misusing, tampering or damaging fire safety equipment including, but not limited to, fire extinguishers,
smoke alarms, sprinkler systems or exit signs.

2. Unautherized hurning of any material in any University building, on University proper{y or on areas
adjacent to University property.

3. Disregarding a fire alarm signal or refusing to evacuate a building or a section of a building when a fire
alarm is sounding. :

4. Recklessly or intentionally activating an alarm when an emergency situation does not exist.

E. Alcohol: The use, abuse, possession, or distribution of alcohol, except as permitted by law and University
policy.

1. Possession of containers that previously contained alcoholic beverages by persons under 21 years of
age.
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2. Possession of common source containers, whether fult or empty, of alcohol such as kegs, beer balis, or
boxed wine. :

3. Posseassion of alcoholic beverages by persons under 21 years of age.
4. Consumption of alcoholic beverages, including:
a. Consumption of alcoholic beverages by persons under 21 years of age;

b. Consumption of alccholic beverages by persohs 21 years of age or older in any public area,
unless it is an official University approved event, including public space within a residence hall.

5. Infoxication by any person, regardiess of age.

6. Sale, distribution or provision or attempts to sell, distribute or provide alcoholic beverages to or by
anyone under 21 years of age.

F. Drugs: The use, possession, and/or distribution of any drugs andfor drug paraphernalia. Drugs include any
controlled substances as defined by law, including those without a valid prescription, and/for other recreational
substances. CUA does not permit marijuana for any purpose; students who qualify under local law to use
marijuana for medical purposes may not possess, store, use or share marijuana on Universily owned or
controlled property or during University sponsored events. ’

1. Possession of paraphernalia including any item typically used to inhalefingest/inject/mask drugs,
regardless of whether the item has been used for illegal purposes.

2. Possession of drugs.

3. Use of drugs.

4, Distribution (any form of exchange, gift, transfer or sale) of drﬁgs.
G. Theft/Unauthorized Possession of Property

1. Theft of property or of services or possession of stolen property.

2. Unauthorized possession of University property (including residence hall lounge furniture) or the
property of others.

H. Damage to or Misuse of Property:
1. Damaging University property or the properly of others.
2. Unauthorized entry into University facilities or property.
3. Unauthorized use or misuse of University property or the property of others.
|. Disorderly Conduct:
1. Acting in a manner which annoys, disturbs, interferes with, obstructs, or is offensive to anotherfothers.

2. Shouting or making excessive noise either inside or outside a building to the annoyance or disturbance
of others.

3. Verbally abusing University officials {including students appeinted to act as representatives of the
University) acting in the performance of their duties.

4, Behaving in a lewd or indecent manner.
J. Non-academic Dishonesty:

1. Knowingly furnishing false information to the University or a member of the University COmmunity,
including at University student conduct proceedings.
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2. Forgery, misuse, unauthorized alteration andfor creation of documents, records, identification cards,
keys, or other objects.

3. Possession or use of false identification cards.
4. Fraud, through act or omission, committed against a member of the campus community or others.
5. Knowingly initiating or causing to be initiated any false report, warning or threat.

K. Interfering with University Events: Interfering with any University or Universily-sponsored events, including but
not limited to studying, teaching, research, sponsored social programs, and University administration, fire, policy,
or emergency services,

L. Smoking: Smoking in a building or vehicle that is cwned, operated or leased by the University or within 25 feat
of an entrance or window of any University building.

M. Violating Other University Policies:

1. Any violation of other published University regulations including but not limited to Residence Life and
Housing Services policies and procedures, rules published in the Student Handbook and other University
publications, and those available at hitp://policies.cua.edu and other CUA websites.

2. Being present or otherwise involved, in such a way as to condone, support or encourage any acts which
would violate this Code. {Note: Students who observe acts in violation of this Code are expected to remove
themseives and are encouraged to report the matter.)

N. Non-compliance: Failure to comply with reasonable directives of University officials, including students
appointed to act as representatives of the University, acting in performance of their duties. Directives to provide
identification andfor participate in a University student conduct process are included in the scope of this provision.

0.. Sanction Violation: Violating the terms of any student conduct sanction as imposed in accordance with
student conduct procedures, including the failure to complete sanctions by the stated deadline.

P. Gambling: Participation in any form of illegal gambling.
Q. Violation of Law: Violation of local, state, or federal laws, regulations or ordinances.
R. Sexual Misconduct

1. Sexual Relationships: The University affirms that sexual relationships are designed by God to be
expressed solely within a marriage between hushand and wife. Sexual acts of any kind outside the
confines of marriage are contrary to the teachings and moral values of the Catholic Church and are
prohihited.

2. Sexual Offenses? — Sexual Offenses are prohibited in all forms. “Sexual Offense” is a broad term
encompassing a range of behaviors including, but not limited to: sexual assault; sexual harassment; dating
violence; domestic violence; stalking; indecent exposure; sexual exhibitionism; use of communication
systems to send unwanted sexual material and messages; prostitution or the soficitation or employment of
a prostitute; peeping or other voyeurism; allowing others to view consensual sexual aclivity; the non-
consensual video or audio recording of sexual activity; or any conduct prohibited by applicable law.

a, Sexual Assault is sexual intercourse or sexual contact with another person without consent.
Sexual assault is a criminal offense under D.C. law and includes the folfowing:

» Oral, vaginal, or anal penetration, no matter how slight, with any object or body part without
consent.

+ Non-consensual touching of another person in a sexual manner. This includes, but is not

limited to, the touching either directly or through clothing of another person’s genitalia,
breasts, inner thigh, or buttocks with a clothed or unclothed body part or cbject.
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b. Sexual Harassment means unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other
verhal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when either:

« Submission to such conductis made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of
employment, education, on-campus living environment, or participation in a University activity
or program; or '

« Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used or threatened to be used as the basis
for decisions affecting employment, education, on-campus living environment, or participation
in a Universily activity or program; or

+ Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's
work or educational performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive environment
for employment, education, on-campus living, or participation in a University activity or
program,.

Sexual harassment can occur between and among supervisors or managers and subordinates,
faculty and staff or students, peers, vendors/subcontractorsivisitors and employees or students, or
any combination thereof. Often, but not always, the harasser is in a position of authority, trust, or
influence that provides the opportunity fo take advantage of the unequal positions of the parties.

¢. Dating Violence? means violence committed by another person who 15 or has been in a social
relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim, and where the existence of such a
retationship shall be determined based on a consideration of the following factors: a) the length of
the relationship, b) the type of relationship, or ¢) the frequency of interaction belween the persons
involved in the relationship.

d. Domestic Violence? means violence committed by a current or former spouse of the victim, by a
person with whom the victim shares a child in common, by a person who is cohabltating with or has
cohabitated with the victim as a spouse, by a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim
under the domestic or family viclence laws of D.C. {including past or present marriage, domestic
partnership, romantic, dating, or sexuat relationship}), by a former spouse or similarly situated
person against a victim who is in a subsequent relationship with a former spouse or similarly
situated persaon, or by any other person against a victim who is protected from that person’s acts
under the domestic or family violence laws of D.C.

e. Stalking® means purposely engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific individual that
would cause a reasonable individual to fear for his or her safety or the safety of another person, feel
seriously alarmed, disturbed or frightened, or suffer emotional distress.

A student can face significant disciplinary sanctions, including expulsion, as well as criminal prosecution or
other legal action, for committing a sexual offense.

3. The definitions above describe the minimum legal standards for conduct, and they set forth terms that
help determine criminal liability and legal responsibility. The University and the Church have higher
expectations. They affirm that sexual activily is infended by God as an expression of love and commitment
between a husband and wife, and therefore belongs exclusively within marriage. Sexual activity by
unmarried persons lacks that essential level of commitment and respensibility, and harms moral growth
and development. It undermines the Christian view of sexual aclivity embraced and promoted by the
Church and the University, a view which insists upon mutual respect, moral integrity, and the sacredness
of human sexuality.

S. Solicitation: Unauthorized solicitation, sale or promotion of any goods or services in University owned or
operated property, including residence halls, or at University-sponsored events,

IV. Student Organizations

A. Student organizations are responsible for conducting themselves in a manner compatible with the University's
function as a Catholic educational institution. Failure to uphold University rules and regulations by organizations
or by individual members with the support or encouragement of the organization or its leadership may result in
student conduct action against those individuals and the organization itself under the authority of this Code.
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“Student organization” means a group of students which have sought and gained formal registration with the
Office of Campus Activities ("Campus Aclivilies”).

B. The officers, leaders or any identifiable spokesperson(s) for a student organization may be directed by a
designee from the Office of the Dean of Students or Campus Activities to take appropriate action designed to
prevent or end violations of this Cade by the organization. Any administrative action requested of the organization
to remedy the situation will be coupled with resources and information to assist the organization in being a
constructive part of the University community. Failure to make reasonable efforts to comply with the designee’s
request may be considered a violation of this Code,

C. If administrative action is not appropriate for a particutar situation, student organizations will be charged with
violation(s) of the Code and subject to the student conduct proceedings described in section V.B of this Code. If a
student organization is found responsible for a violation of this Code, sanctions may include revocation of
privileges or loss of registration as well as other appropriate sanclions.

V. Student Conduct System & Procedures

These guidelines are intended to provide general notice of rights and responsibilities during the student conduct
process. This Code does not, nor is it intended to, afford the specificity or the due process rights of criminal or civil
statutes or procedures.

A. Case Referrals

1. Any person may refer a student or student organization suspected of violating this Code to SCED. The
referral will be reviewed to determine the appropriate student conduct or administrative action to be taken
in accordance with this Code including, in the event that there is insufficient evidence to support formal
action, a determination that student conduct or administrative action is not warranted.

2. Referrals should be made within a reasonable timeframe after the alleged incident (or after the latest
alleged incident in cases of harassment or where there is a succession of documented incidents). Student
conduct aclion may be pursued after considering the amount of ime that has passed since the alleged
incident and whether there is enough information available to substantiate the reported behavior.

3. Administrative action, in lieu of formal student conduct action, may be taken at the discretion of the
University, in an appropriate and reasonable manner, to address student behavior.

B. Student Conduct Proceedings

1. A student potentially subject to formal sanctions other than eviction from residence, suspension or
expulsion, or a student organization subject to formal sanctions other than loss of registration is entitled to
a conference, which will normally consist of an informal meeting between the student responding to
aliegations (“respondent”) and an-administrator.

2. A student subject to eviction from residence, suspension or expulsion from the University or a student
organization subject to 1oss of registration is entilled to a hearing, which will normally consist of a formal
meeting between the respondent and the Associate Dean of Students (or designee).

a. A!Iégations of sexual offenses will be resolved under the Disciplinary Procedures of Sexual
Offense Complaints found in the Sexual Offense Grievance Procedures.

b. A student or student organization that accepts responsibility for violations of this Code (prior to
the student conduct hearing) may meet with the Associate Dean in an administrative meeting to
datermine an appropriate sanction{(s), in lieu of attending a hearing. This acceptance must be in
writing, affirming acceptance of responsibility for the charge(s) and acknowledging that the full
range of sanctions may be imposed.

C. Guidelines for Student Conduct Proceedings

The following procedural guidelines shall be applicable in student conduct proceedings). Formal rules of process,
procedure, and technical rules of evidence, such as applied in criminal or civl court, are not used in student conduct
proceedings. Deviations from prescribed procedures shall not necessarily invafidate a decision, unless significant
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prejudice to an accused student, complainant or the University results. Cases of sexual offenses will be resolved under
the Disciplinary Procedures of Sexual Offense Complaints found in the Sexual Offense Grievance Procedures.

VL.

1. The respondent shall receive advanced written notification of the specific charges and the date, time,
and location of the scheduled proceading. Notice will most often take the form of a letter delivered to a
student's University e-mail account and/or residence.

2. The respondent may request a reasonahle extension of time to prepare for the proceeding. Requests for
an extension will not be granted for a period to exceed two business days except in unusual circumstances
where the respondent can demonstrate the necessity for a longer delay. All requests for extension of time
should be made in writing at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled proceeding, except in cases of
documented serious illness or emergency.

3. The respondent shall be afforded reasonable access to review the case file prior to and during the
proceeding, and may request a copy of a redacted incident report fram SCED. "Case file" means the file
containing those materials pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974, If
additional information hecomes available and is relevant, it will be discussed and reviewed at the
proceeding. The personal notes of University staff members and privileged information of other students
are not included in the case file and thus are not accessible.

4. The respondent shall have the opportunity to provide additional and relevant information for the student
conduct proceeding. Any additional information should be submitted in writing at least two business days
prior to the proceeding.

5. The respondent shall have the opportunity to respond to the information related to the alleged violation
of the Code; the respondent may provide the names of material witnesses from the CUA community who
have relevant and necessary information pertaining to the incident. These individuals will be invited, at the
discretion of SCED to participate in the proceeding, but are not required; character witnesses will not be
heard. Qrdinarily, witnesses who are not members of the CUA community will not be invited to serve as a
witness in the proceeding, and expert witnesses generally will not be invited.

6. Student conduct proceedings will be closed to nen-participants and to the public.

7. A respondent may be accompanied by one advisor. The role of the advisor shall be limited {0 support
and consultation; the advisor may not speak during any student conduct proceeding except privately to the
respondent, nor shall the advisor question or address witnesses. Violation of this expectation will result in
the advisor being removed from a student conduct proceeding at the discretion of t the student conduct
administrator. In consideration of the limited role of an advisor, and of the interest of the University to
expeditiously conclude the matter, a student conduct proceeding will not normally be delayed if an advisor
is unavatiable. '

8. A respondent who fails to appear at a scheduled procesding without good cause (e.g. serious iliness),
after proper notice of such a proceeding, may be adjudicated in absentia, and forfeits all rights to an
appeal unless it is for lack of proper nolice, as required herein. in such cases, decisions will be based
solely on witness testimony and other written informatlon presented during the proceeding.

9. Proceeding outcomes must be supported by a preponderance of evidence. Preponderance of evidence
means that a greater weight of evidence has been demonstrated in order to decide in favor of one side
over the other, to determine whether a fact is true, or to establish that an event occurred. A preponderance
of the evidence does not necessarily mean the greater amotint of evidence, but rather the greater quality
of evidence — making it more likely than not the matter in question is true.

10. A responcdent may be found in vialation of any prohibited conduct (including sections of the Code for
which he or she was not originally charged) when behaviors that were previously unknown are discovered
during the course of the student conduct proceeding or if it is determined that a different section of the
Code more appropriately addresses the conduct in question.

11. The outcome of the student conduct proceeding shall be conveyed to the student in writing.

Sanctions
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A. The imposition of sanctions is based on the nature of the violation and the severity of any damage, injury, or
harm resulting from it, and the character, disciplinary record, and rehabilitative potential as the student
respondent or student organization. -

B. In some cases, a sanction may be held in abeyance for a specific period. This means that, should the student
be found in violation of tite Code during the stated period, he or she may be subject to the deferred sanction in
addition to the student conduct action appropriate to the new violation.

C. Sanctions that may be imposed in accordance with this Code include:
1. Censure: An official written reprimand for violation of specified regulations.

2. Probation: A period of time in which a student is expected to demonstrate positive behavioral change
and may be excluded from participation in privileged or extracurricular institutional activities. Additional
restrictions or conditions for behavioral changes may be imposed. Violations of the terms of student
conduct prohation, or any other viclation of this Code during the period of probation, may result in eviction
from residence, suspension or-expulsion from the University.

3. Restitution; Repayment to the Uhiversity or to an affected party for damages resulting from a violation of
this Code.

4. Denial of Access fo Specific Areas: Ban from certain non-academic area(s) for a specified length of
time,

5. Eviction from Residence: Termination of the residence hall agreement and exclusion from visiting within
certain or all residential facilities, as set forth in the notice of eviction, for a specified period of time. A
student who is evicted is not enlitled to a refund of room fees. A student who is a freshman or sophomore
and is evicted from residence is unable to fulfill residency requirements and may be suspended, upon
review.

8. Revocation of Privileges: Restrictions placed on activities and/or use of Universily services and facilities
for a specified period of time.

7. Loss of Registration: Removal of registered student organization status, resulting in revocation of all
University privileges for a specified period of time, normally for at least the remainder of the current
academic term and no longer than one full calendar year.

8. Suspension: Exclusion from classes and other privileges or activities, including access to University
premises or University-sponsored activities off campus, as set forth in the notice of suspension, normally
for at least one semester. A student who is suspended is not entitied to any tuition or fee refund and is
banned from University premises for the duration of the suspension.

9. Expufsion: Termination of student status, and exclusion from University premises, privileges and
activities. A student who is expelled shall.not be entilled to any tuition or fee refund and is hanned from
University premises permanently.

10. Discretionary Sanctions, Other sanctlions that hear a reasonable relation to the violation for which the
student or student organization has been sanctioned may be imposed instead of or in addition to those
specified above. Discretionary sanctions include, but are not limited to: service hours, fines, educational
reflection assignments, and paricipation in alcohol or drug awareness programs, and trainings, counseling
and education regarding sexual assault and offenses.

VIl. Appeals
The outcome of a student conduct proceading may be appealed subject to the following guidelines:

A. A letter of appeal should be submitted to the Office of the Dean of Students by the student or student
organization within three (3} business days of receipt of the outcome of the student conduct proceeding.

B. A student or student organization adjudicated in absentia forfeits all rights to an appeal process unless
it is proven that it is for lack of proper notice, except in an extraordinary circumstance.
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C. The appeal must specify grounds that would justify consideration. General dissatisfaction with the
outcome of the student conduct proceeding or an appeal for mercy are not appropriate grounds for appeal.
The written appeal must specifically address at jeast one of the following criteria:

1. Significant procedural error that changes the findings of fact of the student conduct proceeding.

2. New evidence that significantly alters the findings of fact, that was previously unknown to the
respondent, has been discovered and is available during the appeal process.

D. For matters resulting in eviction, suspension or expulsion, the Vice President will review and determine
the outcome of the appeal. For all other matters, the Associate Vice President (or designee) will review
and determine the outcome of the appeal.

E. One appeal is permifted, The decision on the appeal is final and shall be conveyed in writing to the
student or student organization.

F. The imposition of sanctions may be deferred while the appeal process is pending unless, in the
discretion of the Associate Vice President, the continued presence of the student on the campus poses a
serious threat to herfhimself or to others, or to the stability and continuance of normal University functions.

Vill. Student Conduct Files and Records

A. The files of students found in viotation of any prohibited conduct will normally be retained as a student conduct
record in the Office of the Dean of Students & the Office of Student Conduct and Ethical Development, under the
authority of the Associate Vice Prasident, as outlined in the University policy governing student records.
University officials may use the record as a reference; however, the record will be retained for no more than five
{5} calendar years from the student's terminating date from the University.

B. All student organization disciplinary records will be maintained by the Office of Campus Activities. University
officials may use the student organization's record as a historical reference.

1 \While this definition is derived from applicable law, the University's offenses encompass more than conduct proscribed py law,

2 Defined by the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA) and the District of Columbia Code.

Last reviewed: October 31, 2014
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I Introduction

The University affirms that sexual relationships are designed by God to be expressed solely within a marriage between
hushand and wife. Sexual acts of any kind outside the confines of marriage are contrary to the teachings and moral
values of the Catholic Church and are prohibited in the University's Code of Student Conduct. The Catholic University of
America promotes respect for persons' bodily integrity, chastity, and the sacredness of human sexuality.

While sexual activity outside of marriage violates the Church’s teaching and the University's Code of Student Conduct,
“sexual offenses,” defined balow, are unlawful behaviors that will not be tolerated; violations can result in disciplinary
sanctions including expulsion, as well as criminal prosecution or other legal action.

Students who report sexual offenses ("complainants”) shall be informed of and encouraged to use all appropriale
University, law enforcement, and community resources, Students accused of sexual offenses (‘respondents”) shall be
informed of and encouraged to use all appropriate University and community resources and shall receive due process in
accordance with University policies and procedures.

This policy applies when a viclation is alleged against a student or student employee. Allegations of sexual offenses
involving non-student employees (faculty and staff}, or a third party (such as a vendor, independent contractor, visitor, or
guest) who is a participant in a University-sponsored activity or program are addressed in accordance with the
University's Sexual Harassment Policy.

Actual or threatened retaliation, or any act of intimidation to prevent or chstruct the reporting of a sexual offense or the '
participation in proceedings related to a sexual offense, is prohibited.

The University believes that no person should bear the effects of a sexual offense alone. When such incidents occur,
the University's paramount concern is for the safety, health, and well-being of those affected. To support and assist
students, the University provides a wide range of services and resources. Please see the section below on Resources
for Medical, Counseling and Pastoral Care and the Dean of Student’s Sexual Violence Prevention website.

Additional information about identifying, reporting and dealing with sexual assault is set forth in the following policy, on
the University's Title IX Website (http:/ititle9.cua.edu/) and in the Related Policles listed above.
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1. Prohibited Conduct and Definitions

A. Sexual Offense’ — Sexual Offenses are prohibited in all forms. “Sexual Offense” is a broad term encompassing
a range of behaviors including, but not limited 1o: sexual assault; sexual harassment; dating violence; domeslic
violence; stalking; indecent exposure; sexual exhibitionism; use of communication systems to send unwanted sexual
material and messages; prostitution or the solicitation or employment of a prostitute; peeping or other voyeurism;
allowing others to view consensual sexual aclivity; the non-consensual video or audio recording of sexual activily; or
any conduct prohibited by applicable faw.

1. Sexual Assault is sexual intercourse or sexual contact with another person without consent. Sexual
assault is a criminal offense under D.C. law and includes the following:

« QOral, vaginal, or anal penetration, no matter how slight, with any object or body part without consent.

+ Non-consensual touching of another person in a sexual manner. This includes, but is not limited to,
the touching either directly or through clothing of another person's genitalia, breasts, inner thigh, or
bultocks with a clothed or unclothed hody part or object.

2. Sexual Harassment means unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other verbal or
physical conduct of a sexual nature when either:

« Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a ferm or condition of
employment, education, on-campus living environment, or participation in a University activity or
program, or

+ Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used or threatened to be used as the basis for
decisions affecting employment, education, on-campus living environment, or parlicipation in a
University activity or program; or"

+ Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work or
educational performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive environment for
smployment, education, on-campus living, or participation in a University activity or program.

Sexual harassment can occur between and among supervisors or managers and subordinates, faculty and
staff or students, peers, vendors/subcontractorsivisitors and employees or students, or any combination
thersof. Often, but not always, the harasser Is in a position of authority, trust, or influence that provides the
opportunity to take advantage of the unequal positions of the parties.

3. Dating Violence® means violence committed by another person who is or has been in a social
relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim, and where the existence of such a relationship
shall be determined based on a consideration of the following factors: a) the length of the relationship, b)
the type of relationship, or c) the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship.

4. Domestic Violence? means viclence committed by a current or former spouse of the victim, by a
person with whom the victim shares a child in common, by a person who s cohabitaling with or has
cohabitated with the victim as a spouse, by a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the
domestic or family violence laws of D.C. (including past or present marriage, domeslic partnership,
romantic, dating, or sexual relationship), by a former spouse or simitarly situated person against a victim
who is in a subsequent relationship with a former spouse or similarly situated person, or by any other
person against a victim who is protected from that person’s acts under the domestic or family violence laws
of D.C,

5. Stalking? means purposely engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific individual that would
cause a reasonable individual to fear for his or her safety or the safety of another person, feel seriously
alarmed, disturbed or frightened, or suffer emotional distress.

A student can face significant disciplinary sanctions, including expulsion, as well as criminal prosecution or other
legal action, for committing a sexual offense.

B. Consent is informed, freely given, mutually understandable words or actions that indicate a willingness 1o
participate in sexual activity, Effective consent may never be obtained when there is a threat of force or violence, or
any other form of coercion or intimidation. A current or previous dating or sexual relationship is not sufficient to
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constitute consent, and consent o one form of sexual activity does not imply consent to other forms of sexual
activity. Consent cannot be obtained from a minor, someone who is mentally disabled, or someone who is unable to
understand or who cannot communicate a lack of consent. This includes someone who is unconscious or asleep, or
who is incapacitated due to drugs, alcohol, or some other condition. Silence or lack of active resistance does not
imply consent.

The definitions above describe the minimum legal standards for conduct, and they set forth terms that help
determine criminal liability and legal responsibility. The University and the Church have higher expectations.
They affirm that sexual activity is intended by God as an expression of love and commitment between a husband
and wife, and therefore belongs exclusively within marriage. Sexual activity by unmarried persons lacks that
essential level of commitment and responsibility, and harms moral growth and development. It undermines the
Christian view of sexual activity embraced and promoted by the Church and the University, a view which insists
upon mutual respect, moral integrity, and the sacredness of human sexuality.

C. Responsible Employee means an employee who has:
1. The authority to take action to redress sexual violence or other sexual offenses; or

2. Besen given the duty of reporting incidents of sexual violence or other sexual offenses to the Title [X
Coordinator, or who a student could reasonably believe has this authority or duty.

At the University, Responsible Employees are listed at: policies.cua.edufres/docs/ResponsibleEmployeesi0-29-
14.pdf.

. Reporting Sexual Offenses
A. Where to Make a Report

To report a sexual offense, conlact the Department of Public Safety (DPS) at tel. (202) 319-5111. DPS is available 24
hours a day, 7 days a week, and will contact the D.C. Metropalitan Police Department (MPD} or other local law
enforcement agencies as necessary. An individual who has been subjected to a sexual offense is always free to report it
directly to local law enforcement, but also should contact DPS, who will assist him or her in conlacling the appropriate
authorities.

Reports of sexual offenses may also be made to the Dean of Students at tel. (202) 319-5619, sawyerj@cua.edu, Pryzbyla
Center, Suite 353. The Dean shall notify DPS and the Equal Opportunity Officer/Title IX Coordinator of the report, normally
within 48 hours.

Reports of sexual offenses may also be made to the University's Equal Opportunity Officer/Title IX Coordinator at tel. 202-
319-6594, TITLEIX-COORD@cua.edu, Leahy Hall 170. The Title IX Coordinator shall notify DPS and the Dean of
Students of the report, normally within 48 hours.

A student also has the option of contacting the Office for Civil Rights regarding sex discrimination issues at:
Washington D.C. (Metro), Office for Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Education, 400 Maryland Avenue, SW,
Washington, D.C. 20202-1475, Telephone: (202) 453-6020, FAX: (202) 453-6021; TDD: 800-877-8339, e-mail:
OCR.DC@ed.gov.

The foregoing information is also available on the Universily's Title X Websile (http:/itle9.cua.edu/).

If a report of a sexual offense is made to any staff or faculty member of the University who is a Responsible Employee
(defined above), the faculty or staff member must contact the Title IX Coordinator who shall inform DPS and the Dean of
Students as appropriate. All other members of the University community, except those designated as confidential
resources in legally-protected roles (see section 1l.C below) are strongly encouraged to report sexual offenses in
accordance with the reporting processes above.

Filing a report of an alleged sexual offense does not obligate a student to parlicipate in the disciplinary process. A
student always has the option to pursue a criminal complaint, to pursue the University's disciplinary process, or to
pursue both processes simultaneously.

B. Privacy

The University is committed to protecting the privacy of all individuals invoived in a reported sexual offense. Information
related to a report of an offense, aside from information disclosed to persons in legally-protected roles as described
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below, will only be shared with individuals whose duties require access to such information. No other persons will
receive any information related to the report or investigation absent a valid subpoena or court order.

If a reported sexual offense discloses an immediate threat to the campus community, the University shall issue a timely
notice of the incident in the interests of the health and safety of the campus community.

C. Confidentiality

If a report is made to the University, the University also recognizes that a complainant may desire confidentiality and
may not want the University to investigate or attempt to resclve the incident, While the University will make every
reasonable effort to honor the complainant’s request for confidentiality, the University must balance this request against
its responsibility to protect the community. In light of this responsibility, the University reserves the right to investigate
and to take whatever steps are necessary to ensure a safe and nondiscriminatory environment for all students. When
the University cannot comply with a student's request for confidentiality, the University will consult with that individual
and keep the student informed throughout the process.

If an individual desires to seek confidential assistance without a report to the University, that individual may speak with
certain persons in legally-protected roles. information disclosed about the alleged offense to persons in legally-
protected roles acting in their professional capacities may not be revealed to any other person without the express
permission of the disclosing individual, unless there is an immediats threat fo health or safety, the conduct involves the
abuse of a minor (see section [X, below), or there is another basis for disclosure permitted or required by law. Legally-
protected roles where confidential assistance may be sought include:

1. Professional mental health counselors (including but not limited to those in the University Counseling
Center

2. Physicians and others licensed to practice medicine in the District of Columbia who are acting in their
health care role per D.C. Code §14.307 (including but not limited to those in University Student Health
Services)

3. Clergy when the communication is made in their professional capacity of giving religious or spiritual
advice, and

4, Appropriately licensed rape crisis/sexual assault counselors

Note: If the employees listed in the categories above are made aware of crimes or offenses oufside of their professional
capacities, those employees may be considered Responsible Employees (defined above) for reporting sexual
offenses. ‘

V. Non-Retaliation

Actual or threatened retafiation, or any act of intimidation to prevent or obstruct the reporting of a sexual offense or the
parlicipation in proceedings related to a sexual offense, is prohibited pursuant to the University's Non-Retaliation Policy
(http:/ipolicies.cua.eduigovernance/nonretaliation.cfm) and will result in disciplinary action regardless of the outcome of the
underlying complaint of a sexual offense.

V. University Response to Reports of Sexual Offenses

If a student report of a sexual offense is made to DPS, DPS shall notify the Title |X Coordinator and the Dean of
Students of the report, normally within 48 hours, The Title IX Coordinator will work with the Dean of Students so that the
student can immediately receive support, be informed of available services, and, if necessary, be protected (e.g., no
contact order, class rescheduling). The Titte IX Coordinator will track all investigations for the University, and advise
participants in the process as appropriate. The University will conduct prompt and thorough investigations into all
reported instances of sexual offenses.

A student who has made a report of a sexual offense will be referred to the Dean of Students, who will appoint a trained
resource person to help explain and navigate the available support services. This includes information regarding
colinseling, educational support, pastoral care, medical treatment, and information about filing a complaint under the Code

of Student Conduct for University disciplinary action.
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Upon receipt of a report of an alleged sexual offense in which the accused is a current Catholic University student or
student employee, the Dean of Students shall issue no-contact orders, as appropriate, to the comptainant and the
respondent.

The Dean of Students shall also provide assistance to the affected students, such as rearranging class schedules and
housing; every effort will be made to accommodate all reasonable requests, te protect the students and the campus
community, and to minimize the impact on the students’ educational programs.

At times, students are hesitant to report the occurrence of a sexual offense to Universily officials because they are
concerned that they or withesses may be charged with other lesser policy violations {e.g. visitation or alcohol viclations).
The importance of dealing with an alleged sexual offense is a paramount consideration. Accordingly, in these cases, the
University may postpone or forgo disciplinary action against a complainant, respondent or witnéss to the incident.

VL.  Resources for Medical, Counseling and Pastoral Care

It is especially important that students who report having been subjected ld sexual assault seek immediate and appropriate
medical treatment. Following such incidents, students should not shower, eal, change clothes, or brush teeth prior to
seeking medical attention.

Student Health Services (SHS) is open from Monday through Friday from 9 am — 5 pm and on Saturday from 9 am - 1 pm
during the academic year and is equipped to provide confidential and professional medical care, - SHS can be reached in
the Kane Health & Fitness Center or at tel. (202) 319-5744. While the SHS staff is unable to collect evidence for the
purposes of pursuing criminal prosecution, they can provide assistance and support when a student requests or requires
transportation to the hospital.

The SANE (Sexual Assault Nurse Ekaminer) Program? al Washington Hospital Center (WHC) provides comprehensive
nursing care, medical testing, forensic evidence collection, and support services free of charge within four days (98 hours)
of an incident of sexual assauit. :

Collection of evidence by a SANE nurse does not reduire that a student file a police report, although a student is always
fres to do so. The SANE Program will hold evidence collected for 90 days should the complainant choose to file a report
with MPD within that time.

A student who goes to a hospital other than WHC may request to be transported to WHC for evidence collection and a
physical exam.

The University Counseling Center is staffed by trained professionals who can provide specialized support and assistance 1o
students who have been subjected to a sexua) offense. Current students may seek counseling at any time, no matter how
long ago the incident occurred. Counseling services also are available to friends of a victim who may need support in
assisting the student. The Counseling Center can be reached at tel. (202) 319-5765 or al hitp:/fcounseling.cua.edu/.

The Campus Ministry staff is trained to provide pastoral counseling and support to students or to friends who wish to
support and assist them. Campus Ministry can be reached at tel. (202) 319-5575 or at hitp://ministry.cua.edu/,

The on-campus resources listed above are available to all Catholic University students including victims, accused
students and witnesses in sexual offense cases.

In addition to campus counseling, students may contact local community resources, including the DC Rape Crisis
Center (24-hour Hotline: tel. (202) 333-7273; weh site http:/fwww.dcerec.orgl). The Network for Victim Recovery of DC
(NVRDC) will send an advocate to the hospital to assist throughout the evidence collection process. A list of community
resources and area hospitals is also available at hitp:/fiwww.uaskdc.org/ and in the Office of the Dean of Students.

V. Prevention Education
The University's Sexual Assault Prevention education is coordinated through the Office of the Dean of Students.
Through collaborative efforts with other University departments, the Office of the Dean of Students works to prevent

sexual violence and harassment through a variety of educational and awareness programs and initiatives. See Sexual
Assault Education and Awareness for further information.

VIHI.  University Disciplinary Action

While sexual activity outside of marriage violates the Church's teaching and the University's Code of Student Conduct,
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“sexual offenses,” as defined in this policy, are unlawful behaviors that will not be tolerated; violations can result in
disciplinary sanctions including expulsion, as well as criminal prosecution or other legal action.

Allegations of sexual offenses may he adjudicated under the disciplinary procedures outlined in the Code of Student
Conduct and set forth in the University's Sexual Offenses Grievance Procedures, regardless of whether they are also
reporied as a crime to local palice or the subject of any criminal or civil action. Disciplinary action at the University may
proceed while criminal or civil proceedings are pending, and will not be subject to challenge on the grounds that criminal
charges involving the same incident have been dismissed or reduced, that no criminal charges have been brought, or
that any civil action has been dismissed. Penalties shall be administered independent of any pending civil or criminal
actlon or settlement reached. The full range of disciplinary sanctions, including expulsion from the University, may be
considered, depending on the nature and severity of the offense.

Both the complainant and the respondent shall have the same opportunities to have an advisor present during a
disciplinary proceeding and shall be informed of the final determination and any sanctions imposed against the accused
student for a finding of a sexual offense. Praceedings will not be dismissed simply because the complainant or
respondent withdraws from the University.

IX. Mandatory Reporting of Child Sexual Assault/Abuse

D.C. Code §4-1321.02 requires that certain persons make a report of child (a minor under 18 years of age) sexual
assault or abuse to the D.C. Child and Family Services Agency or to MPD at tel. (202) 676-6768.

The persons required to make & report include the following: physician, psychologist, registered nurse, licensed practical
hurse, person involved in the care and treatment of patients, law-enforcement officer, school official, teacher/faculty
member, athletic coach, social service worker, day care worker, and mental health professional as defined in D.C. Code
§7-1201.01(11). Priests are required to report sexual assault or abuse of a minor in accordance with the Archdiocese of
Washington Child Protection Policy.

1 \While this definition Is derived from applicable law, the University's offenses encompass more than conduct proscribed by law.
2 Defined by the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA) and the District of Columbia Code.

s Compassionate and understanding care should be given to a person who is the victim of sexual assault. Health care providers
should cooperate with law enforcement officials and offer the person psychological and spiritual support as well as accurate medical
information. A fernale who has been raped should be able to defend herself against a potential conception from the sexual assault, If,
after appropriate testing, there is no evidence that conception has occurred already, she may be treated with medications that would
prevent ovulation, sperm capacitation, or fertilization. It is not permissible, however, to initiate or to recommend treatments that have
as their purpose or direct effect the removal, destruction, or interference with the implantation of a fertilized ovum. Source: Directive
36 of the Ethical and Religious Directives for Catholic Health Care Services, Fifth Edition, United States Conference of Catholic
Bishops (November 17, 2009). ’

Last reviewed: Octobor 29, 2014

Bl & voll® @ M oo

The Catholic University of America * 620 Michigan Ave., N.E. * Washington, DG 20064

http://policies.cua.edu/ StudentLife/studentconduct/assault.cfm 2/19/2015



Student Life Sexual Assault:- Policies Page 1 of 6

/ THE CATHOLIC UNIVERSITY OF AMERICA

Policies

Sexual Offenses Policy
Approved by: President
History: ‘ Issued --June 17, 1993
Revised -- Qctober 27, 2014
Additional History

Code of Student Conduct; Sexual Offenses Grievance Procedures; Sexual Harassment

Relatad Policles: Policy; Non-Retaliation Policy

University Title IX Website; Dean of Student’s Sexual Violence Prevention website;
Additional References:  hitp:/Awww.uaskdc.org/; Equal Opportunity Officer/Title IX Coordinator; Network for Victim
Recovery of DC (NVRDC)

Responsible Official: Dean of Students tel. (202) 319-5619

. Introduction

The University affirms that sexual relatiohships are designed by God to be expressed solely within a marriage between
husband and wife. Sexual acts of any kind outside the confines of marriage are contrary to the teachings and moral
values of the Catholic Church and are prohibited in the University's Code of Student Conduct. The Catholic University of
America promotes respect for persons' bodily integrity, chastity, and the sacredness of human sexuality.

While sexual activity outside of marriage violates the Church's teaching and the University's Code of Student Conduct,
“sexual offenses,” defined below, are unlawful behaviors that will not be tolerated; violations can result in disciplinary
sanctions including expulsion, as well as criminal prosecution or other legal action.

Students who report sexual offenses (“complainants”) shall be informed of and encouraged to use all appropriate
University, law enforcement, and community resources. Students accused of sexual offenses (‘respondents”) shall be
informed of and encouraged to use all appropriate University and community resources and shall receive due process in
accordance with University policies and procedures.

This policy applies when a violation is alleged against a student or student employee. Allegations of sexual offenses
involving non-student employees (faculty and staff), or a third party (such as a vendor, independent contractor, visitor, or
guest) who s a participant in a University-sponsored activity or program are addressed in accordance with the
University's Sexual Harassment Poficy.

Aclual or threatened retaliation, or any act of intimidation to prevent or obstruct the reporting of a sexual offense or the
participation in proceedings related o a sexual offense, is prohibited,

The University believes that no person should bear the effects of a sexual offense alone. When such incidents oceur,
the University's paramount concern is for the safety, heaith, and well-being of those affected. To support and assist
students, the University provides a wide range of services and resources. Please see the section below on Resources
for Medical, Counseling and Pastoral Care and the Dean of Student's Sexual Violence Prevention website.

Additional information about identifying, reporting and dealing with sexual assault is set forth in the following policy, on
the University’s Title IX Website (htip://title9.cua.edu/) and in the Related Policies listed above.
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1L Prohibited Conduct and Definitions

A. Sexual Offense! — Sexual Offenses are prohibited in all forms. "Sexual Offense” is a broad term encompassing
a range of behaviors including, but not limited to: sexual assault; sexual harassment; dating violence; domestic
violence; statking; indecent exposure; sexual exhibitionism; use of communication systems to send unwanled sexual
material and messages; prostitution or the solicitation or employment of a prostitute; peeping or other voyeurism;
allowing others to view consensual sexual activity; the non-consensual video or audio recording of sexual activity; or
any conduct prohibited by applicable law.

1. Sexual Assault is sexual intercourse or sexual contact with another person without consent. Sexual
assault is a criminal offense under D.C. law and includes the following:

« Oral, vaginal, or anal penetration, no matter how slight, with any object or body part without consent.

» Non-consensual touching of another person in a sexual manner, This includes, but is not limited to,
the touching either directly or through clothing of another person’s genilalia, breasts, inner thigh, or
buttocks with a clothed or unclothed body part or object.

2. Sexual Harassment means unwelcome sexuat advances, requests for sexual favors, or other verbal or
physical conduct of a sexual nature when either:

+ Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicilly a term or condition of
employment, education, on-campus living environment, or participation in a University activity or
program; or

- Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used or threatened fo be used as the basis for
decisions affecting employment, education, on-campus living environment, or participation in a
University activity or program; or

« Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work or
educational performance or crealing an intimidating, hostile, or offensive environment for
employment, education, on-campus living, or participation in a University activity or program.

Sexual harassment can occur between and among supervisors or managers and subordinates, faculty and
staff or students, peers, vendors/subcontractors/visitors and employees or students, or any combination
thereof. Often, but not always, the harasser is in a position of authority, trust, or influence that provides the
opportunity to take advantage of the unequal positions of the parties.

3. Dating Violence? means violence committed by another person who is or has been in a social
relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim, and where the existence of such a relationship
shall be determined based on a consideration of the following factors: a) the length of the relationship, b)
the type of relationship, or ¢) the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship.

4. Domestic Violence? means violence committed by a current or former spouse of the victim, by a
“person with whom the victim shares a child in common, by a person who is cohabitating with or has
cohabitated with the victim as a spouse, by a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the
domestic or family violence laws of D.C. (including past or present marriage, domestic partnership,
romantic, dating, or sexual relationship), by a former spouse or similarly situated person against a victim
who is in a subsequent retationship with a former spouse or similarly situated person, or by any other

person against a victim who is protected from that person’s acts under the domestic or family violence laws
of D.C.

5, Stalking? means purposely engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific individual that would
cause a reasonable individual to fear for his or her safety or the safety of another person, feel seriously
alarmed, disturbed or frightened, or suffer emotionat distress.

A student can face significant disciplinary sanctions, including expulsion, as well as criminal prosecution or other
legal action, for committing a sexual offense,

B. Consent is informed, freely given, mutually understandable words or actions that indicate a willingness fo

participate in sexual activity. Effective consent may never be obtained when there is a threat of force or violence, or
any other form of coercion or intimidation. A current or previous dating or sexual relationship is not sufficient to
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constitute consent, and consent to one form of sexual activity does not imply consent to other forms of sexual
activity. Consent cannot be obtained from a minor, someone who is mentally disabled, or someone who is unable to
understand or who cannot communicate a lack of consent. This includes someone who is unconscious or asieep, or
who is incapacitated due to drugs, alcohol, or some other condition. Silence or lack of active resistance does not
imply consent. :

The definitions above describe the minimum legal standards for conduct, and they set forth terms that help
determine criminal liabiliy and legal responsibility. The University and the Church have higher expectations.
They affirm that sexual activily is intended by God as an expression of love and commitment between a hushand
and wife, and therefore belongs exclusively within marriage. Sexual activity by unmarried persons lacks that
essential level of commitment and responsibility, and harms moral growth and development. it undermines the
Christian view of sexual activity embraced and promoted by the Church and the University, a view which insists
upon mutual respect, moral integrity, and the sacredness of human sexuality.

C. Responsible Employee means an employee who has.
1. The authority to take action to redress sexual violence or other sexuat offenses; or

2. Been given the duty of reporting incidents of sexual violence or other sexual offenses to the Tille IX
Coordinatar, or who a student could reasonably believe has this authority or duty,

At the University, Responsible Employees are listed at: policies.cua.edufres/docs/ResponsibleEmployees10-29-
14.pdf.

l[ll. Reporting Sexual Offenses
A, Where to Make a Report

To report a sexual offense, contact the Department of Public Safety (DPS) at tel. (202) 319-5111. DPS is available 24
hours a day, 7 days a week, and will contact the D.C. Metropolitan Police Department (MPD) or other local law
enforcement agencies as necessary. An individual who has been subjected to a sexual offense is always free to report it
directly to local law enforcement, but also should contact DPS, who will assist him or her in contacting the appropriate
authorities.

Reports of sexual offenses may also be made to the Dean of Students at tel. (202) 319-5619, sawyerj@cua.edu, Pryzbyla
Center, Suite 353. The Dean shall notify DPS and the Equal Opporlunity Officer/Tille IX Coordinator of the report, normally
within 48 hours,

Reports of sexual offenses may also be made to the University's Equal Opportunity Officer/Title IX Coordinator at tel. 202-
319-6594, TITLEIX-COORD@cua.edu, Leahy Hall 170. The Title IX Coordinator shall notify DPS and the Dean of
Students of the report, normally within 48 hours.

A student also has the option of contacting the Office for Civil Rights regarding sex discrimination issues at:
Washington D.C. (Metro), Office for Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Education, 400 Maryland Avenue, SW,
Washington, D.C. 20202-1475, Telephone: (202) 453-6020, FAX: (202) 453-6021; TDD: 800-877-8339, e-mail:
OCR.DC@ed.gov.

The foregoing information is also available on the University’s Title IX Website (http:/tille9.cua.edul).

If a report of a sexual offense is made to any staff or faculty member of the University who is a Responsible Employee
(defined above), the faculty or staff member must contact the Title X Coordinator who shall inform DPS and the Dean of
Students as appropriate. All other members of the University community, excepl those designated as confidential
resources in legally-protected roles (see section 111.C below) are strongly encouraged to report sexual offenses in
accordance with the reporting processes above,

Filing a report of an alleged sexual offense does not obligate a student to participate in the disciplinary process. A
student always has the option to pursue a criminal complaint, to pursue the University's disciplinary process, or to
pursue both processes simultaneously.

B. Privacy

The University is committed to protecting the privacy of all individuals involved in a reported sexual offense. Information
related to a report of an offense, aside from information disclosed to persons in legally-protected roles as described
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below, will only be shared with individuals whose duties require access to such information. No other persons will
receive any information related to the report or investigation absent a valid subpoena or court order.

If a reported sexual offense discloses an immediate threat to the campus community, the Universily shall issue a timely
notice of the incident in the interests of the heaith and safety of the campus community.

C. Confidentiality

If a report is made to the University, the University also recognizes that a complainant may desire confidentialilty and
may not want the University to investigate or attempt to resolve the incident. While the University will make every
reasonable effort to honor the complainant's request for confidentiality, the University must balance this request against
its responsibility to protect the community. In light of this responsibility, the University reserves the right to investigate
and to take whatever steps are necessary Lo ensure a safe and nondiscriminatory environment for all students. When
the University cannot comply with a student's request for confidentiality, the University will consult with that individual
and keep the student informed throughout the process.

If an individual desires to seek confidential assistance without a report to the University, that individual may speak with
certain persons in legally-protected roles. Information disclosed about the alleged offense to persons in legalty-
protected roles acting in their professional capacities may not be revealed to any other person without the express
permission of the disclosing individual, unless there is an immediate threat to health or safety, the conduct involves the
abuse of a minor (see section IX, below), or there is another basis for disclosure permitted or required by law. Legally-
protected roles where confidential assistance may be sought include:

1. Professional mental health counselors {including but not limited to those in the University Counseling
Center

2. Physicians and others licensed to practice medicine in the District of Columbia who are acting in their
healith care role per D.C. Code §14.307 (including but not imited to those in University Student Health
Services)

3. Clergy when the communication is made in their professional capacity of giving religious or spiritual
advice, and

4. Appropriately licensed rape crisis/sexual assault counselors

Note: If the employees listed in the categories above are made aware of crimes or offenses outside of their professional
capacities, those employees may be considered Responsible Employees (defined above) for reporting sexual
offenses.

IV. Non-Retaliation

Actual or threatened retaliation, or any act of intimidation to prevent or abstruct the reporting of a sexual offense or the
participation in proceedings related to a sexual offense, is prohibited pursuant to the University's Non-Retaliation Palicy
(http:/ipolicies .cua.edu/governance/monretaliation.cfm) and will result in disciplinary action regardless of the outcome of the
underlying complaint of a sexual offense.

V.  University Response to Reports of Sexual Offenses

If a student report of a sexual offense is made to¢ DPS, DPS shall notify the Title IX Coordinator and the Dean of
Students of the report, normally within 48 hours. The Title [X Coordinator will work with the Dean of Students go that the
student can immediately receive support, be informed of available services, and, if necessary, be protected (e.g., no
contact order, ¢lass rescheduling). The Title 1X Coordinator will track afl investigations for the University, and advise
participants in the process as appropriate. The University will conduct prompt and thorough investigations into all
reported instances of sexual offenses.

A student who has made a report of a sexual offense wilt be referred to the Dean of Students, who will appoint a trained
resource person lo help explain and navigate the available support services. This includes information regarding
counseling, educational suppott, pasloral care, medical freatment, and information about filing a complaint under the Code

of Student Conduct for University disciplinary action.
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Upon receipt of a report of an alleged sexual offense in which the accused is a current Catholic University student or
student employee, the Dean of Students shall issue no-contact orders, as appropriate, fo the complainant and the
respondent.

The Dean of Students shall also provide assistance to the affected students, such as rearranging class schedules and
housing; every effort will be made lo accommodate all reasonable requests, to protect the students and the campus
community, and to minimize the impact on the students’ educational programs.

At times, students are hasitant to report the occurrence of a sexual offense to University officials because they are
concerned thal they or withesses may be charged wilh other lesser policy violations (e.g. visitation or alcohol violations).
The importance of dealing with an alleged sexual offense is a paramount consideration. Accordingly, in these cases, the
University may postpone or forgo disciplinary action against a complainant, respondent or witness to the incident.

V. Resources for Medical, Counseling and Pastoral Care

It is especially important that students who report having been subjected to sexual assault seek immediate and appropriate
medical treatment. Following such incidents, students should not shower, eat, change clothes, or brush teeth prior to
seeking medical attention.

Student Health Services (SHS) is open from Monday through Friday from 9 am — 5 pm and on Saturday from 9 am — 1 pm
during the academic year and is equipped to provide confidential and professional medical care. SHS can be reached in
the Kane Heaith & Fitness Center or at tel. (202) 319-5744. While the SHS staff is unable to collect evidence for the
purposes of pursuing criminal prosecution, they can provide assistance and support when a student requests or requires .
transportation to the hospital. ' :

The SANE (Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner) Program? at Washington Hospital Center (WHC) provides comprehensive
nursing care, medical testing, forensic evidence collection, and support services free of charge within four days (86 hours)
of an incident of sexual assault.

Collection of evidence by a SANE nurse does not require that a student file a police report, atthough a student is always
free to do so. The SANE Program will hold evidence collected for 90 days should the complainant choose to file a report
with MPD within that time.

A student who goes to a hospital other than WHC may request to be transported to VWHC for evidence collection and a
physical exam.

The University Counseling Center is staffed by trained professionals who can provide specialized support and assistance to
students who have been subjected to a sexual offense. Current students may seek counseling at any time, no matter how
long ago the incident occurred. Counseling services also are available to friends of a victim who may need support in
assisting the student. The Counseling Center can be reached at tel. (202) 319-5765 or at hitp://counseling.cua.edu/.

The Campus Ministry staff is trained to provide pastoral counseling and support to students or to friends who wish to
support and assist them. Campus Ministry can be reached at tel. (202) 319-5575 or at hitp://ministry.cua.edu/.

The on-campus resources listed above are available to all Catholic University students including victims, accused
students and witnesses in sexual offense cases.

In addition to campus counseling, students may contact local community resources, including the DC Rape Crisis
Center (24-hour Hotline: tel. (202) 333-7273; web site hitp://www.derce.orgf). The Network for Victim Recovery of DC
(NVRDC) will send an advocate to the hospital to assist throughout the evidence collection process. A list of community
resources and area hospitals Is also avaitable at hitp:/iwww.uaskdc.org/ and in the Office of the Dean of Students.

VIL. Prevention Education

The University’s Sexual Assault Prevention education is coordinated through the Office of the Dean of Students.
Through collaborative efforts with other University departments, the Office of the Dean of Students works to prevent
sexual violence and harassment through a variety of educational and awareness programs and initiatives. See Sexual
Assault Education and Awareness for further information.

VHI.  University Disciplinary Action

While sexual activity outside of marriage violates the Church’s teaching and the University's Code of Student Conduct,
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“sexual offenses,” as defined in this policy, are unlawful behaviors that will not he tolerated; violations can result in
disciplinary sanctions including expulsion, as well as criminal prosecution or other legal action.

Allegations of sexual offenses may be adjudicated under the disciplinary procedures outlined in the Code of Student
Conduct and set forth in the University's Sexual Offenses Grievance Procedures, regardiess of whether they are also
reported as a crime to local police or the subject of any criminal or civil action. Disciplinary action at the University may
proceed while criminal or civil proceedings are pending, and will not be subject to challenge on the grounds that criminal
charges involving the same incident have been dismissed or reduced, that no criminal charges have been brought, or
that any civil action has bheen dismissed. Penalties shall be administered independent of any pending civil or criminal
action or settlement reached. The full range of disciplinary sanctions, including expulsion from the University, may be
considered, depending on the nature and severity of the offensae.

Both the complainant and the respondent shall have the same opportunities to have an advisor present during a
disciplinary praceeding and shali be informed of the final defermination and any sanctions imposed against the accused
student for a finding of a sexual offense. Proceedings will not he dismissed simply because the complainant or
respondent withdraws from the University.

IX. Mandatory Reporting of Child Sexual Assault/Abuse

D.C. Code §4-1321.02 requires that certain persons make a report of child (a minor under 18 years of age) sexual
assault or abuse to the D.C. Child and Family Services Agency or to MPD at tel. (202) 576-6768.

The persons required to make a report include the following: physician, psychclogist, registered nurse, licensed practical
nurse, person invelved in the care and treatment of patients, law-enforcement officer, school official, teacher/faculty
member, athletic coach, social service worker, day care worker, and mental health professional as defined in D.C. Code
§7-1201.01(11). Priests are required to report sexual assault or abuse of a minor in accordance with the Archdiocese of
Washington Child Protection Policy.

* While this definition is derived from applicable law, the University's offenses encompass more than conduct proscribed by law.
2 Defined by the Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA) and the District of Columbia Code.

* Compassionate and understanding care should be given to a person who is the victim of sexual assault. Health care providers
should cooperate with law enforcement officials and offer the person psychological and spiritual suppori as well as accurate medical
information. A female who has been raped should be able to defend herseif against a potential conception from the sexual assault. if,
after appropriate testing, there is no evidence that conception has occurred already, she may be treated with medications that would
prevent ovulation, sperm capacitation, or fertilization. It is not permissible, however, to initiate or to recommend treatments that have
as their purpose or direct effect the removal, destruction, or interference with the implantation of a ferlilized ovum. Source: Directive
36 of the Ethical and Religious Directives for Catholic Health Care Services, Fifth Edition, United States Conference of Catholic
Bishops (November 17, 2009).
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees
The Catholic University of America

Woe have audited the accompanying consolidated financial stalements of The Cathalic University of America and ils
affiliates (the *University™), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of Apiil 30, 2014 and
2013, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financilal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the University's preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion' on the effectiveness of the University's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in alt material respects, the
financial position of The Catholic University of America and its affiliates at April 30, 2014 and 2013, and the changes
in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance wilth accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 100 East Pratt Street, Suite 1900, Baltimore, MD 21202-1096
T: (410} 783 7600, F: (410) 783 7680, www.pwe.com/us



Other Matter .

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole. The consolidating information for the year ended April 30, 2014 is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial stalements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the audiling procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves and other additional procedures, in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the consolidating information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The
consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements
rather than to present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the individual affiliates and is not
a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the financial
position, resuits of operations and cash flows of the individual affiliates.

September 10, 2014



The Catholic University of America and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
Aprit 30, 2014 and 2013

{in thousands) : 2014 2013
Assets :
Cash and cash equivalents $ 39,736 $ 38,741

Accounts receivable:
Student fees and other, net of allowance for doubtful accounts

of $1,782 and $1,457, respectively 5,506 6,982
U.S. government and other agencies, net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $238 and $208, respectively 4,428 4,012
Student ioans receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $1,208 and $1,201, respectively 6,956 7,005
Contributions receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
$1,027 and $1,007, respectively 9,422 7.442
Investments 351,927 323,402
Deposits with bond trustee 1,137 1,428
Deferred charges and other assets 7,038 5,478
Property and equipment, net 182,127 180,569
Interest in perpetual trusts 2,409 2,243
Total assets $ 610686 § 577,302
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 27738 §$ 21,513
Deferred revenues, student depasits and other liabilities 7,197 5,621
Refundable advances from the U.8. government 7,401 7,498
Split-interest agreements 1,650 1,410
Asset retirement obligations : 7,704 7,190
Indebledness 103,175 106,388
Total liabilities 154,765 149,620
Net assels:
Unrestricted
Undesignated and intemally designated 109,572 107,598
Designated funds functioning as endowment 690,462 63,508
Farone Foundation 30,464 26,593
Net investment in property and equipment 76,067 72,255
285,565 269,954
Temporaiily restricted
Split interest agreements . 9,155 8,402
CUA Foundation 19 59
Property and equipment 5725 5,644
Depariment gifts and scholarships 64,203 54,611
79,102 68,718
Permanently restricted
Student loans 2,319 2,269
Endowment 85,633 83,5986
Split interest agreements 3,312 3,147
91,264 89,012
Total net assets 455,921 427 682
Total liabilities and net assets - ‘ - $ 610,686 $ 577,302

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The Catholic University of America and Affiliates
Consolidated Statement of Activities
Year Ended April 30, 2014

Temporarily Permanently

{in thousands) Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Operating revenues and support:
Student tuition and fees, net , $ 134,473 $ - $ - § 134,473
Federal and private grants and contracts 24,123 - - 24,123
Contributions 13,672 2,518 - 16,190
Investment return designated for current ‘
operations 6,833 2,934 - 9,767
Sales and senices of departments 1,390 - - 1,390
Sales and sendces of auxiliary enterprises 32,843 - - 32,843
Net assels released from restrictions 7,123 {7,123) - -
Other operating revenues 3,234 - - 3,234
Total operating revenues and support 223,691 (1,671) - 222,020
Operating expenses:
Educational and general;
Instruction and departmental research . 100,146 - - 100,146
Sponsored research 16,217 - - 16,217
Public sendce 2,698 - - 2,698
Libraries 13,444 - - 13,444
Student senices 25,300 - - 25,300
Institutional support 32,616 - - 32,616
Total educational and general expenses 190,421 ‘ - - 190,421
Auxiliary enterprises - 27,196 - - 27,196
Total operating expenses 217,617 - - 217,617
Change in net assets from operations . 6,074 (1,671} . - 4,403
Nonoperating activities:
Contributions 1,552 3,062 1,879 6,493
frvestment retum in excess of amotnts
designated for current operations 7,494 8,977 12 16,483
Changes in the value of split-interest
agreements (1) 173 166 338.
Required net asset transfers (40) {155) 195 -
Loss on sale of property : 4 - - 4
Other nonoperating gains 526 - - 526
Change in net assets from nonoperating activities 9,527 12,057 2,252 23,836
Change in net assets 15,601 10,386 2,252 28,239
iNet assets at beginning of year 269,954 68,716 89,012 427,682
Net assets at end of year $ 285555 $ 79,102 $ 91,264 § 455,921

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

4



The Catholic University of America and Affiliates
Consolidated Statement of Activities
Year Ended April 30, 2013

Temporarily Permanently

(in thousands) Unrestricted Restricted  Restricted Total
. Operating revenues and support:

Student tuition and fees, net ' $ 131,851 % - 3 - % 131,851
Federal and private grants and contracts 23,442 - - 23,442
Contributions 10,252 2,855 - 13,107

Investment retum designated for current
operations 6,279 2,653 - 8,932
Sales and senices of departments ‘ 1,299 - - 1,289
Sales and sendces of auxiliary enterprises 35,615 - - 35,615
Net assets released from restrictions 5,304 (6,304) - -
Other operating revenues . 3,118 - - 3,118
Total operating revenues and support 217,160 204 - 217,364

Operating expenses:
Educational and general;

instruction and departmental research 97,836 - - 97,836
Sponsored research 15,589 - - 15,589
Public sendce 2,856 - - 2,866
Libraries 13,683 - - 13,683
Student senices 24,759 - - 24,759
Institutional support : 31,807 ~ - 31,807
Total educational and general expenses 186,530 - - 186,530
Auxiliary enterprises 29,520 - - 29,520
Total operating expenses 216,050 - - 216,060
Change in net assets from operations 1,110 204 - 1,314
Nenoperating activities: .
Contributions 18 932 1,646 2,596
Investment return in excess of amounts :
designated for current operations 3,280 10,421 13 13,714
Changes in the value of split-interest )
agreements - 1 85 103 189
Required net asset transfers 817) {532) 1,349 -
Gain on sale of property (2) - - (2
Other non-operating revenues 164 - - 164
Change in net assets from nonoperating activities 2,644 10,806 3,111 16,661
Change in net assets 3,754 11,110 311 17,975
Net assets at beginning of year 286,200 57,806 85,901 409,707
Net assets at end of year $ 260654 § 68716 $ 89012 $ 427,682

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The Catholic University of America and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activties:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to cash
and cash equivalents provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Accretion expense
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Amortization of bond premium
Provision for bad debt expense
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments
Loss on disposal of properly
Receipt of contributed securities
Proceeds from sale of donated securities
{Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Deferred charges and other assets
Notes receivable
Contributicns receivable
Interest in perpetual trusts
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenues and student deposits
Refundable advances
Split-interest agreements
Asset retirement obligations
Contributions restricted for long-term investment
Net cash provided by operating activties
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Purchases of property and equipment .
Sales of investments within deposits held by bond trustee
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from contributions restricted for long-term investment
Proceeds from sale of donated secusities restricted for endowment
Principal payments of notes and bonds payable and line of credit
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest
Cash paid during the year for taxes
Contributed securities
MNon-cash transactions:
Accrued expenses for purchases of property and equipment

2014 2013
$ 28239 $ 17,975
10,921 11,057
363 349

94 94
(164) (163}
342 (1,309)
(24,044) (20,723)
36 20
(1,741) (324)
1,664 163
705 701
(1,655) (293)
42 96
(1,960) (479)
(166) (103)
4,523 883
1,576 927
(97) 189

140 135
151 (63)
(1,892) (1,664)
17,077 7,468
(108,270} (59,756)
103,789 57,509
{10,813) (7,467)
292 112
(15,002) (9,602)
1,892 1,664
77 162
(3,049) (2,023)
{1,080) (1,097)
995 (3,231)
38,741 41,972
$ 39736 $ 38,741
$ 475 $ 4,873
$ 94 3 59
$ 1741 $ 324
$ 2337 § 635

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The Catholic University of America and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013

1.

Organization

The Catholic University of America (“the Universily”) is an independent institution of higher education
tocated in Washington, D.C., offering programs of study leading to bachelor’s, master's, and doctoral
degrees in the liberal arts and sciences, religious studies, and several professional areas including
engineering, architecture, social service, nursing, music, law and Canon Law. Its 180-acre campus is
located in northeast Washington, approximately two miles from the United States Capitol. The University
is sponsored by the Roman Catholic bishops of the United States.

The creation of the University as a national institute of learning was proposed by the Catholic Bishops of
the United States meeting at the Second Plenary Council in Baltimore in 1866; the University was
formally established as a center for graduate studies in theology by the Third Plenary Council in
Baltimore in 1884, On April 19, 1887, the University was formally incorporated under Chapter 18 of the
Revised Statutes of the United States relating to the District of Columbia. In 1964, the University elected
to avait itself of the nonprofit corporation provisions of the District of Columbia Code by filing a Statement
of Election to Accept with the appropriate authorities of the District of Columbia. The University is vested
with authority from the Holy See to grant the ecclesiastical degrees of Bachelor, Licentiate and Doctorate
in Philosophy and Sacred Theology and Licentiate and Doctoral degrees in Canon Law.

There are approximately 400 full-time faculty members, along with approximately 3,713 undergraduate
and 3,012 graduate students.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the University's separataly incorporated
affiliates, the Albert E. and Angela T. Farone Foundation, Inc. (“Farone Foundation®} and the Catholic
University of America Foundation ("CUA Foundation’). The Farone Foundation's Board of Directors is
comprised of five members, four of whom are officers or staff of the University and one independent
member. The Farone Foundation was originally established in 1965 and reincorporated in 1981. In
2009, the Farone Foundation Board of Directors affirmed that the proceeds were to be used towards the
charitable, scientific, educational, literary and/or religious purposes of the University and to provide
scholarships to cerlain students atiending the University. The CUA Foundation’s Board of Directors is
comprised of three officers of the University. The CUA Foundation was originally established in 1880 to
operate exclusively to support the University and its members,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accrual Basis
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US generally accepted accounting principles
(US GAAP) in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect:
(1) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities; (2) disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements; and (3) the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the asset
retirement oblfigations and non-traditional investments. Actual resuits could differ materially, in the near
term, from the amounts reported.

Continued
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The Catholic University of America and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified bhased on the existence or absence
of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the University and changes therein are
classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted. Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that sither expire by
passage of time or that can be fulfilled by actions of the University pursuant to those stipulations.

Permanently Restricted. Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be
maintained permanently by the University.

Revenues from sources other than contributions are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets
unless use of the related assels is limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Unless otherwise noted,
restricted assets are held primarily for student aid and departmental support. Contributions are reported
as increases in the appropriate category of net assets. If a restriction is fulfilled in the same time period
in which the confribution is received, the amount of the support is reported as unresfricted. Expenses
are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assels. Investment income is reported as increases or
decreases in unrestricted net assets unless ils use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or by law.
Expirations of temporary restrictions recognized on net assets (i.e. the donor-stipulated purpose has
been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as reclassifications from
temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets. Temporary restrictions on gifts to acquire
long-lived assets are considered met in the period in which the assets are acquired or placed in service.

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period
received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend are
substantially met. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value at
the date of gift. Contributions to be received after one year are discounted at a rate commensurate with
the risk involved. Amortization of the discount is recorded as additional contribution revenue and used in
accordance with donor-imposed restrictions, if any, on the contributions. An allowance is made for
uncollectible contributions based upon management's judgment and analysis of the creditworthiness of
the donors, past collection experience and other relevant factors. Contributions that are permanently
restricled or restricted for capital purposes are recorded in non-operating activities.

Contributed services are only recognized for those services that would need to be purchased by the
University if not otherwise provided, require specialized skills and are provided by individuals with those
skills. For the year ended April 30, 2014 and 2013, the University recognized $413,000 and $979,000 of
contributed services for legal work and skilled work associated with a nalional contest involving the
University's architecture students.

Income Taxes .

The University and its affilates are recognhized as exempt from federal income tax under
Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code ("IRC"), except on activities unrelated to their
exempt purposes. No provision for income taxes is required for the years ended April 30, 2014 and
2013, as the University had no net unrelated business income. In consideration of accounting standards
related to income taxes, the University concluded there were no open posifions that result in material
unrecognized tax benefits or which may have any effect on its tax-exempt status as of April 30, 2014 and
2013.

Consolidation
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Continted
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The Catholic University of America and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments purchased wtth a maturity at date of purchase of three months or less are
considered to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents include money market funds of $401,000 and
$329,000, certificates of deposit of $0 and $150,000, and short-term securities of $2,828,000 and
$3,675,000 at April 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Notes and Student Loans Receivable
The Universily records an aflowance for doubtful accounts {credit losses) for the following notes and
student loans receivables (in thousands):

2014 2013
Receivable Receivable
Balance Allowance Balance Allowance
Perkins loans $ 5000 % 600 $ 4919 % 541
Other student loans and other receivables 3,164 608 3,287 660

Notes and student loans receivable . $ 8,164 § 1,208 $ 8,206 § 1,201

Management regularly assesses the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses by performing ongoing
evaluations of the student loan portfolic including reviewing economic risks assoclated with each loan
category. The University's Perkins receivable represents the amounts due from current and former
students under the Federal Perkins Loan Program. Loans disbursed under the Federal Perkins Loan
program are able to be assigned to the Federal Government in certain non-repayment situations. In
these situations the Federal porlion of the loan balance is guaranteed. Management believes that the
allowance for credit losses at April 30, 2014 is adequate to absorb credit losses inherent in the portfolio
as of that date.

Investments

Purchased investments are stated at fair value. Purchases and sales are recorded on the trade date. All
cash and money market funds held by investment managers are reported as investments. {nvestments
acquired by gifts or bequests are stated at market or appraised value at the date of receipt. Investments
may include some cash and cash equivalents held by investment managers for specific purposes.

Included in Investments are investment properties carried at fair value. For the years ended April 30,
2014 and 2013, these properties included the University's South Campus property. During fiscal year
2008, the University entered into a transfer agreement with an unrelated third-party to develop the
University's South Campus for sale and long-term ground lease. On Cctober 28, 2011 the first phase of
the closing on that property occurred. The second phase of the closing is expected to ccour before
Dacember 31, 2014.

Property and Equipment

Properly and equipment are recorded at cost or fair value if acquired by gift. Certain costs associated
with the financing of the assets are deferred and amortized over the term of the financing in a method
that approximates the interest rate method. Repairs and maintenance costs occurring in the normal
course of husiness that do not add to the useful life of the underlying asset are expensed as incurred,

Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method using the half-year convention over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives are: land and building improvements, 20 years;
buildings, generally 40 years; furniture, equipment, computer systems, and library books, 5 years.

Collections
The University has elected not to capitalize the cost or value of its collection of works of art, historical
treasures, and similar assets. There were no deaccessions during the year.

Continued
g



The Catholic University of America and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013

Refundable Advances from the U.S. Government
Funds provided by the United States Government under the Federal Perkins Loan and the Nursing
Student Loan Programs are loaned to qualified students and may be reloaned after collections. Such
funds are uitimately refundable to the U.S. Government.

Functional Expenses

Costs related to the operation and maintenance of physical plant, including depreciation of property and
equipment and interest expense, are allocated among the functional expenses based upon square
footage. Institutional support is considered a supporting service. All other expense functions are
considered program expenses. '

Fundraising
Fundraising expenses totaling $4,784,000 and $4,291,000 are included in institutional support for the
years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value accounting standards establish a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value
measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an
asset or liabllity as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows. All fair value
amounts and disclosures are classified according to the following framework:

Level 1: Fair value is based upon unadjusted, quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in
active, accessible markets.

Level 2: Fair value is based upon either quoted prices for identical assets in an inactive market or
similar items in aclivefinactive markests.

Level 3. Fair value is based upon other unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market
activity and that are significant {o the fair value of the assets.

In general, for Level 2 and Leve! 3 investments, the University utilizes the investment manager of the
asset to provide a valuation estimate based on techniques discussed later and processes which have
been reviewed by management for propriety and consistency with consideration given to asset type and
investment strategy. Management makes best estimates based on the Information available. The
following estimates and assumptions were used to determine the fair value of each class of financial
instruments.

Financial Instrumehts Recorded af Amount Other Than Fair Value

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable, accrued
expenses, and deposits approximates fair value because of the short-term maturity of these items.

The carrying value of the University's student loans receivable approximates fair value due to the fact
that most of these receivables are guaranteed by the US government. For the loans receivable not
guaranteed by the US government, the University calculated the fair value hased upon credit risk and the
expected value of future cash flows, The carrying value on those loans also approximates fair value.

Fair market value for fixed-rate debt maturities, the University's Series 2007 and Series 2010 tax-exempt
bonds, was determined by a third-party service provider using a relative price approach, by discounting
the future cash flows (principal and interest payments) at the Market Yield to maturity, and at the Market
Yield to each call date {(assuming the bonds are called on such date). The lowest of these values is the
falr market value of the bond, The Market Yield is determined by adding ‘a market spread (estimated
based on comparable securities trading in the marketplace) to the underlying index (MMD AAA/Aaa
scale for tax-exempt debt) with the same approximate maturity as the debt maturity.  The fair value of
the University's notes payable approximate carrying value.

Continued
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The Catholic University of America and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013

The carrying value and fair value of the University's financial instruments not required to be recorded at
fair value as of April 30, 2014 and 2013 are (in thousands):

2014 2013

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Level Amo1iint Value Amount Value
Student loans receivable 2 $ 6,956 $ 6,735 $ 7,005 $ B,677

Indebtedness:

DC Rewenue Bonds Sertes 2010 2 $ 33,643 ~ § 34,785 $ 35,217 $ 37,492
DC Rewnue Bonds Seiies 2007 2 67,389 66,829 68,749 70,008
Department of Education notes - 2 2,143 2,143 2,422 2,422
Total fair value of indebledness $103,175 $103,757 $106,388 $110,012

Financial Instruments Measured al Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The Universily determines the fair value of its deposits with bond trustees and investments in publicly
traded securities and foreign currency by quoted market prices from actlive markets,

The fair value of investments in equity securities is based on available closing prices in an active market,
The fair value of investments in debt securities is based upon the price of similar issues in an active
market. The fair value of investments in limited partnerships and private equity, venture capital, natural
resource and hedge funds is determined by using the University's percentage of interest in each of the
investments and the estimated fair value. The general partner determines the estimated fair value of a
partnership based upon the fair value of the partnership’s investments and discloses that value in their
annual financial statements.

The valuation process for these investments is subject to review and oversight by management. In
connection with this process, management reviews the details of the information obtained from the
investment company and considers: i) the measurement date, i) the basis of accounting and iii} other
information obtained during the year through investment monitoring procedures. The University may
adjust the obtained fair value for outside inputs such as the cash activity since the date of the annual
financial statements, agreement restrictions, secondary market considerations and any liquidity
constraints.

The fair value of the University real estate is calculated based on most recent rates from negotiations
with buyers and development partners. Real estate assets are included in level 3 as significant
unobservable inputs and management's judgment is used in the valuation process,

Fair value measurement accounting guidance requires for all level 3 fair value measurements the .
disclosure of quantitative information about significant unobservable inputs used. An exception to
providing additional quantitative measures is allowed when the University is using unadjusted third party
pricing and net asset valuation ("NAV"), assuming that additional quantitative information is provided with
regard to the University's valuation process to obtain comfort with the third party prices provided. A
discussion of the process is described below with the other required NAV disclosures and therefore the
University intends to adhere to this exception.

Continued
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The Catholic University of America and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013

Investments are managed by a diverse group of invesiment managers. Managers may utilize hedging
strategies or invest in financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk. Management has estimated that
the risk associated with derivatives is not material to the University as of April 30, 2014 and 2013, and
therefore has not been accounted for in the financial statements.

As of April 30, 2014 and 2013, $30,116,000 of the University's real estate investment fair value is not
based upon NAV., Quantitative information about Level 3 fair value measurements not based upon NAV
are as follows for the years ended Aprit 30, 2014 and 2013:

(in thousands) Falr Value  Fair Value

at April 30, at April 30,

2014 2013 Valyation Technigue Unobservable Input Effect
Real Estate - land parcels ) ' Contract with buyer
pending sale $ 10,500 % 10,500 Negotiated contracl rate pending closing In 2014 N/A
) Negotiated contract rates

Real Estate - fand parcels per zoning-approved 1% change in rate per
under lease agreements $ 19,616 & 19,616 square footage square foot 5 195

Changes in any of the significant inputs presented in the table above may result in a significant change in
the fair value measurements of the asset.

Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Basis

The University determines the fair value of its contributions receivable on the date of receipt and split
interest agreement asset and liabilities through an evaluation of what price could be obtained to sell
those assets or transfer those liabilities. Contributions receivable recorded prior to May 1, 2008 were
discounted to the net present value of the future cash flows based upon a risk-free rate. |n accordance
with fair value accounting standards, the University has determined that those assets and liabilities would
be transferred at pricing similar to borrowing rates available to the University. Therefore, the University
has discounted contributions receivable and split interest agreement assets and liabilities received during
the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013 at its approximate borrowing rates. For fiscal year 2014, these
rales vary between 1.7% and 3.8% depending upon when the pledge began, the time period in which the
asset is expected fo be received or the liability is expected to be paid.

The University determines the fair value of its asset retirement obligations through an evaluation of what
price could be obtained to sell the related assets or transfer those liabilities. Asset retirement obligations
recorded prior to May 1, 2010 were discounted to the net present value of the future cash flows based
upon a risk-free rate. In accordance with fair value accounting standards, the University has determined
that any new asset retirement obligations incurred would be transferred at pricing similar to borrowing
rates available to the University.

Continued
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013

The following items are recorded at fair value as of Aprit 30, 2014 (in thpusands):

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Recurring Measurement:
Investments:
Money market funds and temporary investments 2605 § 559 § - 3 8,201
Equity securities
Domestic 30,751 - - 30,751
International 36,714 - - 38,714

Equity mutual funds 31,559 17,971 - 49,530

Equity commingled fund of funds - 9,998 - 9,086

Debt securities

Corporate - 10,167 - 10,167
Securitized - 23 - 23
Other - 52 - &2

Fixed income mutual funds 1,760 9,826 - 11,586

Fixed income commingted fund of funds - 31,230 - 31,230

Private equity and limited partnerships:

Venture capital investments - - 5,333 5,333
Corporate finance - - 20,483 20,483
Real estate - - 1,788 1,788
Natural resources - “ 2,407 2,407
Hedge funds:
Domestic equily - 24,976 - 24,976
Emerging equity - 21,280 - 21,290
Global equity - - 6,165 6,165
Commodities - 6,042 - 6,042
Relative value - - 25,943 25,943
Diversifying fund - - 6,766 6,766
Natural resources - 12,282 - 12,282

Real estate 86 - 30,116 30,202
Total invesiments $ 103475 $149.451 3 99001 § 351,927
Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash held in foreign currency $ 48 - - % 48
Deposits with bond trustee 1,137 - - 3 1,137
interest in perpetual trust - - 3 2,409 2,409
Non-Recurring Measurement:

Assets:

Contributions receivable 3 - 3 - $ 9422 % 9,422

Liahilities:

Split interest agreement liabilities 3 - 3 - $ 1550 % 1,650

Asset retirement obligations 3 -3 - % 7704 % 7,704
Continued
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The Catholic University of America and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013

The following items are recorded at fair value as of April 30, 2013 (in thousands):

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Recurring Measurement:

Investments:
Money market funds and temporary imestments $ 4,530 $ 3,287 $ - $ 7,817
Equity securities
Domestic 24 585 - - 24,585
International 30,150 - - 30,150
Equity mutual funds 5,283 25,761 - 31,044
Equity commingled fund of funds : - 11,448 - 11,448
Debt securities
Gowvermnment : - 263 - 263
Corporate - 0,295 - 9,295
Securitized - 22 - 22
Cther - - 66 : - 66
Fixed income mutual funds 3,607 24,276 - 27,883
Fixed income commingled fund of funds - 12,232 - 12,232
Private equity and limited parinerships:
Venture capital investments - - 4,814 4,814
Corporate finance - - 18,461 18,461
Real estate - - 2,099 2,099
Natural resources - - 2,256 2,266
Hedge funds '
Domestic equity - 22,643 - 22,843
Emerging equity - 31,246 - 31,246
Global equity - - 5,725 5,725
Commaodities - 9,808 - 8,808
Retative value - - 19,008 19,009
Diversifying fund - - 12,347 12,347
Natural resources - 0,944 - 9,844
Real eslate 29 - 30,116 30,145
Total investments ' $ 68,184 $ 160,391 $ 04,827 $ 323,402
Cash and cash equivalents: .
Cash held in foreign currency $ 84 3 - 3 - % 84
Deposits with bond trustee $ 1,428 § - 8 - 8 1,428
Interest in perpetual trust $ - $ - $ 2,243 $ 2,243
Non-Recurring Measurement:
Assets; '
Contributions receivable $ - % - % 7442 % 7,442
Liabilities:
Split interest agreement liabilities 3 - $ - $ 1,410 3 1,410
Asset retirement obligations $ - B R 7,190 $ 7,190
Conlinued
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The Catholic University of America and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013

The gains and losses (realized and unrealized) reported above for investments for the years ended April
30, 2014 and 2013 are included in Investment Return in Excess of Amounts Designated for Current
Operations on the Statement of Activities. The gains and losses for contributions receivable are included
in Changes in the Value of Split Interest Agreements in the Statement of Activities.

As a practical expedient, the Universily is permitted under US GAAP to estimate the fair value of an
investment at the measurement date using the reported NAV without further adjustment untess the entity
expects to sell the investment at a value other than NAV or if the NAV is not calculated in accordance
with US GAAP. The University's investments in private equity, real assets and certain hedge funds in
the absolute return portfolio are fair valued based on the most current NAV,

The University performs additional procedures including due diligence reviews on its investments in
investment companies and other procedurses with respect to the capital account or NAV provided to
ensure conformity with US GAAP. The University has assessed factors including, but not limited to,
managers’ compliance with Fair Value Measurement standard, price transparency and valuation
procedures in place, the ability to redeem at NAV at the measurement date, and existence of certain
redemption restrictions at the measurement dats,

The guidance also requires additional disclosures to enable user of the financial statements to
understand the nature and risk of the University’s investments. Furthermore, investments which can he
redesemed at NAV by the Universily on the measurement date or in ninety days or less are classified as
Level 2. Investments which cannot be redeemed on the measurement date or in ninety days or less are
classified as Level 3. The new guidance did not materially affect the University's consolidated financial
statements.

[The rest of this page is blank.]
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The Catholic University of America and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years ended Aptil 30, 2014 and 2013

The NAVY and redemption information for these investments as of April 30, 2014 and 2013 is as follows
{in thousands):

2014 Unfunded 2013 Redemption Redemption
Category Fair Value Commitments  Fair Value Frequency Notice Period
Hedge Funds
Relative Value $ 25043 % - $ 19,009 Annually 95 days
Diversifying Fund 6,766 - 12,347 Quarterly 95 days
Global Equity 6,165 - 5,725 Quarterly 95 days
Private Equity
Venture Capital Imestments 5,333 458 4,814 N/A
Corporate Finance 20,483 5,480 18,461 NIA
Real Estate 1,788 225 2,089 N/A
Natural Resources 2,407 2,626 2,256 NIA
Total Included in Level 3 $ 6888 § 8,689 $ 64711
Hedge Funds
Domestic Equity $ 24976 % - $ 22643 Weekly 5 days
Emerging Mkis Equity 10,687 - 8,854 Semi-Monthly 2 days
Emerging Mkts Equity 10,603 - 22,292 Moanthly 16 - 30 days
Commodities 6,042 - 9,908 Monthiy 5 days
Natural Resources 12,282 - 0,944 Daily 2 days
Fixed Income
Mutual funds 9,826 - 24,276 Daily 2 days
Commingled fund of funds 31,230 - 12,232 Monthly 5 days
Equity
Mutual funds - 17,971 - 25,761 Daity 2 days
Commingled fund of funds 9,996 - 11,448 Weekly 5 days
Total Included in Level 2 $ 133613 § - 3 147,458

As noted above, the University has made commitments to various private equity and limited
parinerships. The University expects these funds to be called over the next 5 to 7 years. Liquidily is
expected to be received in the next 8 to 10 years.

Student Tuition and Fees
Student tuition and fee revenues are recognized as revenue in the term in which they are substantially
earned. Tuition and fees relating to future terms are deferred and recognized when earned.

Required Net Asset Transfers

Required net asset fransfers represent amounts that change net asset classification due fo meeting the
dollar threshold to qualify as an endowment, fiquidation of annuities after the death of the donor, or a
change in the donor’s restriction on a gift.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The University maintains cash balances with financial institutions that exceed the federally insured
amount. The University has not suffered any credit losses due to this risk and believes that the risk of
failure of these institutions is very low,

The University places its cash and temporary cash investments in money market mutual funds and bank
overnight deposits with various financial institutions. Cash and cash equivalent balances are in excess of
the FDIC insurance limit. The University has not experienced any losses on its cash and cash

Continued
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013

equivalents. The University has also invested its excess cash in a diversified, short-term, investment
grade, tax-exempt bond fund that is classified under Money Market Funds and Temporary Investments.

Tuition receivables are not collateralized; however, credit risk is minimized as a result of the diverse
nature of the University’s student base. The University establishes an allowance for doubtful tuition
accounts based upon historical trends and other information.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In Qctober 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012 05, Classification of the Sales Proceeds of Donated
Financial Assets in the Statement of Cash Flows. ASU 2012-05 requires that donated securities be
presented on the Statement of Cash Fiows so that the proceeds from donations with long-term purposes
are included as a financing cash inflow and the proceeds of other donations that are directed for sale
upon receipt are included as an operating cash inflow. The University early adopted this accounting
pronouncement for the year ended April 30, 2013,

3. Contributions Receivable

Contributions receivable at April 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

2014 2013
Unconditional promisas expected to be collected in: ‘

Less than one year $ 2,267 §$ - 933
One year to five years - 444 267
Ower five years . 8,776 8,005

' 11,487 9,205

L.ess unamortized discount on contributions receivable (1,038) (846)
Net present value of contributions receivable 10,449 8,449

Less afiowance for uncollectible contributions (1,027) (1,007)
Contributions receivable, net $ 9,422 $ 7,442

The University discounted contributions receivable using rates ranging between 1.1% and 4.6% for the
years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013. The University also received a conditional pledge totaling
$4,000,000 in the year ended April 30, 2013. The University received $1,000,000 of the pledge in the
year ended April 30, 2013. Nothing was received during the year ended April 30, 2014. For the
remaining balance, the condition specifies that certain criteria be met and information be provided back
to the donor hefore the next installment can be received.

The University is a named beneficiary of trusts administered by financial institutions. The estimated net
present value of the expected cash flows, which approximates the University’s value of its interest in the
frusts, was $7,766,000 and $7,264,000 at April 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Changes in the
University's interest in the value of the trust assets are recognlzed as temporarily restricted changes in
value of split interest agreements.

Continued
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Years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013

4.. Investments

investments by type at April 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows {in thousands):

2014 2013
Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Vatue
Money market funds and temporary

investments $ 8,202 % 8,202 & 7817 % 7,817
Equity investments 96,591 126,991 67,248 97,226
Fixed income investments 51,737 53,058 48,580 49,762
Private equity and limited partnerships 126,330 30,010 31,292 27,630
Hedge funds 93,000 103,464 102,202 110,821
Real estate 184 30,202 161 30,146
$ 278,044 $ 351,927 $ 257,300 $ 323,402

Deposits with Bond Trustees

The University's deposits with bond trustees are invested in money market investments for planned
construction projects. The fair value of these securilies was approximately $1,137,000 and $1,428,000
at April 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The investment income on these deposits for the years ended
April 30, 2014 and 2013 consisted of $1,500 and $14,000 of dividend and interest income, $135 and

$8,000 of realized gains and ($1,200) and ($5,000) of unrealized losses, respectively.

Investment Income

Total net investment gain for the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013 consists of the following (in

thousands):
2014 2013
Interest and dividends $ 3177 & 2,789
Realized gains, net 18,694 5,892
Unrealized gains, net 5,350 14,943
Investment management expenses (972) (995)
Total gain from investments 26,249 22,629
Earnings on deposits with bond trustees 1 17
Expenses relating to deposit with bond trustees - -
Total net investment gain $ 26,250 $ 22,646
Operating - investment return designated for operations 9,767 8,932
Non-operating - investment return in excess of amounts
designated for operations 16,483 13,714
Total net investment gain $ 26,250 $ 22,646

Continued
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5. Endowment

The University's endowment consists of approximately 586 individual funds established for a variety of
purposes. The endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the
Board of Trustees to function as endowments. As required by generally accepted accounting principles,
net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to
function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

The University has adopted investment and spending policles for endowment assets that altempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of
Trustees, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to produce an average rate of
return of more than 5% as measured over rolling 5 year periods within risk levels def ned by the
Trustees. Actual returns in any given yéar may vary from this amount.

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the University relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current
yield (interest and dividends). The University targets a diversified asset altocation that places a greater
emphasis on equity-hased investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk
constraints.

The University has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year 5 percent of its endowment fund's
average fair value over the prior 12 quarters through the calendar year-end preceding the fiscal year in
which the distribution is planned. In establishing this pollcy, the Un;versny considered the long-term
expected return on its endowment.

The Uniform Prudent Management of institutional Funds Act ("UPMIFA") and accounting standards
related to net asset classification guides endowment reporting. The Board of Trustees interpreted
UPMIFA as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-
restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor sfipulations to the contrary. As a result of this
interpretation, the University classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts
donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent
endowment, and (c) income accumuiations, if specified by the applicable donor gift instrument,

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently
restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are
appropriated for expenditure by the organization in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence
prescribed by UPMIFA. The University allocates income annually to each fund according to a Board-
approved spending rate, The University considers the following factors in setting this rate:

The duration and preservation of the fund

The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund
General economic conditions

The possible effect of inflation and deflation

The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
Other resocurces of the organization

The investment policies of the organization

Continued
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The endowment consisted of the following as of April 30, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands}):

Aprii 30, 2014
Temporarily Pemanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Donor-restricted endowment funds $ - 3 53,416 % 85,101 % 138,517
Board-designated endowment funds 69,735 - - 69,735
Total endowment funds $ 69,735 % 53,416 § 85,401 § 208,252
April 30, 2013
Temporarily Pemanently
: Unrestricted Restricted Resiricted Total
Donor-restricted endowment funds 3 - % 44,296 3 83,024 $% 127,320
Board-designated endowment funds 65,960 - ‘ - 65,960
Total endowment funds % 659060 % 44,296 % 83,024 3% 193,280

For the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013, the University had the following endowment-related activities
(in thousands): : :

2014 ) 2013
Board- Donor Board- Donor
Designated Restricted Designated  Restricted
Endowment Endowment Endowment Endowment
Funds Funds Total = Funds Funds Total
Investment retum
Investment income $ 756 $ 2000 $ 2756 % 644 ¢ 1880 $ 2324
Net appreciation/depreciation 5600 14,930 20,630 3,606 16,037 19,643
Total investment return 6,356 16,930 23,286 4,250 17,717 21,967
Contribufions to endowment 353 1,963 2,318 17 1,693 1,710
Amounts appropriated for :
expenditures {2,934) ~(7,781) (10,715} (2,810) {7,059) (9,869)
Annuity payments ' - (112} {(112) - (90) {(90)
Transfers - 197 - 197 501 1,376 1877
Total change in endowment
funds $ 3775 % 111497 § 14972 % 1058 § 13637 § 15595

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds may
falt below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the University to retain as a fund of perpetual duration.
in accordance with accounting guidance for not-for-profit organizations, deficiencies of this nature that are
reported in unrestricted net assets were $0 as of April 30, 2014 and 2013.

Continued
21



The Catholic University of America and Affiliates
Notes fo Consclidated Financial Statements
Years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013

By net asset classification, the University had the following endowment-related activities for the years

ended April 30, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands):

2014
Temporarily Pemanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets, beginning of

year $ 65960 $ 44296 % 83024 § 193,280
Investmentreturn

Investmentincome 756 2,000 - 2,756

Net appreciation 5,600 14,930 - 20,530
Total investment return 6,356 16,930 - 23,286
Contributions to endowment 353 83 1,880 2,316
Amounts appropriated for

expenditures (2,934) (7,781} - {10,715}
Annuity payments - (112} - (112)
Transfers - - 197 197
Endowment net assets, end of year $ 69735 % 53416 & 85101 $ 208,252

2013
Temporarily Pemanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets, beginning of

year $ 64,002 % 33829 % 80,054 % 177,685
Investment return

Investmentincome 644 ' 1,680 - 2,324

Net depreciation 3,608 16,037 - 19,643
Total investment return 4,250 17,717 - 21,967
Confributions to endowment 17 g9 1,594 1,710
Amounts appropriated for

expenditures (2,810} (7,059) - {9,869)
Annuity payments - {90} - (90)
Transfers 501 - 1376 1.877

$ 65960 $ 44296 3§ 83024 § 193,280

Endowment net assets, end of year

Trusts

Split Interest Agreements

The University has assets of certain charitable remainder trusts included in its investment portfolio. The
trust agreements stipulate annuity payments to the beneficiaries based on agreed-upon rates. The
liabilities associated with these annuity payments are recorded as split interest agreements in the
consolidated statements of financtal position. The University discounted the split interest labillities using
rates ranaing between 1.5% and 10.0% for the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013. Changes in the
values of the trusts and liabilities are recorded as changes in the value of split interest agreements in the
consolidated statements of activities.

Continued
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Perpetual Trusts

The University is named as a beneficiary of four perpetual trusts administered by financial institutions.
The estimated present value of the expected cash flows, which approximates the University’s value of its
interest in the trusts, was $2,409,000 and $2,243,000 at April 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The
trusts are recognized as assets and as permanently restricted net assets in the consolidated financial
statements. The University's share of the change in the fair value of the trusts' assets is recognized as
permanently restricted investment income. Interest and dividends distributed from the trusts are
recorded as unrestricted or temporarily restricted investment income based on donor stipulations.

7. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment at April 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

2014 2013
Land _ $ 23,625 $ 23,525
Buildings and building improvements 277,243 271,830
Building retirement costs ‘ 2,684 2,454
Leasehold improvements ' 240 -
Construction work in process 4,601 -
Furniture, equipment, computer systems, and library books 77,470 76,879
386,463 374,688
Accumulated depreciation : (204,3386) (194,119)
Property and equipment, net $ 182,127 $ 180,569

The University has no outstanding liability for equipment held under capital leases as of April 30, 2014
and 2013.

in the year ended April 30,2012, the University leased a portion of its land to an outside party. The land
is recorded at fair value and is inciuded in investments. The fair value of the leased land is $19,616,000
at Aprit 30, 2014 and 2013.

In accordance with accounting standards for costs of computer software developed or obtained for
internal use, the University has capitalized certain internal labor costs for time spent on the application
development stages of these projects. There were no such costs for the year ended April 30, 2014 and
2013. ‘

In accordance with conditional asset retirement obligation accounting standards, as of April 30, 2014 and
2013 the University has capitalized $2,684,000 and $2,454,000 of asset retirement costs with
“accumulated depreciation balances of $2,429,000 and $2,182,000, respectively. The asset retirement
obligation as of April 30, 2014 and 2013 is $7,704,000 and $7,190,000, respectively, and is recorded as
a liability on the statement of financial position. The University's asset retirement obligations are
primarily associated with the cost and removal of asbestos, lead paint and asset decommissioning.

Continued
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The activity for the asset refirement obligations for the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013 is as follows
(in thousands):

2014 2013
Assaet retirement obligations, beginning of year % 7,190 % 6,904
Change in estimated cash flows 599 -
Abatement/decrease in liabilities (448) : (83)
Accretion expense 363 349
Asset retirement obligations, end of year $ 7,704 & 7,190

8. Indebhtedness

Indebtedness at April 30, 2014 and 2013 consists of the following (in thousands):

2014 2013

District of Columbia Revenue Bonds (the Catholic

University of America Project) Series 2010, including

premium of $888 and $932 for the years 2014 and 2013 $ 33,643 $ 35,217
District of Columbia Revenue Bonds (the Catholic

University of America Project) Series 2007, including

premium of $2,784 and $2,904 for the years 2014 and 2013 67,389 68,749

Total bonds payable 101,032 103,966

U.8. Department of Education, 5.5% secured

by a deed of trust on McMahon Hall, related site

and interest in a Loan Collateral Trust Account in the

pooled investments payable in installiments to 2021 1,248 1,379
U.S. Department of Education, 3.0% secured

by a deed of trust on Centennial Village, payable in

semiannual installments to 2020 895 1,043
Total notes payable 2,143 2,422
Tota! indebtedness $ 103,175 $ 106,388

The foregoing bonds and notes as of April 30, 2014 are payable as follows (in thousands):

2015 $ 3,186
2016 3,358
2017 3,516
2018 3,689
2019 : 3,883
Thereafter 81,861
‘ 89,503

Bond premium 3,672
Total indebtedness ' ' $ 103,175

Interest expense for the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013 was $4,741,000 and $4,863,000,
respectively. There was no capitalized interest for the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013. The
University was in compliance with debt covenants as of Aprit 30, 2014 and 2013.
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Series 2010 Bonds

On August 1, 2010, the University issued $38,010,000 District of Columbia Refunding Revenue Bonds
Series 2010 for the purpose of refunding the outstanding District of Columbia Revenue Bonds, Series
1999 and The Catholic University of America Taxable Variable Rate Demand Bonds Series 2004.

The Series 2010 Bonds, which consist of serial and term bonds, are subject to mandatory and optional
redemption as follows (in thousands):

Maturity Principal Interest Maturity Principal Interest
{October 1) Amount - Rate (October 1) _Amount Rate
2014 3 1,595 5.00% 2020 $ 6,085 3.50%
2015 1,685 5.00% 2023 6,955 5.00%
2016 1,760 5.00% 2028 4,985 4.50%
2017 1,855 5.00% 2034 7,835 5.00%

Covenants of the Series 2010 Bonds loan agreements require the University to maintain liquid
unrestricted net assets with a value which is equal to at least 80% of the outstanding principal amount of
all long term indebtedness which is on parity with Series 2010 Bonds.

Series 2007 Bonds

On June 13, 2007, the University issued $72,710,000 District of Columbia Revenue Bonds Series 2007
for the purpose of (i) financing the costs of construction, equipping and furnishing a Student Residence
Hall (i) advance refunding certain bonds from the District of Columbia Revenue Bonds Series 1999; (jii)
financing the costs of relocation of a maintenance building; and (iv) other projects to be determined.

The Series 2007 Bonds are subject to mandatory and optional redemption as follows {in thousands):

Maturity Principal Interest Maturity  Principal Interest
{October 1) Amount Rate (October 1)  Amount Rate
2014 3 1,300 5.00% 2017 $ 1.515 5.00%
2015 1,370 5.00% 2029 25,520 5.00%
2016 1,440 5.00% 2037 33,460 5.00%

Covenants of the Serles 2007 Bonds loan agreement require the University to maintain liguid
unrestricted net assets with a value which is equal to at least 80% of the outstanding principal amount of
all long term indebtedness which is on parity with Series 2007 Bonds.

Lines of Credit

As of Aprit 30, 2014 and 2013, the Universily had one line of credit with SunTrust Bank, totaling $9
million. At April 30, 2014 and 2013, none of the $9 million line of credit is drawn and all is therefore
available to the University for further financing. Draws on the $9 million line of credit are payable in
monthly instaliments of principal and interest. The interest rate on the line of credit is based on LIBOR
interest rate plus 1.25%.
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9.

10.

1.

12

Undesignated and Internally Designated Net Assets

Undesignated and interally designated net assets at April 30, 2014 and 2013 are comprised of the
following (in thousands):

2014 2013
Undesignated : $ 51,027 $ 57,080
Internally designated 58,645 50,518

$ 109,572 § 107,598

Scholarship Allowances

The University awarded $80,902,000 and $75,326,000 in merit and need based scholarships and tuition
waivers to its students for the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Student tuition and
fees revenue are reported net of scholarships in the consclidated statements of activities.

Employee Benefit Plans

Eligible employees of the University may participate in a contributory pension and retirement plan
administered by the Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association and College Retirement Equities Fund.
Under this plan, contributions are fully vested and are transferable by the employees to other covered
employer plans. Participating employees can contribute a percentage of their base salary not to exceed
the maximum amount allowed by IRC Section 415. The University contributes 5.0% for those employses
contributing fess than 2.5%, 7.5% for employees contributing 2.5% to 5.0%, and 10.0% for those
contributing 5.0% or more. The University's contribution to this plan was $7,457,000 and $7,640,000 for
the years ended April 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. '

Employees who retire from the University are also eligible for a life insurance benefit of up to $5,500.
The net present value of the liability for this benefit is $2,498,000 and $1,150,000 as of April 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively. This benefit program is unfunded.

Commitments

As of April 30, 2014, the University had entered info several construction agreements. Under these
agreements, the University is obligated for approximately $18,459,000, of which $9,277,000 has been
incurred at April 30, 2014,

The University has outstanding commitments to invest approximately $8,689,000 in limited partnerships
as of April 30, 2014,

On Aprit 4, 2013 the University entered into a Lelter of Credit with a governmental regulatory agency as
required by that agency. The Letter of Credit for $450,000 will be funded to a trust account if the
University ever decides to decommission certain assets. As of Aprit 30, 2014, the University has no
plans to decommission those assets.
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13.

14.

The University leases certain office space and equipment under long-term leases, the last of which
expires in fiscal year 2018, Fulure minimum rental payments under operating leases having initial or
remaining fease terms in excess of one year are (in thousands):

Year

2015 $ 1476
2016 1,325
2017 _ g11
2018 459
2019 -

$ 4,471

The University has leased out portions of its South Campus property under long-term leases. The lease
revenue escalates based upon the Consumer Price Index each year. The estimated future minimum
rental receipts for the next five years are {in thousands):

Year

2015 $ 1,259
2016 1,265
2017 1,271
2018 1,278
2019 1,284
2020 and thereafter 150,265

$156,622

There are no outstanding 6apital lease liabilities as of April 30, 2014. Rent expense was $1,015,000 and
$1,301,000 for the years ended Apri! 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Contingencies

The University is a party to litigation arising out of the normal conduct of its operations. In the opinion of
the University's administration, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a materially adverse
effect upon the University's financial position, change in net assets or cash flows.

The University receives a portion of its revenue from government grants and contracts, all of which are
subject fo audit. The ultimate determination of amounts received under these programs generally is
hased upon allowable costs reported to and audited by the government. Until such audits have been
compleied and final settlement reached, there exists a contingency fo refund any amounts received in
excess of allowable costs. Management is of the apinion that no material unrecorded liability will result
from such audits.

Subsequent Events

In preparing the financial statements, the University has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through September 10, 2014, the date the financial statements were issued.
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April 30, 2014

Other
CUA Farone University
(in thousands) . Foundation Foundation Activity Total
Assets ‘
Cash and cash equivalents $ 59 $ 404 $ 39,273 $ 39,736
Accounts receivable;
Student fees and other, net of allowance for
doubtful accounts - - 5506 5506
U.S. government and other agencies, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts ‘ - - 4,428 4428
Notes and student loans receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts - - 6,956 6,956
Contributions receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts - - 9,422 9,422
Investments “ 30,705 321,222 351,927
Deposits with bond trustee - - 1,137 1,137
Deferred charges and other assets - - 7,038 7.038
Propery and equipment, net - - 182,127 182,127
Inferest in perpetual trusts - - 2,409 2,409
Total assets $ 59 $ 31,109 $ 579,518 $610,686
Liakilities and Net Assets
Liahilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses % - $ 1 $ 27,737 $ 27738
Due to the University 40 644 (684) -
Deferred revenues, student deposits and other liabilities - - 7,197 7.197
Refundable advances from the 1.5, government ‘ - - 7,401 7,401
Split-interest agreements _ - - 1,550 1,550
Asset retirement obligations - - 7,704 7,704
Indebtedness - - 103,175 103,175
Total liabilities ‘ 40 645 154,080 154,765
Netassets:
Unrestricted
Undesignated and internally designated - - 109,572 109,572
Designated funds functioning as endowment - - 69,462 69,462
Farone Foundation - 30,464 - 30,464
Net investmentin property and equipment ‘ - - 76,057 76,057
- 30,464 255,081 285,555
Temporarily restricted
Splitinterest agreements - - 9,155 9,155
CUA Foundation 19 - - 19
Property and equipment C - - 5,725 5,725
Depariment gifts and scholarships - - 64,203 64,203
19 - 79,083 79,102
Permanently restricted
Studentloans - - 2,319 2319
"Endowment - - 85,633 85,633
Splitinterest agreements - - 3,312 3,312
- - 91,264 91,264
Total net asseis 19 30,464 425,438 455,921
Total liabilities and net assets $ 59 $ 31,108 § 579,518  $610,686
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